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IN THE COURT OF APPEAL FOR ONTARIO.

Between :
WILLIAM FLEMING,

(Respondent) Plaintiff,
AN 11

THE TORONTO RAILWAY COMPANY.
(Appellants) DETENDANTE.

STATEMENT OF CASE.
This is an action brought bv William Fleming, claiming 1(5,000.00 

10 damages for injuries sustained by him whilst a passenger on a ear of the 
defendant company. The case came on for trial before the Honourable 
Mr. Justice Middleton anil a Jury, judgment being entered in favor of 
the plaintiff, upon the findings of the Jury, for $1,200.00.

From this Judgment the defendant company now appeals to the 
Court of Appeal for Ontario.

IN THE HIGH COURT OF JUSTICE.

Writ issued the 3rd day of December, A.D. 1910.
Between :

20
WILLIAM FLEMING,

Plaintiff,

THE TORONTO RAILWAY COMPANY.
Defendants.

STATEMENT OF CLAIM.
(As amended by Order of Latchford, J., of 30th March, 1911.)
1. The plaintiff was at the time of the accident hereinafter men­

tioned a watchman for Joseph Russell, of the City of Toronto, and re­
sides in the said City of Toronto, and the defendant is a corporation 
operating an electric railroad through the streets of the said city.

80 " 2. The plaintiff on the 10th day of August, 1910, became a passenger
to be carried for reward on the defendant’s railway on a King street 
car going east.

3. The car upon which the plaintiff was riding stopped at Kher- 
" bourne street, and upon starting again from Sherbourne street there 

was an explosion, and shortly after the front part of the car took fire.

.1
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4. The car proceeded at a very high rate of speed and many of the 

passengers becoming alarmed, as the fire was spreading, in order to save 
themselves, jumped from the car, and the plaintiff being on the end of a 
seat was forced out of the car by the passengers seeking to escape and 
thrown to the ground.

5. The plaintiff lit on his head and side; his right eye, cheek and 
shoulder were badly injured; two rilis were fractured; his right hip and 
knee were badly injured and he received other injuries and severe 
shock.

10 ti. The plaintiff has up to the present time been unable to attend to 
his work and lias incurred medical and other expenses.

7. The plaintiff’s injuries are permanent.
8. The plaintiff charges and the fact is that the accident was due to 

the negligence of the defendants. Such negligence consisting in the de­
fendants not having properly inspected the controller, or if so inspected, 
not having it put in proper order and in leaving the said controller out 
of repair or not in proper condition to be in operation, and in having 
the cars overloaded and thus giving the controller too much strain, and 
in the motorman turning the power of the controller on too suddenly

20 when overloaded; neglecting to turn off the power after the controller 
blew out, and in the motorman deserting his post and leaving the car to 
run away, and in the conductor and motorman neglecting to pull the 
pole off the wire and thus stop the car, and in the defendants permitting 
the ear in question to he ojierated bv an inexperienced and incompetent 
motorman, and in the failure of the motorman to apply the brake, and 
in the defective form and design of the car, and the crowding of the same, 
both of which impeded the conductor in the discharge of his duties, and 
in using a circuit breaker of inferior design and defective condition, and 
in using a defectively constructed controller.

SO The plaintiff claims:
1. *5,000.00 damages.
2. The costs of this action.
The plaintiff proposes to have this action tried at Toronto.
Delivered this 17th day of December. A.D.. 1910, by Messrs. C. and 

IT. D. (Iambic, 28 Scott street, Toronto, Plaintiff’s Solicitors.

PARTICULARS OF AMENDMENT OF STATEMENT OF CLAIM.
The particulars under the amendment to the Statement of Claim as 

ordered by the Honourable Mr. Justice Latchford are as follows:
The defective form and design of the car consists in having the seats 

40 too close together; in having a running board on the outside of the car 
instead of a passage in the centre of the car, and the defect in the gen­
eral arrangements so that the employees cannot pull down the trolley 
pole in an emergency or when required.

Insufficiency of provision for electrical transmission in portions of 
the equipment circuits; insufficiency of provision for insulation between
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portions of the equipment circuits; insufficiency of provision for insula­
tion in the circuit breaker when open; insufficiency of provision for fire 
protection in ease of trouble in the equipment circuits; defective insula­
tion of and insufficiency of provision for electrical transmission in jior- 
tions of the equipment circuits; insufficiency of provision for shutting 
off the power when the circuit breaker failed to serve its purpose at tIn­
time of the accident.

The particulars in reference to the controller are as follows:
Defective insulation and too low conductivity in the circuit.

|0 Delivered the 21st day of March, 1911, by Messrs. C. and H. D. 
(lambic, 28 Scott street, Toronto, Solicitors for the Plaintiff.

STATEMENT OK DEFENCE.
By Statute R.S.O., 1897, cap. 207, See. 42, 55, Vic. cap. 99, ss. 1. 4, 17 

and 18, Public Acts.
The defendants say they are not guilty.
Dkuvkkkd this 5th day of January, 1911, by McCarthy, Osier, 

Iloskin and Harcourt, of the City of Toronto, in the County of York. 
Defendants' Solicitors.

JOINDER OF ISSUE.
20 The plaintiff joins issue upon the defendants' statement of defence.

Dkijvkrkd the Kith day of January, A.D., 1911, by Messrs. ('. and H. 
D. (Iambic, of the City of Toronto, in the County of York, Plaintiff’s 
Solicitors.

JURY NOTICE.
The plaintiff requires that the issues in this cause he tried by a jury. 
Datkii at Toronto this 1.1th day <:f January, A.D., 1911.

C. & H. D. Gamble,
Solicitors for Plaintiff.

To Messrs. McCarthy, Oslf.r & Co.,
30 Solicitors for Defendants,

Home Life Building,
Toronto, Ont. . ____  ____
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EVIDENCE AT TRIAL.

Evidence taken before the Honourable Mr. Justice Middleton and a 
Jury, at the Court House, in the City Hall, in the City of Toronto, the 
25tli day of September, 1911.

Mr. H. D. Gamble, K.C., for the Plaintiff.
Mr. D. L. McCarthy, K.C., for the Defendants.
WILLIAM FLEMING, sworn. Examined by Mr. Gamble:
Q. Mr. Fleming, what age are y out A. 69 next February.
Q. And at the time of this accident, how were you, employed? A. 

10 By the week.
Q. Where ? A. At Mr. Russell’s—Johnnie Russell's.
Q. Then how much a week were you getting? A. $10 weekly.
Q. What dav did this accident happen? A. On the 10th August, 

1910.
Q. What time of the day was it? A. About half-past five in the 

evening.
Q. On what ear was it? A. On a King street car going east.
0. Was that an open ear? A Yes.
Q. Was there any trailer attached to it? A. Yes.

20 Q. Where were you sitting in the car? A. On the end seat; it was 
a single scat.

Q. That was at the time of the accident ? A. Yes.
Q. What sort of a ear was it; had it all the seats facing all one way, 

or were they facing each other? A. I believe tbev were all facing the one 
way, towards the motorman.

Q. How much space was there between your knees and the back of the 
next seat; how much space had you there ? A. No space, scarce any­
thing at all, hardly any at all.

Q. The seats were close together? A. Yes. The single seat I was on 
•0 was narrow.

Q. Were there any people in the seat beside yourself ? A. Yes, two 
ladies on the left hand side of me.

Q. Were there many people on the ear ? A. Yes, there was quite a 
few on the car when I got on the car.

Q. And at the time of the accident ? A. At the time of the accident, 
yes, there was a lot of people on the car.

Q. Will you tell me what took place on the west side of Rhcrbourne 
street. Before you g<rt to Sherbourae street, there was another lady in the 
car, I think ? Â. Yes.

40 Q. In your seat ? A. Yes.
Q. And she got out there? A. She got out, and I moved up to her 

place ready to get off.
Q. What passed after that ; what happened then ? A. After the car 

started up across Sherbourne street, it started up with a tremendous force 
there and a tremendous jerk occurred next and the explosion of someTliing 
attached to the ear. I couldn't say what it was, but I believe it was the
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WILLIAM FLEMING—EXAMINATION-IN-CHIF.F.

fuse blew out; there was three or four reports, hang, bang, at any rate, 
as loud as it could be, and it got a tremendous lot of people out on the 
street.

Q. W as there any light or fire# A. Yes, after the report of the noise,
I saw "the ear liegan to smoke, and the next thing it turned to flame, turned 
to fire.

Q. What did the peo->le in the car do then# A. I saw five ladies be­
hind the motorman disappear from the car.

10 Q. Where did they go? A. They went on to the street.
Q. While it was in motion f A. Yes, while it was running.
Q. What alunit youf A. Well, after the ladies went off the ear, two 

ladies says to me, ‘’Old man, you bettor get off; you want to get out, or 
you will get burnt, and they commenced to crowd around, and as soon as the 
fire was coming up around where the ladies were sitting, outside the ear, 
she shoved the lady next to me and they forced me right off the ear, and 1 
the two of them came off the car over me onto the street and the ear was' 
still going.

Q. Did you notice whether the brakes were put on or not? A. No, I 
•JO don't know; it was still going when [ left the car, still moving when I 

left the ear.
Q. Then, what injuries did vou suffer# A. Well, when I was knocked 

off-----
Q. How did you light on the ground# A. Well, they forced me right 

out on the one side, on my right side, right on to my right side.
Q. And then what happened# A. Well, I had my eye all cut, and a 

big gash cut here on the side of my head, and the blood trickled down, 
came down my face.

Q. Of course that accident is not accountable for the blindness of 
;>0 your eye, is it# A. Oh, no.

Q. You had that before# A. Yes, I had that before.
Q. And what else# A. I hurt my right shoulder, it was badly hurt, 

and I had ribs broken on my right side, and my right knee badly frac­
tured, and my hip is badly fractured, and my right foot.

O. When you used the word “fractured" perhaps you are using a 
technical term that you don't understand. Was it actually broken off; 
was vour leg broken, do you mean# A. No, sir, but it is badly used up. 
I call it fractured when I cannot walk on it long.

0. There were no bones, so far as you know, actually broken in your 
40 hip or knee# A. No, sir.

Q. Then what became of you# A. Then I had a doctor there, and 
I don’t know the gentleman, hut he brought some plaster and they 
strapped my eye up.

Q. Where was that done# A. On the street, on the east side of the 
Sherbourne St. crossing.

Q. Where you fell off# A. Yes.
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WILLIAM FLEMING—CROSS-EXAMINATION.

Q. Do you know where they placed you; they did not leave you on 
the ground? A. No; they placed me on a gentleman's lounge he had 
there for sale.

Q. Do you know what his name wasî A. I don’t know his name. 
They carried me and laid me on the ground that was against the win­
dow on the sidewalk.

(j. Having patched you up a bit. what did they do next with vouf 
A. Well, 1 told them my knee-----

10 Q. Never mind what you told them; what did they do with yout A. 
They wanted me to go to the hospital, and 1 tpld them I wanted to go 
down to see Mr. Russell, and they said, “No, I could not go.”

Q. You did not go down to Mr. Russell? A. No, they took me in 
the ambulance.

Q. Then evidently you were taken home? A. Yes, I was taken home 
to my son’s.

Q. What in? A. In a taxi-cab.
Q. You got out of the ambulance and were taken home in a taxi­

cab? A. Yes.
20 Q. And you went home in a taxi-cab? A. Yes.

0. Were you confined to your house at all? A. Yes.
0. Did you have any doctor? A. Yes, I had Dr. McPherson there. 
O. And subsequently Dr. Webster? A. Yes.
Q. How long were you before you could leave the house ? A. I was 

'five weeks in bed.
Q. How long do you think it would he before you were able to leave 

ytlie house? A. I was in there, I would say, about 15 or 16 weeks before 
IK was able to leave the house, to go away anywhere on my leg again.
I O. Then were these injuries painful to you? A. Yes.

0 Q. Are you able to work now? A. No, sir, I am not.
Q. What was the difficulty? A. I ain’t able to get around on my 

knee, and my hip. that is troubling me, and my right foot is all the while 
cold, pretty near all the time; it seems as though the blood don’t circu­
late in it at all.

CROSS-EXAMINED bv Mr. McCarthy:
Q. You had an accident some time ago, I believe? A.-Yes, but not 

while I was working for Russell.
0. You had an accident, hadn’t you ? A. Yes.
Q. To your legs? A. On mV left thigh. •
Q. You haven’t done any hard work since that? A. Yes.
0. What work were you doing for Russell ? A. I was nightwatch. 
0. That means—what work was Russell doing at the .time ? A. He 

was doing work for Mr. Davidson down back of the brick factory.
0. What was the nature of the work ? A. I was just walking up

L

41)

and down keeping the stuff in place there that the men were working 
on in the daytime.

m
m
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WILLIAM FLEMING—CROSS-EXAMINATION.

(J. How long had you boon at that kind of work# A. I could uot tell 
you exactly how long Î have been at that job.

Q. 1 mean that kind of work? A. Oh, 1 have beei * summer.
Q. You have been longer than that at that kind of work! A. Yes,

I have been off and on at that job.
Q. As a watchman generally 1 A. Yes.
Q. You haven’t done hard work since you met with that accident t 

A. Oh, yes, I have.
10 Q. I mean the one where you hurt your thigh? A. No.

Q. That was how long ago f A. That was the 10th of August, last 
summer.

Q. I mean the accident-where you hurt your thigh f A. That is 25 
years ago or more.

0. When did the work with Russell stop? A. I don't know.
O. Do you know when Russell's job was finished there 1 A. I don't.
O. Did you work regularly for Russell as night watchman in all his 

work? A. Yes. When 1 was working down at the brick yard, he used 
to get me to go on nightwatching for him any time he wanted me, on and 

20 off.
O. So that when Russell had a job he would use you as night watch­

man from time to timet A. Yes, from time to time, when he needed me.
O. You live with your sont A. Yes.
0. Now, I suppose, Mr. Fleming, that the doctors can tell us more 

about vmir injury than you can yourselft A. Yes, 1 guess so.
Q. They should he able to know better than ynut A. Why certainly.
O. You say you haven’t done any work since? A. I ain’t earned a 

dollar since, or able to do anything. I only wish 1 was.
ft (). You have been ill, though, from other causes since the-accidentt 

30 A/Yes, I have been sick with pneumonia this summer.
O. How long were you laid up with pneumonia t A. Seven weeks.
(>. How did that leave you—pr ttv weak? A. Yes, it certainly did.
0. Were you better at the time you got pneumonia than you are 

now, do you think? Were you feeling stronger before you had the at­
tack of pneumonia than you are to-day? A. No, 1 don't know that 1 was.

0. Now, you told me, or you told luv learned friend, that you were 
sitting on the outside of an open car and there were two ladies sitting 
inside of vout A. Yes.

O. You crossed over the interse tion of Sherbourne Street in the or- 
40 dinarv wav? A. 'Yes.

0. And when you got to the other side you say there was a jerk, 
followed by an explosion? A. Yes, the car started up at a tremendous 
speed, and there was a big jerk occurred and an explosion took place.

0. And the two ladies who were sitting inside said, “Old man, get 
out or you will be burned." and you tried to keen them quiet, and with 
that they shoved you out? A. Yes, they forced me off the car—they 
did, sir.

19
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1)K. THOMAS 8. WEBSTER—EXAMINATION-IX-CHIEF.

RE-EXAMINED by Mr. Gamble:
Q. In reference to the injury that you had to your other hip, your 

left hip, how many years ago was that? A. It is about 25. Over that 
—about 28. I don't know exaetly, but I never suffered nothing from it 
at all much, just a little bruise on the thigh.

Q. Were you always able to make your own living from that time 
ont A. Yes, always worked right along.

Q. Have you any family! A. Yes, I have six children now. I lost 
10 one last summer.

Q. How many had you to supjsirt during that time? Had you a wife? 
A. No, I have no wife now.

0. Had you a wife? A. Yes, I had a wife then, when I got hurt.
Q. When did she die? A. She died 21st March last.
Q. Did you support your wife and family since that accident 25 

years ago? A. Yes, I always turned my money in.
Mr. McCarthy: I don't know what this has to do with it, my Lord.
Mr. Gamble : Q. Up to the time of this accident, did you sup]M>rt 

yourself? A. Yes.
20 DR. THOMAS S. WEBSTER, Sworn. Examined by Mr. Gamble:

0. Dr. Webster, you are a medical practitioner? A. Yes.
0. And do you practice in Toronto? A. Yes.
O. How long have you been in practice? A. Over 20 years.
Q. Did you attend the plaintiff for pneumonia this summer? A. No; 

but I knew of it. x
0. If you did not attend to him just tell me this, what is the effect 

of an attack of pneumonia, the subsequent effect? A. Almost invariably, 
a man with pneumonia, if it is not fatal, makes a complete recovery, 
that is, it leaves nothing behind to interfere with the man.

Q. Now, when was it you attended Fleming? A. Well, I have for- 
I, gotten the exact date; it was just within a week, a day or two after his 
jf accident.

y. Will you tell the jury what condition you found him in? A. There 
was an ugly looking incised wound on the right side of the face, and he 
had two fractured ribs, the shoulder was badly contused, but there wasn’t 
any break or dislocation. The hip was strained, and the knee was worst 
of all. The knee was thrown out, so that the internal ligaments of the 
knee were torn, and there was a good deal of deformity there, giving 
him the position of knock-knee almost. The chief injury was in the knee- 

40 joint. Then he also complained of some soreness down about the ankle 
—these injuries all on the right side of the body.

y. Then the injury to the face, how has that developed? A. Well, 
the injury to the face soon got better, and there isn't any result, any bad 
result.

y. And the shoulder? That, I think, has recovered completely, tbo.
Q. Then about the permanency or otherwise of the injury to the hjp
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DR. THOMAS S. WEBSTER—CROSS-EXAMINATION.

and knee! A. Well, the hiv and knee are both stiff yet; the aetion of 
the knee is not complete, that is, he cannot bend that knee as much as, 
the other knee, and the hip also is stiff.

Q. I notice that he walks with a stick! A. Yes.
Q. What would that indicate! A. Well, the whole right leg, hip, 

knee and ankle are depressed; they are permanently injured, and he. 
walks with a cane on the right side îiTfàke the weight off that, especial­
ly off the knee. The chief trouble is at the knee-joint.

10 O. Then what do you say as to the probability of his Ix-ing able to Z 
work again! A. The injuries are permanent; they will not improve any 
more.

O. Did you find any result in the wav of shock to the patient! A. 
Yes. he was suffering greatly from shock in the beginning.

O. Would that have any effect on his condition, as to permanency! 
A. I think he has recovered from that.

CROSS-EXAMINED by Mr. McCarthy:
O. Do you know how old he is! A. Except what he states himself. 

3» Q. What would you expect of a man in his time of life! A. Well, 
a man of his age would not recover the way a young man or a child 
would recover from the same injury.

0. What is the effect of pneumonia on a man of his age! A. Well,
I have already stated that unless it is fatal, recovery is almost invari­
ably complete.

(). Then you mean to tell us that in a man of his agi' pneumonia 
leaves no after effects at all! A. No, almost invariably, unless there is 
some tubercular taint or some tubercular condition in connection with 
it, the recovery is i>erfect and complete.

30 O. I am not asking you as to whether it is permanent or complete; I 
am asking you whether it leaves anv after effects! A. No, unless there 
is some tubercular condition in connection with it.

(). You say there are no evil effects from pneumonia in a man of 69 
vears of age! A. No; there might be an isolated ease, but it is always 
invariably a complete recovery.

0. Of course a complete recovery is complete, I know, but I am ask­
ing vou where a man recovers from pneumonia, does it leave any evil ef­
fects at all! A. Very rarely.

Q. Do you knowWhether it did in this ease! A. I don't think there 
40 is anv bad results from that at all.

O. When did you see him last before he had pneumonia! A. Well. 
T think I saw him at the time, hut I would not like to be too sure. I was 
away, and Dr. McLeod was railed in, and I think I called in once at the 
time he had pneumonia. Anyway, mv recollection of that is so dim it 
would not be any value as evidence; hut I have not seen him since un­
til to-dav.

. Q. How is he to-day .compared with what you saw; how would you
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DR. DIT NC A N A. MCPHERSON— EXAMIXATION-IN-CHIEF.

compare h is state of health to-day with what it was when you saw him 
last? A. Oh, just about the same. He is just about the same as he was 
when we examined him previous to the last session of the Court.

Q. That was last Mayî A. I think that was in November, was it!
Q. That would be last May? A. Yes, May.
Q. You say the injury to the face was only a cut? A. Yes; he re­

covered from that quickly.
Q. And the shoulder was what we call a bruise? A. Yes, a sprain.

10 Q. He recovered from that? A. Yes.
Q. So that the only injury which he still suffers from are the injur­

ies' to the right leg? À. Yes, that is the hip, knee and ankle.
Q. You think they will he permanent? A. Yes.
y. There is no injury to the bone, I believe! A. No; but there was 

----- 1 stated that there was an injury to the internal ligaments.
O. I am asking you whether there is injury to the bone? A. No, 

none whatever.
RE-EXAMINED bv Mr. Gamble:
y. Which is the more serious injury, the tearing of the ligaments in

20 that leg or a fracture? A. Tlx- rupture of the ligament is really a more 
serious injury than the fracture of a hone.

Mr. McCarthy : y. In a man of that age? A. Well, yes, because it 
' would keep him in bed just as long. The old saying, that “a strain is 
worse than a break,” applies to a case like this..

I)R. DUNCAN A. McPIlLRSON, Sworn. Examined by Mr. Gamble:
y. Doctor, arc you a practicing physician in Toronto ? A. Yes.
Q. And have been practicing here for how long ! A. Since 189'!.
y. Did you have anything to do with the plaintiff after his accident 

on the 10th of August, 1910? A. Yes.
80 y. Will you tell us what you had to do with it? A. On August 10th 

I was called in to see him. I arrived there in the evening, 1 think, about 
9 o’clock, and 1 found him in the condition that has already been describ­
ed, with quite a gash over the socket of the right eye, a sprained shoul­
der, a sprained hip. and at the time I could not diagnose very well whe­
ther there was a fracture of the knee or what the condition was, because 
it was nretty painful; there was an iujurv to the ankle, besides quite an 
injurv to the right thigh in the neighborhood of the rib that I did not at­
tempt to diagnose whether there were fractures or not, on account of 
the pain.

40 O. You did not try to find that out at the time on account of the pain?
No. Another reason was that I would just as leave leave them as 

they were for fear that pleurisy might develops.
O. Was he cut on the face; had he a severe cut on the face at all? 

A. No, not very severe. It was dressed when I saw it. and I did not con­
sider it neeessarv to remove it; it was very neatly dressed and I left that 
alone. In regard to that, he has made a perfect recovery.
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|)R. DVNCAN A. MCPHERSON—EXAMINAT1UX-IN-CHIEF.

Q. Then had he any other injuries that you know of f When did you 
discover about his ribs being fractured? A. Probably two or three days 
afterwards, if I remember right, he complained about some internal in­
juries.

Q. You weren’t able to locate t'tein? A. No. They were in the 
neighborhood of the injured rib; the injury was in the neighborhood of 
the injured rib.

Q. Then a couple of days afterwards you made an examination, and 
H) you found that the ribs had been fracturedf A. Yes.

Q. What was the appearance of the right side, all along the right 
sidet A. Well, I don’t just remember any further than to state that 
there was no abnormal apt>earanee, except, possibly, a little swelling of 
the joints, particularly the knee, and then the deformity of the knee; the 
knee is even now slightly deformed from an imperfect result of the ae- 

I tion of the lateral ligaments.
O. Then what did you find about the injury to the knee. What was 

the injury 1 A. There was pain.
O. What was the nature of the injury? A. Well, in a day or two 

•_> ' we diagnosed that the lateral ligapients had been torn, and, of course, I 
don’t know that there is anything else except pain and swelling.

Q. That would account for the deformity, of the position of the leg? 
A. Yes.

Q. What was'the matter with the hip? A. The hip, there wasn’t 
much to be seen in the hip, no more than it was sprained; he complain- 

, ed of severe pain in the hip, but I did not conclude that there was any in- 
/ /iurv apart from the sprain in the hin.

O. Then do you know whether he had suffered pain or not in con­
nection with this injury? A. Yes, he complained of pain right up to the 

3U present day.
O. Has he done so all along? A. Yes, to the best of my knowledge 

he has.
0. Then you saw him, did you not, just before this case came on for 

trial the last time it was adjourned f A. Yes.
O. I see from the note on my brief that that was on the 29th of March 

last? A. Yes.
O. That would be about the date? A. Yes.
O. You saw him then, and you saw him again to-day? A. Yes.
O. Then, comparing the condition then and now, how do you find 

40 him? A. I don’t think there is the slightest improvement; if anything, 
in my own mind, I would say that t ie right leg isn’t quite as well as it 
was then. I don’t think I could flex it as well to-dav as I could then, 
and besides, I had more hope that it would do better than it has done.

O. You put the X-rays on him, did not vou? A. Yes.
0. Whose suggestion was that? A. Hr. Rcazin’s.
Q. You put it on the wrong leg, didn’t you; what was that about the 

wrong leg—T heard something? A. No, it was put on the right leg.
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l)H. IH'XCAN A. MCPHERSON—EXAMINATIOX-IN-CHIF.F.

Q. I understood that somebody had examined the wrong leg for this 
accident. That was not you I A. No.

0. You did not make a mistake of that kind! A. No.
Q. Then, was there a Dr. Reazin who examined him? A. No, Dr. 

Reazin wasn’t there: but, if I remember right, the X-ray was suggested 
bv Dr. Reazin. Dr. Reazin met me there; in fact I think I told Dr. Reaz- 
in to meet me, as 1 concluded the case a serious one, and in order that 
he would know what was going on, I wanted him to meet me there. If 

10 I remember right, that is how he camp to he there.
y. Did von find any shortening of the leg at that time, do you re­

member? A. Well, I did, hut I did not attribute that to that present in­
jury. There was a shortening of either one of the legs, but I could not 
be sure now which one of them ; at least we concluded that, 

y. Was it your idea, nutting the X-rays on? A. No. 
y. Whose was it? A. It was Dr. Reazin’s.
y. Why was it done? A. Because he concluded there was an injury 

to the hip, and if I rememlier right. Dr. Webster had been there before, 
and if I remember right. Dr. Webster had concluded that there was more 

20 of an injury to the knee than to the hip.
y. Then you and Dr. Webster acted together in the case after that, 

did you ? A. Yes.
y. What did you do with the leg from the ankle to the hip? A. We 

put on what we call a long splint from the ankle right up to the hip.
y. And that was done how long after the accident? A. Oh, just a 

few days.
y. What do you say as to the result of those injuries to a man at his 

time of life as to the permanency or probability of his being able to do 
any work ? A. In my opinion that limb will be always—he will never 

30 make a perfect recovery, especially the knee-joint.
y. Then, if my learned friend will allow me. I will put this ques­

tion; don't answer it until I see. You heard what Dr. Webster said 
about pneumonia ? A. Yes.

O. Do you agree with him as to what he says about kill or cure in 
that case? A. I certainly do.

y. Were there any signs of the ill-effects from pneumonia when 
you examined him to-day ? A. I did not examine him for anv ill-effects 
of pneumonia to-day. because physically in my opinion he is better than 
what he was months ago; he looks better, that is physically, apart from 

*0 his right limb, and I don’t think the pneumonia has injured him a 
particle.

Q. Then there is a very important item I omitted from Dr. Webster’s 
evidence. Have you any account against him—doctor's account? A. Yes. 

Q. Have you a bill of it here? A. No, I have not.
(). How much is it, do you know ? A. Oh, I don’t know, I am sure, 
y. You would not like to make that up now? A. No.
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.TOH N" SHEER—EX AMINATION-IN-CH IEF.

Q. Will you kindly let me put that in afterwards.
His Lordship: Put it in as soon as you get it.
Dr. Webster's account marked Exhibit 1.
CROSS-EXAMINED by Mr. McCarthy:
Q. Did you attend the plaintiff while he had pneumonia. A. Not 

for the first few days. The physician who attended him was Dr. McLeod.
I was out of the city, and on my return I took over the ease.

Q. Was it a bad attack f A. I understand it was a fairly bad at­
tack; it was pretty well over by the time I got back.

JOHN SHEER, sworn. Examined by Mr. Gamble:
Q. What is your occupationt A. Tinsmith.
0- Were you a passenger on the King street ear at the time the ac­

cident hapjienod to the plaintiff ? A. Yes.
Q. Where were you standing! A. Standing on the back of the ear, 

back of the motor.
Q. That is on the platform? A. Yes.
Q. Why weren’t you sitting down? A. There was no room to sit 

down; the seats were all full.
Q. People standing up besides you? A. Yes.
Q. About what time was that? A. Alsiut half-past five.
Q. Then there was a trailer on the ear, was there? A. Yes.
Q, Speaking generally of the car and the trailer, were they crowded 

or otherwise?
His Lordship: We have nothing to do with the trailer.
Mr. Gamble: Yea, my Lord, because the charge is that in turning 

on the power it strained the controller.
Mr. McCarthy: There is nothing in the pleadings about the strain­

ing of the trailer.
Mr. Gamble: There is in the particulars.
His IvOHDHHIP: The car was overloaded.
Mr. McCarthy; 1 thought he meant the controller was overloaded.
Mr. Gamble: Q. Then you say it was crowded? A. A pretty fair 

load on both cars.
Q. Then will you tell me after the cars stopped—the ear did stop on 

the west side of Rherbourne street? A. Yes.
Q. Will you tell me what occurred after that? A. It started off, 

and it just got east, about just over the switch on the east side of Rher­
bourne street and it gave a kind of a jerk and gained more speed, and 
then there was an explosion, and the car all filled with smoke, and they 
were all jumping off.

Q. The car filled with smoke and tliev were all jumping off ? A.
Yes.

Q. Many people jump off the ear? A. Quite a few. There was a 
string of them all along the street.
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JOHN SHEER—EXAMIXATIOX-IX-CHIEF.

Q. Down on the pavement ? A. Yes.
Q. Lying down or walking amund do you mean Î A. There was no 

walking about, they fell.
Q. Do you know whether there were others injured besides the 

plaintiff? A. I eould not tell you.
Mr. McCarthy: We have nothing to do with that.
His Lordship: If they were hurt, then they will sue for it them­

selves.
10 Mr. Gamble: Unless they have been paid, my Lord.

His Lordship: We have nothing to do with that here.
Mr. Gamble: Mv reason, mv Lord, to show the wav in which they

fell.
His Lordship : The witness has told you that.
Mr. Gamble: Q. There was a string of people on the street, on the 

south side of King street? A. Yes.
Q. Was there anything visual, anything visible to the eye that was 

alarming at all? A. There was a flash when the explosion occurred.
Q. Any smoke? A. The car was full of smoke.

20 Q. In expressing a view as to the effect that that condition would 
have on people, what would you say ?

His Lordship: Do not answer that question. Is this man being call­
ed as an expert?

Mr. Gamble: No, my Lord.
His Lordship: Then I do not know what the question means?
Mr. Gamble: What has your Lordship in mind as an expert?
His Lordship: You have asked him to express a view.
Mr. Gamble: As to whether it was alarming or not. I don’t want 

to put the words in his month. If your Lordship will allow me to put it
30 that way, whether it was terrifying-----

His Lordship: I do not think so. You can ask him what kind of an 
explosion it was, to describe the explosion.

Mr. Gambij;: Does your Lordship rule that I cannot ask the wit­
ness whether it was naturally alarming?

His Lordship: Certainly.
Mr. Gamble: Your Lordship will allow me to have it noted that I 

have asked the question.
His Lordship: I have no hesitation in ruling it out. You can ask 

questions as to what he heard or saw ; his opinion on it I don’t care about.
,0 Sir. Gamble: I think I can give your Lordship authority for that. 

I think I am right, but I may have forgotten.
Q. What was. if anything, between you and the end of the car where 

you were standing on the platform? A. A glass frame.
Q. Windows? A. Yes.
Q. Did you see the plaintiff fall? A. I seen him fall.
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JOHN SHEER—CROSS-EXAMINATION.

Q. Did he jump off? A. I could not sav that. 1 just wen him as he 
hit the pavement.

Q. How did he fall ; in what position ? A. Fell on his side.
Q. Did you see anybody else jumping off near Fleming f A. Yes. I 

could not sav whether they were near him or not. but there was a lot got 
off before him and after.

0. That was after the explosion and this illumination and smokef 
A. Yes.

10 Q. Then you saw the ear on fire, did youÎ And the firemen put it 
outf A. Yes.

Q. Then did you see the motorman at any time! A. I seen him 
after the firemen had been there ; i seen him get into the motor, get in­
to the vestibule.

Q. Where the controller is! A. Yes.
Q. Then was the brake applied! A. It did not seem like It; the ear 

was running along free.
CROSS-EXAMINED by Mr. McCarthy:
Q. You are not very observant; you did not see the two girls sit-

•2u ting beside Mr. Fleming with two vacant seats there! A. Yes.
Q. If you had seen them, of course, you would have gone and occu­

pied that seat! A. I don’t know. I got on at Yonge street.
Q. Mr. Fleming told us that there were only two in his seat besides 

himself! A. I could not tell you.
Q. Now you were standing on the back! A. Yes.
0. You remember stopping at Sherbourne street! A. Yes.
Q. Now when was your memory jogged about all this! Did you tell 

anybody about it at the time! A. I told the people when I went home.
0. What i>eople ! A. Mother and father.

30 Q. Are they the only people you have told ! A. 1 don’t think so. I 
told a few.

Q. What I mean is, you were telling everybody about it. that called 
it to vour mind, of what took place? A. I can remember took place, he- 
eause I seen it all.

0. You have a good memory f A. Yes.
Q. You remember what took place on that day. How many people 

were standing on the back platform with you! A. Well, the seats were 
all full, and there was a few standing behind me, and one standing in 
front of me.

40 Q. I am only asking you about the back platform. How many people 
were on the back platform with you ! A. There was four of us standing 
up and the rest sitting down.

Q. Whereabouts were you standing on the back of the car? A. Right 
on the edge of the ear, right next—there was a fellow standing there, 
and I was standing next to him.
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JOHN BHEKH—CHOW-EXAMINATION,

Q. What do you mean by there t A. Right on the outside, and I 
was standing on the outside next to him.

Q. You were standing two from the outside step"? A. Yes.
Q. You say the ear stopped at Sherbourne street? A. Yes.
Q. And it was 5.30 in the afternoon? A. Around that.
Q. And some people got on and some got off? A. I did not notice

that.
Q. Then the ear started, and it went across the intersection at the 

10 usual rate, did it? A. Well it started off and then gained speed and 
there was a jerk.

Q. What I mean is, it went across the intersection of Sherbourne 
street and then you said it gained speed? A. Yes.

Q. And then there was a jerk ? A. Yes.
Q. And then there was an explosion ? A. Yes.
Q. What kind of an explosion was it? A. A loud report, and then 

a lot of fire and smoke.
Q. Just one report ? A. I don’t know whether there was one or 

more, but it was a loud report.
20 / Q. You did not notice anything, I presume, up until you heard the

renprt ? A. I notice the car gained speed.
Il Q. All ears gain speed after they have stopped ; they have got to 

gim speed again. A. Well, the car started, and it gave a jerk after it 
lrajll started.
II Q. And then you heard this report? A. Yes.

( Q. You don’t know whether it was one, two or three reports ? A. 
No.

Q. Your memory isn’t good enough for that. The plaintiff told us 
there was “bang. bam', hang.” Did you hear that, or just one loud re- 

30 port ? A. I heard one loud report.
0. What did you do? A. I got over to the side of the car.
(). To the edge of the- ear? A. Yes.
Q. You were on the edge all ready? A. No, I was standing the first 

one in.
Q. So you got over to the edge? A. Yes.
Q. Where was the* conductor? A. I could not say where he was. I 

did not notice him.
(.). Did you get off the ear or stay on it until it stormed ? A. I stayed 

in until it stopned, it was pretty near stopped, and then I got off.
40 O. What did you do when you got off? A. Went over to the kerb 

and stood there.
Q. Now, when you went over to the kerb did you see the conductor? 

A. No, sir.
Q. Did you see the motorman ? A. Yes.
Q. Where did you see him? A. I seen him getting in thé vestibule 

of the car.
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A. Yes.
A. Well, when the firemen

10

A. No. 
A. Yes,

20

JOHN SHAW—CROSS-EXAMINATION.

Q. Did you see him come out of the vestibule ? A. No.
Q. Was the door opened î A. I could not say whether the door was 

opeii—yes, the door was open.
Q. You saw’ him go inside the vestibule ?
Q. That was after the fire wTas put out ? 

livere there.
Q. Now, did you see anybody ellse come up before the firemen got 

there and break into the vestibule Î A. No.
Q. You never saw that at all? A. No.
Q. You were standing there in front of the ear looking at everything 

that took place? A. I was standing beside the car, not in front of it.
Q. Beside the ear? A. Yes.
Q. Did you see any man running after the car ahd break into the 

door? A. No.
Q. Did you see anybody throw water in with pails? A. No.
Q. You never saw the motorman come out of the vestibule ?
Q. And you were standing there all the time, were you? 

but I wasn’t looking at the car all the time.
Q. Did you see the flames put out? A. I don’t know whether I seen 

them put out; I seen the firemen get out.
Q. You just stood on the kerb the whole time? A. Yes.
Q. That is all you did? A. Yes.
Q. And you did not see any people break in the door; you did not 

see any man running after the car? A. No.
Q. And yet you were standing there all the time? A. Yes.
Q. How long was it before the firemen came? A. Oh, alwmt five 

minutes.
Q. Was the car still burning "hen they came ? A. I did not notice 

30 that. There was a lot of smoke in there.
Q. What did they do? A. I don't know what they done. I saw the 

firemen getting out.
Q. But you don’t know what it was they did. How far did the car 

run past Sherbourne—where were you standing on the kerb? A. I was 
standing on the corner of Princess and King.

Q. How far was that past Sherbourne street ? A. Oh, about 100 
yards, I should judge. - " w’-"’

Q. Where was it that the plaintiff fell off; where was the car? A. 
T^b car was about three-quarters east, of Sherbourne in the block?

40 ■ ! Q." Just three-quarters of what ? A. The distance between Sher­
bourne and Princess street.

Q. Did you see the ladies who shoved him off? A. No, sir.
Q. You did not see him until he was on the ground ? A. I seen him 

just as he hit the ground.
I.Q. How fast was the car going then? A. When he fell off?
|Q. Yes? A". It was going more than four miles an hour.

7v7z>.
v /

_
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MAX COLIS—KXAMIXATIOX-IX-CHIKF.

Q. And it gradually came to a stop? A. Yes.
Q. You said you got off aud st(*id on the sidewalk op|s>site tile ear, 

but you never saw very much that took placet A. Yes.
Q. Then you had not got very much to tell father and mother when 

you got home ? A. Quite a hit.

MAX <’(>LIR, sworn. Examined by Mr. Gamblk:

Q. Mr. Colis, what is your occupationf A. Barber.
Q. Your place of business is right here where this accident took 

10 placet A. Yes.
Q. Did you see the accident t A. Yes.
Q. What state were the cars in so far as the people on them were con­

cerned t A. Well, it was in full motion, the ear was in full motion.
Q. No; I mean how many people were on the car ? A. It was 

crowded.
Q. And the trailer, toot A. Yes, it was all crowded.
Q. Where were you standing? A. At the door.
Q. You better tell us your own story. A. As I was standing on 

that day at the door of my barber shop, 1 seen the car cross the tracks on 
20 to King and this blew up on tire and the smoke went right in to the ear, 

so that people was crossing over one another to try to get off the car, 
and I saw a lady fall off and 1 went to get her up. and I seen this old 
gentleman falling down with his head on the street, so I went and pick­
ed him up and laid him down at 171 King street on a lounge there.

Q. The lounge was out on the sidewalk? A. No, by the window.
Q. On the sidewalk? A. Yes.
Q. Did the explosion sound loud? A. Yes, it blew right up.
O. Have you been on the street ear when the fuse has blown out? 

A. No, 1 was on a ear sometime as on that car.
30 K. Did you ever hear a fuse blow up, did you ever hear an explo­

sion on a car? A. Yes.
Q. Did you ever hear anything like that ? A. No; it was like a bul­

let went up.
0. What nationality are you ; what language do you speak ? A. Jew.
Q. What language do you speak? A. Hebrew.
(). By this you mean a cannon? A. A cannon, yes.
0. It was very loud? A. Yes.
Q. Did you pick anvone else up liefore you picked up the old man? 

A. Yes, I picked up a young lady.
?0 Q. Were there any other people on the street that had tumbled out 

of the car or came out of the car? A. Yes. quite a few.
Q. Stretched out on the street ? A. Yes.
No cross-examination.
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JOSEPH BORNI8K1—CROSS-EXAMINATION.

JOSEPH BORN1SKI, sworn. Examined bv Mr. Gamble:
Q. What is your occupation t A. I keep a barber shop.
Q. Is your barber shop anywhere near where this accident hap­

pened ? A. Yes, it is right in the same block.
Q. On the south side of King street east of Shcrhourncf A. Yes.
Q. Now will you tell me what you saw or heard of this accident Î A.

I was cutting a fellow’s hair at the time, and then I heard a big hang like 
and then hr scared me and the fellow sitting in the chair. He jumped 

10 off the chair, and then I just went outside and I saw a car on fire, the 
front of a car on fire, and a lot of smoke all over the car, and the car 
coming, passing my store, and there was a lot of women and men jump­
ing off the ear and the women was falling out.

Q. That was the people in the car were coming out of the cart A.
Yes.

Q. The people in the car were coming out of itf A. Yes.
Q. Was there any smoke in the IkkIv of the car, inside the cart A.

Yes.
Q. Was there a man—von were telling something alsmt a man that 

M was coming into your shop at the timet A. Yes, there was a man coin­
ing in at the time when the hang was and hr got scared so he jumped 
back.

Q. When that hang went off he jumped back seared f A. Yes.
Q. Did you see the motorinan at all f A. Yes, when I went out I 

aWw the motorman running after the car.
1 Q. Did you see anything of him after that* A. He had been running 
after the ear.

Q. You saw him running after the car after that? A. Yes.
Q. Where did the car stop? A. Hi^ht near Princess street.

SO Q. Did you see Fleming fall out? A. Yes, I saw him falling out 
right at the same time everybody fell out.

Q. Where was that! À. It was about three or four disirs from my 
store, east.

Q. And your store, what is the number of your store? A. 265.
O. Three or four doors east of 265? A. Yes.
Q. That is where Yappi’s store is? A. Yes, right near Yappi's 

store.
CROSS-EXAMINED by Mr. McCarthy:
i). You sav you saw the motorinan jump off the ear? A. Yes.

40 Q. How did you know whether it was the motorman or the conduct­
or? A. Well, I could see that he had not a box in his hand that he keeps 
his tickets in.

Q. Had he his hat on? A. No, he had no hat on.
Q. Was the ear going at the time? A. Yes.
Q. Yon saw him running after it, did you? A. Yes.
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ANDREW MCFARLAND—EXAMINATION-IN-CHIEF.

Q. Did he catch it? A. I did not notice that, because I just saw the 
people falling out, and he was running after the car, and then I got the 
man, and got into the store and was doing my work again.

Q. What you first heard was a bang? A. Yes.
(j. Then you had a man in the chair, hadn’t you? A. Yes.
Q. Shave or haircut? A. Haircut.
Q. So then you went straight to the door? A. Yes.
Q. And when you got to the door the car was going past? A. No, it

10 was out of the store, and I went outside.
Q. When you got to the door of vour shop, the car was coming 

along? A. No. I went out through the door and I looked a little hit 
west and I saw her coming.

Q. Tlu-n you stood there until she passed ? A. Yes.
Q. You say you saw the motorman running alongside of the car? 

A. No. I did not see him running alongside. When I saw him he was 
just running after it.

Q. What part of the car was he jumping off? A. The front of the
car.

20 O. The vestibule ? A. No. the front.
0. Was he jumping off the place where the motorman is? A. Yes.
Q. Out of the door? A. Yes.
O. Of the place where the motorman is? A. Yes.
0. You saw him coming out of the door? A. Yes.
O. Then you saw him runnin" alongside? A. Yes.
0. Did he get hack to the door again? A. No, I did not see that. I 

just saw him runnin" after it.
Q, Then you went hack and finished the haircut ? A. Yes, I done 

mv work, yes.
30 RE-EXAMINED by Mr. Gamble-.

Q. Had the man von saw coming off the car a fare box in his hand? 
A. No.

ANDREW MrFARLAND, sworn. Examined by Mr. Gamble:

0. Mr. McFarland, what is your occupation? A. Laundry business.
Q. Did you happen to be in the vicinity of this accident on the 10th 

of August, 1910? A. Yes.
Q. Then where were you just at the time—did you hear a report? 

A. Yes. I was at the corner of King and Sherbourne.
O. Which corner ? A. The southwest corner, in the rear of the car.

40 Q. Will you describe the sort of report it was, and what you saw af­
terwards? A. Well, it was a very loud report, and the car seemed to go 
along prettv fast, gained speed.

Q. Was there anything else besides the report? A. Well, there was 
regular jar. The car to catch up speed went very fast on the street.



ANDHKW MCFARLAND—CR088-EX A MIN ATION.

Q. Did you see anything of smoke or anything of that kind? A. 
On the wire I saw fire.

Q. You were behind? A. Yes.
Q. You have been on ears when they have stopped when the blow­

ing out of a fuse has occurred ? A. Yes.
Q. How could you compare this noise to that f A. This was a very 

loud report.
Q. It was not the same as that at all f A. No; it was a louder report 

10 than that.
Q. Did you see anything of what occurred to the passengers in the 

• ear f A. I was looking right at the ear, and I seen the passengers get­
ting thrown out by the other passengers and they were all being seat- 
tered on the street, and 1 ran in to the seeond door up the street depart­
ment and for the ambulance.

O. You saw the people, as you sav, crushed out into the street Î A. 
They were all dropping out on the street as the car was going.

CROSS-EXAMINED by Mr. McCarthy:
Q. This apparently was something you had never seen la-fore in a 

20 street car? A. No.
(). You never heard any report as loud as that or never saw fire be­

fore that on a car; it was something extraordinary? A. Something ex­
traordinary.

Q. You never saw anything happen like that before? A. No.
Q. Did you sav you were a laundry man ? A. Yes.
Q. Were you standing with your horse 1 A. I was down on Sher­

is mine street ; I was standing there ; I was on the pavement.
Q. At that time of night there are a good many people collected 

along the street waiting to get on the ears? A. The ears stopped at the 
30 other side.

Q. Did you see anv people running after the car after the explosion 
took place? A. I don’t think so.

Q. You describe it as the car starting from the west side of Sher- 
bourne street crossing over the intersection and then there was an explo­
sion, and the ear seemed to gain speed ? A. After it crossed Hherlmnrnc.

Q. And then after the explosion, yon say there was fire on the wire, 
smoke in the ear and fire in the ear, and the pontile began to climb out. 
How far did the car go before it stopped? A. Well, it went down to 
near Princess street.

■10 Q. Did you go on down ? A. No. I went in to telephone for the am­
bulance. And then 1 came ont and then I picked mi the passengers and 
helped to put them in the ambulance, and Mr. Fleming. I carried him.
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LtLLIAN RIPLEY, sworn. Examined by Mr. Gambie :
Q. Do you remember the accident on King street east of Sherbourne 

street on the 10th August, 1910? A. I guess I do.
(). Whv would you remember it? A. I had my shoulder dislocated.
Q. Which wav were you going? A. I was going east.
Q. Were you a passenger on the ear? A. Yes.
Q. What was the condition of the car as to passengers, the number 

of passengers? A. Well, it was just between half-past five and a quart- 
10 or to six and that was just the time we were leaving work, and there 

were several passengers on the car, in fact it was crowded ; it was only 
what I call a single car, one seat.

Q. The seats facing one way? A. Yes.
<>. Were you on the car on which the explosion took place? A. Yes.
(). Had you a seat? A. No.
Q. Yon had to stand up? A. I was on one end in that seat; there 

was alunit five or six standing, and all the seat was filled.
Q. What hannened when you got on the cast side of Sherbourne 

street? A. Well, we had not gone very far and there seemed to be a jerk, 
20 a jerk of the car, and then the explosion, and then there was a kind of 

flames.
O. Anv smoke? A. Yes, there was lots of smoke.
Q. What do you say as to the size of the explosion? A. Well, I 

don’t know whether there was two or three; it seemed to continue for a 
while.

Q. Was it loud? A. Very loud.
O. Then how did the people in the car behave? A. Well, they got 

frightened, and they made a nish for getting out, and evervbodv had to 
go out that was at the end; you had not a chance to hang on at all; it 

30 was a terrible crush all in a minute; everybody had to clear off that 
was on the end, thev could not help it.

0. Did you step out gracefully, or were you assisted out? A. Well, 
the conductor had just taken my fare, and he fell off the same time I did, 
but where he got to I don’t know; he wasn’t laying down with me.

(). He was fired off: you crushed him off? A. I guess I did.
O. And the neople behind you" crushed you off? A. Yes, that is so.
O. Well now, what seat were you sitting in? A. I was not sitting.
Q. I beg vour pardon; what seat were you standing in? A. I can 

hardlv sav- perhaps it would he the third or fourth.
40 0. From the front or baek? A. I would not be sure which it was,

hut 1 was not very far from the front.
O. Now, you have travelled on the street cars a good deal? A. Yes.
O. Did you ever hear an explosion like this before? A. No, not on 

the street car.
Q. Did you see any of the offieials after that? A. Do you mean 

the conductor?
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Q. Yes, or the motormant A. Yes, I didn't nee him until he eame 
to me.

Q. Who is he t A. The conductor, and I asked him how the motor-
man was; oh, he says, he is all right, he got out-----

Mr. McCarthy: Don’t say what he said.
Mr. Gamble: Q. What did he dot A. He did not do anything, just 

took my name and address.
Q. Where was the car by that timet A. It had gone a good dis- 

10 tance. I could see the smoke as I lav on the sidewalk.
Q. And the conductor was there with yout A. Yes, he was there. 
Q. Then did you notice whether the brake was put ont A. I could 

not say.
No cross-examination.
NEIL McPHAIL, sworn. Examined by Mr. Gamble:
Q. Mr. McPhail, you were the motorman on this car at the time of 

this accidentt A. Yes.
Q. On the 10th of August, when the plaintiff was hurt! A. Yea.

/Q. Were you at that time a regular motorman f A. No, air.
(j. What did they call yout A. Well, they call it “extra.”
Q. Now, I would like to ask you to tell the jury what lessons you 

got in running a cart A. Well, I was shown how to run my car.
Q. You came from Buffalo here, did yout A. Yea.
Q. You had guile over to Buffalo after leaving the asylum where you 

were as an employeet A. Yes.
,0. And then when you went over to Buffalo, you eame hack to To­

ronto and annlied for a place on the Street Railway t A. Yes.
1 Q. What was the first thing you did towards qualifying as a motor- 

man t A. Well, l had to-----
•0 Q, You got on the car with the motorman who was to train you? A. 

Yea.
0. How many days were you with him on the cart A. I was with 

him for two weeks?
0. Two weeks? A. Yes.
Q. You were examined for discovery in this action, weren't von? A.

Y.v
0. Do you recollect how many days you said you were with him then? 

A. About two weeks.
O. Would you he likely to know better then how long you were with 

40 him then than now; would 1 he wrong in saving 10 days? A. Well, two 
weeks is the amount of days we spend on, about 12 davs.

Q. Now, he showed you what? A. Well, he showed me how to run 
my car.

Q. How did he show you that? A. Well, I had to take the brake in 
one hand and the controller in the other, and then he showed me, and 
then he showed me the first, the first thing it was. when T took hold of
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the car, lie showed me how to let go of my air and how to start my car.

<j. How many each of those 12 days were you with him? A. Well, 
I was with him about three days. We had different motormen.

Q. With the first motorman, how many days were you with him! A. 
Three days.

Q. How long were you with him each day A. The whole day.
Q. Did he teach you all the time he was going through the street ? 

A. You mean teach me to run the ear.
10 Q. Yes? A. Yes.

Q. And then he put you with one hand on the brake and your other 
hand on the controller? A. Yes.

Q. And you ran the car that day? A. No.
Q. How long did he do that sort of thing; how long was he teaching 

you? A. He was teaching me for three days, but I cannot tell how 
many hours each day.

Q. What car was it? A. I cannot tell you the number of the car.
Q. Was it Church street car, Bathurst street car or a King street 

car? A. It was a Bathurst ear.
20 Q. Would he be teaching you while the ear was full of passengers? 

A. Yes.
Q. You mean that? A. Yes.
Q. That he would teach you, tell you what to do while the car was 

full of passengers? A. Yes.
Q. All the time you were on, he was telling you what to do? A. Yes. 
0. On each day you were out with him? Â. Yes.
Q. Then that was three days for that man; then the next man took 

you for how long? A. For three days more.
Q. On what line was that? A. 1 think it was on Queen street.

30 0. In the same way? A. Yes.
Q. And then the next man. where did he take you? A. I think it 

was King street.
Q. In the same way? A. Yes.
Q. And then the next man took you where? A. On Roncesvalles. 
O. And that ended what you might call your practical education? 

A. Well, for the driving of the car.
Q. Now, you qualified, didn’t you, as a sort of electrician too? A. 

No, sir.
Q. Didn’t you go—that is not all the education you got for running 

40 your car? A. Yes, for the motorman.
Q. What else did you get? A. Well, I did not get anything more; 

and then I had to go to the electrician.
Q. How long were you at the electrician’s? A. About a couple of 

hours.
Q. Now, Mr. McPhail, why have you changed that time since you 

were examined. You gave on your examination for discovery half an 
hour for the time you were with the electrician-----
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Mr. McCarthy: I don't think my learned friend can use that.
Mr. Gamble: I think it is clear that the man is not being candid.
Q. Why have you changed that from half an hour to two hourst A. 

That is the time 1 go to the electrician’s shop, but I don’t say that was the 
time I spent learning the electrician work.

Q. Then how long were you learning the electrician work ? A. About 
two hours.

Q. Now, let me read what you said on your examination for diseov- 
!0 erv. You intended to say differently, did vont A. Yes.

Q. Then 1 find that you said there that you were ten days with the 
motorman learning the job. Now you say that is not true t A. Well, 
whatever two weeks is.

Q. That is question 36. Question 34 is: “You got on ear first, didn't 
you? A. Yes, and 1 stayed on the vestibule with a man that was to train 
men, and then when he got things quiet he started to learn me how to 
drive my ear and everything around it." A. Yes.

Q. “35. Q. And how long were you doing thatf A. 10 days." A. 
Well, you see we have about four different motormen to learn with, and we 

2 ; spend three days with eaeh one.
Q. That would make nine davsf A. Four men.
Q. I heg your pardon. Anyway what you said in vour examination 

you are correcting now by making it 12 days instead of 10. A. I never 
reckoned up how many days there were in the week.

Q. Now, let me read what you said about the electrician. Q. “49. 
And what time was it when you called to see him"—that is the question. 
“A: It was in the afternoon." I will go hark to question 43. “Did you 
spend more than 10 days altogether before you got your badge 1 A.
Yes, I spent 11 days altogether. 44. Q. Now, what did you do before 

30 you went to the electrician’s! A. Well, he showed me the several running 
positions on the controller, and told me how to feed my ear up and stop 
it. He showed me how to do when anything went wrong with the con­
troller. 45. Q. Where was this electrician when you saw him? He was 
in the shops—Down on Front street—I don't know what they call the 
street where the shop is generally situated, hut it is down in that direc­
tion. 46. Q. It is not what they call the car-barn, is it! A. No, sir. 
47. Q. It belongs to the Street Railway Company ! A. Yes. 48. Q. Ami 
what is the electrician’s name! A. I don’t know his name, sir. 49. Q. 
What time was it when you went to see him! A. It was in the afternoon, 

40 sir 50. Q. About what hour! A. About three or four o'clock. 51. Q. 
What hour did you leave him? A. About an half an hour afterwards. 
52. Q. You were with him about an half an hour? A. Yes.” Now was 
that true? A. Well, I said wrongly there. I said I was for about half 
an hour after he showed me.

Q. Although you answered the question that you were with him, not 
around there, “after he showed me,” but you were with him about half an 
hour, “ves.”
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Him Lorobhip: As I understand it, the witness says, after that he was 
there half an hour.

Mr. Gamble: Q. After the instructions of this man down there you 
were only half an hour! A. No, sir, it was between the time I spent with 
him and the time I was waiting on him.

Q. Two hours between the time you were waiting on him and the 
time lie started to tell you! A. No, sir, I said I was there half an hour 
before 1 seen my electrician.

10 Q. Half an hour before you saw him, although you say you were 
with him about half an hour? A. Well, I mean between the two.

Q. "74. Q. You were with him half an hour ! A. Yes. To. Q. l)n you 
think you ran swear to as much as half an hour, knowing you are on your 
oath? A. Well, 1 think so.” What do you say to that; how does this 
mateh with what you said nowt Well, we will let it go at that. That 
was back in November, 1909 f A. Yes.

Q. That would la* about 9 months before this aeeident took placet A.
Yes.

Q. And then when did you start to run as an extra man? A. Well, 
20 I got my badge given to me on the 22nd November.

Q. Have you got your badge? A. No, sir.
Q. It is on the 29th here; but you may lie right. And then you 

began to run as an extra man? A. Yes.
Q. Would you run all day long? A. Well, no, sir.
Q. How many trips do you think you would get a day? A. Well, it 

depended on the amount of work there was.
Q. Sometimes you would not get any trips? A. I don’t know about 

that, sir.
Q. You do know about that? A. I don't mean to say I know everv- 

30 body's business; I only know my own.
Q. 1 am talking about you: did you get every day? A. Yes.
Q. You had a ear every day t A. Yes.
Q. A trip every day? A. Yes.
0. From the 29th November? A. Yes.
Q. Where were you on the first and second of December? A. I 

cannot sav.
Q. Do you remember w here you were on the 9th, 10th, 11th and 12th 

of December? A. No, sir, 1 never keep any aeeount of it.
Q. Do you mean to swear now that you had a trip, a car in your 

40 charge on every day from the 29th of November up to the date of the ac­
cident? A. Yes.

Q. Do you swear that ? A. Yes.
Q. Did vou have a nine-hour dav everv dav during that time? A. 

No.
Q. Would you have one trip, perhaps, a day and no more? A. Well, 

it all depends on what time 1 started.
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Q. You might have one trip and you might have two trips! A.
Yes.

Q. But you were on regular runs up to the 10th of August t A. No. 
Q. Did you ever have any accident to your motor! A. No.
Q. Then on the day of the accident what had you been doing# A. I 

was running a car on King street.
Q. How many! A. Well, I only have the one ear.
Q. This was your second effort! A. Yes.

10 Q. Now, I don’t want the jury to get any wrong impression about 
vou—it would not be fair—so I want you to tell me, you were not an in­
mate of the asylum, were you, you were there as attendant on the inmates, 
weren’t you! That is right! A. Yes, I was attendant there, keener.

Q. You were an employee. I thought it w as fair to say that because 
it might injure you. Then," will you tell me, on that trip that you took 
down King street, you got to Sherboume street about what time! About 
5.25 you stopped on the west side of Sherboume street! A. Yes.

Q. Then when you started, what did you do! A. Well, there was a 
switch open against me, and 1 had to give my controller one position to

•JO bring me over the switch.
Q. That is done by electricity! A. By an electric switch.
Q. After you had done that,"what did you do! A. Well, 1 threw my 

power off and after I got over the intersection 1 started to put the power 
<jln again.

j Q. Now, where was vour power when this explosion occurred! A. 
It Vas only in the second position.

I Q. Second was it! A. Yes.
Q. Was it the third! A. No, sir.
Q. Aye! A. No, sir.

30 Q. Is your memory so bad, have you forgotten all about this matter! 
A. Well, I don’t say I have got a very good memory.

Q. What you said at question 182 was that you “proceeded slowly 
over the intersection and then I threw my power off ; 1 started to build my 
car up in the usual way, and I got it to second or third position after I 
got over the intersection, and all of a sudden it blew up." Is that right! 
A. Well, I was about second position when she blew up.

Q. Why do you get at the third position! A. Well, I cannot leave it 
at the third, too.

Q. Quite properly! A. Yes.
40 Q. And then it blew up! A. Yes.

Q. Were you scared! A. Well, not very much.
Q. What did you do! A. Well, I threw the power off.
Q. That is on your controller! A. Yes.
Q. You threw the power off your controller! A. Yes.
Q. Anything else! A. No, sir.
Q. Did von not try to get hold of your hood switch! A. Well, I 

could not-----
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Q. You did try to get at your hood switch? A. Yes.
Q. But you could not get it? A. No.
Q. XVhat state was it in? A. Well, the fire was all up around it.
(jj. Was all up around the hood switcht A. In the vestibule.
Q. As I understand it, as you stand in the vestibule you have your 

left hand on your controller? A. Yes.
Q. Then up here at the side of the controller is what is called the 

hood switch? A. Yes.
10 Q. The automatic cut-out; and if you could have got at that and shut 

it off. if it was possible to do that, you would have been able to shut off the 
electricity from the cart A. Well, I cannot say that.

y. You cannot say whether, if you got at your hood switch and open­
ed it you would shut off the electricity from the car or not, is that true? 
A. Yes.

Q. You do not know? A. Acs.
O. But you tried to open it up anyway, you tried to open the hood 

switch ? A. Yes.
Aj. Is there anything else you did? A. Well, I came to the vestibule 

20 door,and I shouted to the passengers not to get off the car.
IU. Was there anything else you did to the machinery of the ear 

heflre that? A. No, sir.
Q. You did not do anything else except shut off your controller and 

try to reach the hood switch? A. Yes.
y. You did honestly try to do that. Then you threw—you went to 

the vestibule door, and what did you do there? A. Well, I opened the 
vestibule door going on to the street, and I got the handle rail and I 
shouted in to the passengers not to jump off.

Q. Anything else you did? A. No, sir.
80 U. You shouted? A. No, sir.

y. Well, you do seem to have the worst memory. Didn’t you shout 
anything else? A. I told them not to jump off the car.

y. Did you shout anything to your conductor? A. I told him to pull 
the pole off.
fj y. Where did the explosion, as far as you can tell, come from? A. 

Keom the controller box.
y. Was it a loud report? A. Well, no, sir, it was not very loud.
O. Did von hear what the other witnesses said; you don’t agree with 

them? A. I heard what they said; but it might not sound to them the 
40 same as it did to me,

O. You were not very much alarmed f A. No, sir.
0. Did you see the conductor to tell him of the explosion? A. No, 

né? after the explosion.
‘ Q. Did you see the people all out on the road? A. Yes.

0. Now, if you had taken the pole off, what effect would that have 
hid on the ear? A. It might have taken the power from the car.
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y, Y'ou know that muchl A. Yes.
y. If you take till- pole off it takes the power from the ear f A. Yes. 
Q. Then you saw the ear afterwards# A. Yes, sir. 
y. What was there that was injured alsmt it# A. I ennnot say; I 

don’t know.y. Don’t you know whether the controller was injured or not f A. 
Well, it is not a uiotonnen’e business to know that.

y. I am not asking you what your business was; I am only asking if 
you knew the controller was injured# A. No, sir.

y. You don’t know what was injured# A. No, sir. 
y. Then the ear was on tire, wasn’t it# A. Yes. 
y. Between the vestibule and the other part of the ear# A. Yes. 
y. And the smoke was going hack into the ear# A. I don’t know, 
y. You don’t know about that# A. No.
y. Then the ear went on past the other side of Princess street, didn't 

it# A. Well, 1 cannot exactly say whether it went past Princess stn-et or 
not. y. Someone pulled the |xile off, didn't they? A. Yes. 

y. Who did# A. Well, 1 think it was—I cannot exactly say whether 
it was the tire brigade or who.

y. Hut the fire brigade was there? A. Well, there was sent
for them; I could not tell you whether they were there or not.

Q. Didn’t you see any firemen there# A. I saw one.
(J. You know a fireman was there anyway f A. Yes.
(J. What did you find was burning# A. Well. I could not say; the 

tire came out from the controller.
Q. Yes, but after your pole was pulled off it did not come from the 

• controller# A. It was still burning.
Q, And then what about the fin- under the floor where the explosion 

came from# A. I could not tell you about that, 
y. You don’t know about that# A. No.
(j. Did vou not see whether there was any fire or smoke coming from 

there# A. No.
Q. You don't recollect seeing anv tire or smoke coming from there# 

A. No.
(). Then they put the fire out# A. Yes.
O. Did you have that ear again# A. Yes.
Q. Is the same controller on it# A. I cannot exactly say that.
Q. Do you mean to tell me you do not know whether it had the same 

controller that was on at the time of the accident# A. Of course, it 
might have been the same box, it might be the same machine, and it might 
not he. I could not tell that.

0. You can't tell what controller you have on there# A. No. 
y. You never find that sometimes a car does not run as well as at 

other times; you say to some of the other fellows getting on the car, “how 
is she running"; you have known that# A. Yes.

5425
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Q. Don't you know what you are talking about when you are saving 
that! A. Well, it is a word that often passes between ourselves; we ask 
how things go just like a man running an automobile, just ask him how 
things go to-day.

Q. You don’t know what number your controller is, or the kind of a 
controller it is? A. No.

Q. You did not take notice to see whether that controller had been 
taken off the ear or not ? A. No.

10 Q. What rate would the ear he running at? A. I cannot say.
Q. Now I believe you are trying to keep back information you gave 

before. What has put you in this attitude towards the plaintiff? A. 
Nothing.

Q. Now, in your Examination for Discovery at question 264 you are 
asked : “Then what rate were you going? A. Do you mean what rate of 
speed? 265. Q. Yes. A. Between 4 and 5 miles an hour.” What 
obliterated that from your mind? A. I did not quite understand what you 
said.

Q. You did not understand what I was talking about? A. I did not 
20 that time.

CROSS-EXAMINED by Mr. McCarthy:
Q. Now, Mr. MePhail, when did you leave the employ of the Toronto 

Railway Company? A. 22nd of May.
Q. This year? A. Yes.
(j. You tell me, Mr. MePhail, that you left the employ of the To­

ronto Railway Company in May of this year? A. Yes.
Q. And you went where? A. Montreal.
0. Have you been in Toronto since? A. No.
(}. Now. going hack to vour learning to be a motorman. you say you 

30 were for 12 days riding with four different motormen? A. Yes.
Q. On different routes? A. Yes.
Q. Had you different styles of ears from time to time? A. Yes.
Q. What were these four motormen who were directing you ? A. 

They were regular motormen.
Q. Did they show you the inside of the motor? A. Yes, the inside of 

the controller box.
I Q. The controller is the box which stands in front of you? A. Yes.
I <Q. And they showed you the inside of it? A. Yes.
/ IQ. Did they show you what to do in ease it got out of order? A. Yes. 

40 IQ- Did they instruct you about what they call the hood switch or eir- 
eiiif breaker? A. Well, the hood switch I generally alwavs rail it.

O. Did they instruct you how to operate that? A. Yes.
O. Did they instruct you how to feed up your controller? A. Yes.
Q. How were you told to feed your controller? A. I was told to feed 

it between two and three seconds between each position.
Q. That is, to put it on slowly inch by inch? A. Yes.
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y. Then you went down, you say, and spent koiiic time with the elec­
trician in the shop? A. Yes.

y. That was your examination? A. Yes.
y. Then you had been taught, as I understand you, by the inotormen f 

A//Yes.
/ y. And you went down to the eleetrieian's to see how much you 

lmew ? A. Yes.
y. Tell us what took place down there; did he show you, or ask you 

10 questions? A. Well, he took a controller !m>x and asked us to do certain 
,things for him, which we did.

y. He wanted to see how much the inotormen had told you while you 
Were under them.

Just to make sure you were competent to handle a motorf A.

After that you got your badge and went on the mad ( A. Yes.
You operated as extra motorman from November 22nd until 
A. Well, for three or four months after the accident.

After August t A. Yes.
20 Q. That would he about the end of the yearf A. Yes.

y. Just explain to us what you mean hv extra motorman ? I mean 
motormen are divided into regulars and what elsef A. Reliefs.

Now, the regular man is put down for certain ears? A. Yes. 
y. And the extra man turns up at the barns and is sent out in case the 
ar man does not turn up 1 A. Yes.

y. And we presume that the extra man, if he is prompt, gets more 
Ahfs than the regular niant A. Yes.

y. And prior to the accident had you been running pretty regularly 
on King streett A. Well, I cannot say 1 had been.

30 y. How long had you been running on King street ? A. Well, 1 for­
get—about the third or fourth time.

y. How long had you been running during the time you were with the 
Railway f A. I ran on King street pretty steadily for quite a time.

y. How many hours would you lie running a day ? A. I was doing 
about 8 hours and 42 minutes on it.

Q. For how long? A. Well, from the time I got my relief car in July 
-<-I didn’t stay any time on King street—wel" 
was on King for two or three months.

Q. Running 8 hours and 42 minutes a day?
40 y. When you got a steady car: what do you mean by that ? 

was relief, a step higher up.
y. That comes from time? A. Yes.
y. You were running regular man on relief car? A. Well, I was 

running relief—I was extra man and then I got changed from extra man 
up to relief man.

y. A relief man is practically a regular man, only he has a relief 
ink I A. Yes.

, after I got a steady ear 1 

A. Yes.
A. That
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Q. Now, coming down to the day of the accident, where did you take 
your car that day! A. I took it at Roncesvalles barns.

0. That is out in the «est end! A. Yes.
Q. Had you taken out a ear before that dayî A. I think so.
Q. You had a ear out that day, I understood you to savt A. Yes.
Q. What time did you take this car out! A. I took it out about 5 

o’clock.
. Q. Was that a relief ear! A. Yes.

•0 Q. That is about a pretty busy time of the night; they send out all the 
ears to pick up the crowd! A. Yes.

. Q. From the time you left Roncesvalles barns up to Sherbourne 
a/reel had you run your ear on different positions on the controller! A. 
zee.

Q. That is, you had a good many stops! A. Yes, quite a few.
Q. You would run full speed! A. Yes.
Q. Half speed! A. Yes.
Q. And all speeds! A. Yes.
0. You had a trailer on, I believe! A. Yes.

20 Q. Of course, you were picking up people all the time after you left 
the/corner of King and Yonge streets! A. Yes.

0. And when you got to Sherbourne street—I sup|>ose people had 
beelf getting on and off all the way along! A. Yes.

(j. And when vou got to Sherbourne street—you say you were stand­
by in the west side of Sherbourne street and you got the hell from the 
yanductor to go on! A. Yes.

Q. Now, you said something about the joint. Will you explain to the 
Jury what you mean by that! Sherbourne street is where the Belt Line 
fifo up! A. Yes.

30 Q. And the switch there operates by electricity! A. Yes.
Q. You operated on your controllers! A. Yes.
Q. And a Belt Line ear had gone ahead of you! A. Yes.
Q. And that left the joint so that if you continued you would go up 

Sherbourne street! A. Yes.
// Q. So you gave your ear----- A. One josition of the controller and
tfiat threw the switch back.

// Q. Then you ran on that one position until your ear crossed over the 
intersection! A. Yes.

Q. The ear pretty well loaded! A. Yes.
<0 0. What sort of a rail had you! A. Well, it wasn’t very good.

O. Was it a nice day! A. It was a nice day.
Q. You jiassed over the intersection; but you threw your power off, I 
ve ? A. Yes.
'Q. As soon as you got enough power to carry you over the intersee- 
' then you threw your power off! A. Yes.
Q. Then, having got over the intersection, you then began to feed 

vourBar up again? A. Yes.
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Q. Notch by notcht A. Yes.
Q. You had fed it to the second notch when this explosion took placet 

A. Yes.
' Q. Second or third notch when this took placet Hop- many notches 

arc there! A. There are 5 positions on the controller: 9 notches alto­
gether.

His Lorushii': You can feed it up to 9 notches before you get it to full 
speed t A. Yes.

I Id Mr. McCarthy: Q. Now. when you speak of a bad rail, you refer to a 
greasy railÏ A. Yes.

Q. You don't mean any defect in the metal t A. No.
Q. Now, just as you fed it then to the second position, you sav this ex­

plosion took placet A. Yes.
Q. It was a loud explosion! A. Well, it didn’t sound extra loud to 

me.
Q. You were in the vestibule, and there was glass all around f A.

Yes.
O, And the explosion was accompanied by flames, was it! A. Yes.

-0 V. It came from your controller box! Â. Yes.
Q. And shot up in your face ! A. Yes.
Q. And went right up to the roof of your vestibule! A. Yes.
Q. And you immediately turned off your power! A. Yes.
Q. Your hand being practically in the flames at the timet A. Yes.
Q. You turned off your power with your left hand and, then you say 

you tried to reach for your hood switch, which is on the upper left hand 
corner of your car, and the flames were so great that you couldn't cut off 
your hood switch; is that what you sav! A. Yes.

Q. The hood switch was burning at the timet A. Yea.
;io Q. You cannot sav whether the hood switch was open or closed ! A.

n//
O, You didn’t get your hand on it! A. No.

Those hood switches work automatically! A. Yes.
Or. Then, having shut your power off, and seeing you couldn’t reach 

y(ZuP hood switch, the next thing you did, you told my learned friend, was 
tty get down on the step and call to the people not to get off! A. Yes.

Q. And called to your conductor to pull the pole off f A. Yea.
Q. Had the flames spread at all by that time! A. They had spread 

quite a bit.
40 . Q. A lot of smoke in your vestibule! A. Yes.

j Q. Full of smoke! A. Yes.
jQ. Did you go back to the vestibule after you called out to the people! 

i. Yes.
IQ. Shut the door! A. Yes.
/ Q. Shut your door and went back to your 

th£ re until the car stopped î A. Y es.
vestibule and remained
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Then how were you taken outt A. Well, I felt pretty weak; I got 
oek of electricity, and somebody carried) me out on the street.
Q. That was after the car stopped# A. Yes.
Q. Now, after you opened the door and told the people not to get off, 

what did you go back into your vestibule again for? A. Well, I was wait­
ing to see the fire put out.

/Q. After you called to the people—you sav while the ear was still 
going you got on the vestibule steps and called to the people not to get off, 

10 tl**i you went back into your vestibule again. Why did you go back 
attain? A. To stop the ear.
' Q. What with? A. The air brake.

O. Did you try to get at the air brakes? A. Yes.
Q. And you couldn’t? A. No.
Q. Why ? A. The flame was still around it.
(/. Have you any other brake there liesides the air brake? A. Well, 

I don’t think there was a hand brake on that ear.
It was operated by air? A. Yes.
At any rate, you wern’t able to get your brake on, and the ear 

20 i-a nib/to a stop of its own motion? A. Yes.
You know, as a matter of fact, there is a brake handle on these 
A. Well, there is generally one of them in every ear. I didn’t 

take much notice to it.
Q. You cannot say whether there was one on this ear. At any rate, 

von went hack with the idea of trviu" to ston vour ear, and owing to the 
flames, you weren’t able to do so, and the ear came to a stop of its own 
accord? A. Yes.

Q. Now, having been taken out, after the ear stormed, did you go 
berk into your vestibule again at all? A. Well, I went back after a while, 

SO when the fire was out.
(). What were the conditions of the vestibule at that time? A. 

Well, it was pretty much out of order, to my appearance. I couldn’t ex­
actly «av what was the matter with it.

Q. Did you look inside the controller? A. No, sir.
Q. Did you look at the hood switch? A. No, sir, I didn’t examine 

nnv cart of the ear at all.
O. Was the woodwork burned ? A. Yes.
0. And the place was pretty well out of order as far as vou could 

see; and the ear was pushed down after that to the shed? A. Yes.
4,1 Q. Tf —’crience as a motorman. I suppose you have had hood

switches blow out with you before ? A. Yes.
X). Did you ever have anything like this before? A. No, I never 

had anything like this happen before.
' Q. Can you give us any idea of the cause of it? A. No.

Q. Did the noise or explosion or flame originate in the hood switch 
(ft down in the controller? A. Down in the controller.
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y. And in your experience you had never known such a thing to 
happen before? A. No.

Q. But you liave known, of course, as I say, of hood switches blow­
ing out! A. Yes.

RE-EXAMINED by Mr. Gamble:
y. Now, here is what you said on your examination : y. But

what did you do to stop your carf A. I put the brake on." When were 
you lving, then or now 1 (Witness hesitates.) That will do.

Mr. McCarthy: I think my learned friend shouldn’t read the one 
question against the witness like that, without reading the other.

His Lokiihhiv: I do not think it makes much difference. If you want 
to read it you can.

Mr. McCarthy: He told us first lie didn’t put the brake on; now 
he sa vs he did. All those questions should be read together.

His Iairdhhip: It is better when you are railing a witness not to 
make comments. I do not think that is a proper way to treat a witness. 
What you can do with a witness is, vou can say that at some other time 
lie made the statement that is inconsistent with the statement now made. 
That is the utmost you can do.
/ Mr. Gamble: 1 shall naturally bow to your Lordship’s judgment, 

but I still say that I have a right to say to a witness that lie is not telling 
til#1 truth now, or wasn’t telling it then, and I varied that by saying, 
‘‘When were you lying.”

His Lordship: That is objectionable. A witness may have some ex­
planation to make. You can draw his attention to the fact that he made 
an inconsistent statement at some other time, and then you can say, how 
do you reconcile it, can you reconcile it?

Mr. Gamble: He had an opportunity to do so, my Lord.
His Lordship: I know, but you say, “When were you lying!”
Mr. McCarthy : Now question 307. I think, should lie read: “Do you 

remember a few minutes ago you told me you couldn’t sav that you put 
the brake on? A. I said the brake stopped the car. I don't know. 308. 
Q. You don’t know whether you put it on or not. Now tell the truth 
some time?” Then. I say, “This is an examination for discovery, getting 
the facts from this witness. It isn’t a cross-examination.” Then Mr. 
Gamble says, “Tell the truth sometimes. A. I have told the truth all 
along, sir. 309. Q. Now, did you put on the brake or did you not? A. 1 
don’t know, sir.”

His Lordship: I can well understand a man being in a position of 
confusion. I think it is very objectionable to characterize the witness in 
that way.

.TAMES POOLE, Sworn. Examined by Mr. Gamble:
O. Mr. Poole, you are a fireman, are vou not? A. Yes.
0. Arc you a captain or colonel or K.C.B. ? A. Lieutenant.
Q. Did you have anything to do with this fire on the King St. car
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on the 10th August, 19101 A. We got a still alarm about it, and we 
went down there, and somebody had been throwing water on it, but we 
used the extinguisher on it.

Q. What did you find burning theref A. We found smoke earning 
up between the partition between the vestibule and the body of the car. 
That is what you call the bulk head, the smoke was coming up by what we 
call the bulkhead, the partition between the front and the back of the 
car.

10 Q. Then, was there any other tire or smoke anywhere t A. I raised 
the Isiurd with an axe onto the Im>x that runs along the aide of the car, 
and there was a small flame in there.

y. That is running from the controller around to the back of the 
ear? A. It runs like alongside of the sides.

y. Inside Î A. Yes.
y. Inside the earf A. There is a sloping board on it.
V. In the passenger part of the earf A. Yes.
y. Whereabouts did you find that f A. Wight close up to the vesti­

bule, just in the corner, a small blaze of wires.
20 (j. Right up in the cornerf A. Yes.

O. How did you put that out Î A. We just gave it a squirt with 
the tire extinguisher, with some water and acid mixture.

Q. Was there any other fire you found there ? A. No. Somebody 
had been throwing water on it before.

O. What condition was the place in—charredt A. Charred.
Mr. McCarthy: 1 was going to suggest that your Lordship should 

appoint, should you think well of it, say the engineer of the Ontario 
Railwav Hoard to inspect the appliances of a car similar to this ear for 
the purpose of advising the Court in the matter of this kind.

SO Mr. Gamble: I have a great deal of respect for my learned friend’s 
views, but I have no desire to go he fore the Railway Board.

Mr. McCarthy : Let the Court appoint an independent man to in­
spect these appliances.

Mr. Gamble: I wouldn't consent to it at this stage of the proceed­
ings. This isn’t the time for an application of that sort, and it is a 
somewhat unusual thing.

His Lordship: Are you attacking the tvne of controller that is usedÎ
Mr. Gamble: No, my Lord.
His Lordship : You sav this particular motor must have been in bad

40 shape.
Mr. Gamble: Your Lordship says. “Are you attacking the type of 

controller?” I say. no, I am not attacking the class of controller; I say 
this K.C. tvpe of controller is a good controller.

His Lordship: But you are attacking this particular machinet
Mr. Gamble: Yes. Then the next thing is the form of car, the nar­

rowness of the spare for the people to get out. That is a matter that
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anyone can see, so we don’t require an engineer to tell us alsmt that. I 
am only attacking the electricity so far as it is out of repair.

His Lordship: You are not attacking the equipment.
Mr. Gamble: I don’t know at the moment, my Lord. If it is not 

open to me, then I am not attacking it.
His Lohdhhip: In opening the ease you " " considerably from

your pleadings.
Mr. Gamble: There is an amendment to the pleadings, my Lord.

;o His Lohdhhip: I do not know, of course, what the issue is in the 
amendment.

Mr. MoCahthy: My point is this, my Lord, that in ease there are 
two opinions, one saying one thing and one another.

Mr. Gamble: I don’t think that anything like that can arise.
His Loudnhip: On the questions of fact I am going to let the ease 

go to the jury.
Court adjourned until Tuesday, the 26th inst., at 10 a.m.
Court resumed Sept. 36th, 1911.
Mr. Gamble: I suppose mv learned friend will admit the doctor’s 

■2, hill. *90?
Mr. McCarthy: Yes.
Ur. McPherson’s hill marked Kxhibit 2.
WILLIAM FLEMING, Sworn. Examined by Mr. Gamble:
0. Mr. Fleming, you are a son of the plaintiff ? A. Yes.
O. Do you remember his accident some 25 years agof A. Yes.
Q. What has been your father’s habits and ability in regard to work 

since that timet A. Well, the time he met with the accident to the other 
leg. that is the one hurt 25 years ago, that is the left leg. why he never 
laid up, he never had a octor. I never knowed him to have a doctor, 

;10 and hadn’t him until the present accident.
Q. During all that time was he at work ? A. Yes, he done all kinds 

of work, railroading, well digging, and excavating and timber work, and 
everything.

Q. After that accident ? A. Yes.
No cross-examination.
WALTER R. McCRAE, Sworn. Examined by Mr. Gamble:

Mr. McCrae, you are in the employ of the Toronto Ry. Co.Î A. 
I ail. yes.

<), What is vour position there? A. Master mechanic.
40 / G| What are the duties in connection with that position? A. The

sjipeUt ision of rolling stock, building of new rolling stock and equipping 
of low rolling stock.

1 /Q. How long have you been with them ? A. I have been with the
company about 16 years—about 18 or 19 years at the business altogether. 

( Q. You have to do, I suppose with the inspection of the cars of the

0046
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//companyf A. Well, 1 don’t inspect the ears personally myself, except 
, / it is something special.

Q. What would you call something specialf A. Well, putting on 
some new device or some new improvement or some attempted improve­
ment. going to la* made, probably some trouble in the car.

Q. .The inspection is in your department! A. Yes.
Q. You have general supervision over it? A. Yes.
Q. Then would you tell me how many inspectors you had at the 

10 Honcesvalles ham at the time that this car was there—perhaps I could 
help vou—what was the number of the car? A. The ear that was in this 
accident ?

0. Yes! A. 966.
Q. Now, that ear, I think you told me when you were examined be­

fore. was at the Honcesvalles barn the night before the accident! A. Yes.
Q. And at Honcesvalles barn there were some 90 ears stored that 

night f A. I believe so—thereabouts.
Q. And that the inspectors employed in that barn consisted of one 

/foreman, two oilers, two hrakemen—bv which I presume you mean brake 
20 inspectors? A. Yes.

O. One journal oiler inspector—or journal inspector, 1 suppose, that 
would he more correct—one motor inspector, one truck inspector—now, 
does that cover the entire staff of inspectors! A. There is a controller 
inspector; there is a man on controllers.

Q. I don’t see that you say that when you were giving me your ac­
count of the matter lieforc. In question 256 vou gave me a memorandum 
—it was a memorandum of inspectors! A. That was an oversight on my 
part if I didn't mention it.

Q. If you made a mistake, why, all right! A. Yes, there is an in- 
30 speetor of controllers.

Q. Then the duties of inspector would be to go through the different 
parts—take the controller inspector, for instance—to go through the con­
troller and see that it is in proper operating order to go out the next 
day ! A. Yes, and do any minor reiwnrs that were to lie done.

0. How many parts arc there in a controller! A. There arc a great 
many parts.

Q. Well, give it to us, just roughly speaking! A. I don’t know 
that I ever counted them, but I should sav that there was a couple hun­
dred parts, if it was all taken down.

40 Q. The controller opens—vou have two doors that open the control­
ler, or one door, is it! A. There is an outside door.

Q. That opens the controller, exposing a certain number of parts! A.
Yes.

0- The fingers and contact point ? A. There is what you might call 
an inside door—we call it an arc divider. After you open the outside 
door, then you see the fingers exposècClhe contact fingers.
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Q. There is first of all the outside door and then another door open­
ing again ? A. Known as the are dividers.

/ Q. And that exposes certain parts of the machine that require to he 
lowed over by the inspector? A. Requin* the most attention.

Q. When you say require the most attention, what do you mean by 
that# A. They are the moving parts, the contact parts.

Q. Then the other parts of the controller do not require sii much 
attention? A. They are permanent parts.

<). And not likely to get loose? A. No.
<). That is a picture photograph of the inside of a similar controller? 

A. Yes, that is K.f. type.
Photograph marked Exhibit 3.
Q. So that the jury can see, is tin* big door off altogether in that f 

A. Yes.
(,). The outside door has Iteen removed altogether, and then this door 

has been o|>ened? A. That piece here has been opened from here.
0. Part A has liecn aliened from the right and swinging on hinge B. 

and then has this also been opened? A. That is also opened; that is al­
ways exposed.

O. Side 0 is alwavs open, except that it has the outer cover on it.
0. Then all these points that we see here, what do you call those? 

A. Tin* contact fingers.
(). They are trtârked D; how manv of those are there in tin.....ntrol-

ler? A. 16—16 or 15; we don't double up; it is immaterial though.
0. What are the* on this other side here f A. Those are the circles, 

the controller cylinder segments.
0. That is E. There is one of those corresponding to each of the 

lingers D? A. Yes.
0. Then I see on the other side, on the side C, there are a number of 

fingers, up at the top of the picture? A. Yes, that is the reverse cylinder.
O. And there are how manv fingers there? A. Yes, 8 on each side.
0. R fingers on each side? A. Yes, and there are two sides, 16 alto­

gether.
O. Then with all these fingers, there are wire, connected, screwed on < 

A. Yes, from the footpad at the bottom.
O. And each of those has its wire? A. Each finger has its separate 

wire, with the exception of where the fingers are double, where you sec 
two fingers there is one wire.

0. Where there are two double fingers there is one wire for both fin­
gers? A. Yes.

Q. Then this part down here, the lower part of side D, .which I will 
mark as F. what is that? A. The upper half of that is the cut-out 
switch section.

0. The upper half of F is the cut-out switch? A. Yes. You see the 
two switches on there. The lower half is the terminal hoard, what they 
call the footboard.
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Q. Are the wires nn the footboard |>crmanent or temporary f A. They 
are solid in behind, soldered in.

Q. Those on the fingers, wtiat are they f A. Solid, too, a terminal ; 
and then the terminal is Isilted down, too.

Q. Where does the bolt go in? A. To the finger post. There is a 
piece of plate to which the finger is fastened, you see the screws there, 
screwed on this to this wooden section, then the wires are brought in and 
brought up here and screwed on to that.

10 Q. What I want the jury to understand is, and tell me if I am right, 
in these terminals on the fingers, the wires are screwed on by nuts? A. 
By screws.

Q. And not nuts. And then that on this other side, they are soldered 
on? A. They are soldered to the terminal at the miner side, too, at the 
contact fingers; they are brought in ami soldered in to the terminal, and 
that terminal is just screwed on, that machine screws to the base.

Q. Each individual finger or pair of fingers must have a wire going 
direct to it individually? A. Yes.

Q. Now, how is that wire physically connected with that finger, or 
VO hrace of fingers? A. That wire is first soldered into a terminal piece of 

metal.
Q. That is, apart from the fingers? I am talking about the imme­

diate contact. A. The fingers, I am not speaking about the fingers now 
at all.

Q. Well, I am. It is the physical contact «nth the wire and the fin­
gers? A. It is a permanent contact.

Q. What is it? A. It is a screw contact. The terminal is carried on 
the base-----

Q. You don't call that permanent; 1 am trying to distinguish? A. 
30 It isn’t a moving part." "

Q. I am trving to distinguish a soldered connection, and one that is 
liable to lie loosened and needs watching like a screw ? A. Well, the 
terminals to which the wires are soldered are screwed to these base 
blocks.

O. What other part of the controller would want looking after over 
a night—there is a roil down there? A. That is the magnet.

Q. Does that require examining at all to see if it is all right? A. No. 
not partieularlv, because there are permanent connections made to that.

O. And that would not require any looking after? A. Not frequent 
40 inspection.

0. Then is there anything that the controller inspector would have 
to do that von can tell us of in connection with the inspection of the con­
troller? A. The inspection of the controller would consist of examining 
the movin" parts, the wearing parts, as the segments, the main rows, 
nrobablv. dressing un the ends of those a little, or putting on new fingers 
where they are required, or adjustin'* the old fingers.
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Q. Or where there is a finger loose to screw it up tight? A. Yes. lint 
that is an unusual thing.

Q. Where they would find one loose f A. Yes.
Q. Wires do get loose? A. Yes.
Q. And they require attention of that sort f A. Yes, otherwise we 

would not need, except to keep them clean and adjusted.
Q. And, as you say, to file the contact |siints if they cut f A. Yes. 

File ut> the segments at the end, or put new segments on as the ease 
10 may he.

Q. Is that all you can think of that a controller inspector has to do t 
A. Yes, keeping the blocks clean, and that gate you have marked “A.” 
Those are here. Yes, to clean those out here between each section, blow 
it out.

O. To dean out what I might call the surface f A. The arc device.
Q. On the door At A. Yes.
(f. And see generally that the connections are properly made, that 

there is nothing wrong with the installation of the wiresf A. Oh, yes. 
that would come under his supervision as he makes his general iiispis-- 

20 tion. He has his lights, and he looks over it thoroughly.
0. He has his lights and he just looks through to see that all these 

things and the wires are all right. And then this man has to do this for 
ninetv controllers in the night ? A. Not in a night, no. He takes the cars 
in their turn. He would do as manv cases as his schedule laid out for 
him to-night, and he would not do the same cars to-morrow night; he 
would do another number of ears.

Q. I thought you told me. but I may he mistaken, they go over the 
ears everv night ? A. They go over the cars, general Inspection, hut not 
the contioilers. A man cleans a controller thoroughly up to-night, and 
it is not supposed that he would go hack to-morrow night to fix it up again.

Q. That you would not consider necessary? A. No, it is not done, 
anvwav.

0. Whatever I mav have thought, what you mean to say now at all 
events is, that the controller is inspected that wav one night and might 
lie left for how long? A. Oh, it might he—that would depend on the 
amount of work he had to do. the number of cars lie had to go over.

O. No; but T mean when it would Is1 considered necessary for him to 
examine that controller again? A. It would not he nnv greater length 
of time than a week.

*0 O. And it might easilv go a week? A. It might go a week.
O. You think they could not go so long as a fortnight ? A. No; he 

would be around to it again inside of a week.
0■ So that would give him 13 a night apparently he would have to 

do in that way? A. Around 15 a night he would do.
Q. Then we have the other inspections—we have got through with 

the controller now. We have one foreman. What does the foreman do? 
A. Well, T am not as familiar with that as T might be. I think if you
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will call the night inspector he will tell you more about that than I ean.
Q. You cannot tell me. 1 had an idea you controlled all these men? 

A. I do, too; hut we have a general inspector who has charge of all the divi­
sions, and he lays the work out for these men, instructs the foreman of 
the division what has to lie done, and he could tell you better than I.

Q. I hi you mean to say then that "you cannot tell me what any of 
these men dot I have here in your examination one foreman, two oil­
ers, two brakemen, one journal oiler, one motor inspector, one truck in- 

10 speetorf A. That is practically telling you what they do. That is the 
parts of the equipment those men work on.

O. You are able to say those are the insjlectors that are employed 
anywayf A. Yes.

Q. And that is correct. As to what the foreman does you cannot just 
tell met A. Well, my idea of the foreman is that he has knowledge of 
anything that is to lie done ; he is there; he is working foreman.

O. What inspection is there here; what is the truck inspector; what 
does he do.

Mr. McCarthy: What has he to do with the truck inspectorÎ 
*2o His Lokushii1: There is no charge in regard to the truck inspector 

here.
Mr. Gamble: No, mv Lord.
Q. Well, his inspection is confined to the truck, I suppose f A. That 

man’s duty is to go over the truck.
Q. And the same may be said as to the motor inspector’s duties? A. 

Go over the motors and examine and see that they are all right, and put 
in new carbons or do any repairs to any cables or anything of that kind 
that need it.

Q. That is in the motor? A. The motor inspector.
30 Q. Tables in connection with the motor? A. All the motor equip­

ment. But I don't know that I could give you all he does, but I don’t 
suppose it is worth while running into all he might do.

Q. It would be useful to know what you mean hv motor equipment. 
That would not, of course, cover the controller? A. No. The motors are 
the motors that are in the trucks, the motors that are placed in the trucks 
to drive the wheels, that is the motor equipment.

Q. Is that under the body of the ear? A. Under the windows, in 
the trucks.

Q. You will excuse my ignorance; I am asking because I want to 
40 know ? A. I am not intending to be impertinent.

Q. It is under the flooring of the car? A. Yes, right in the trucks, 
fast in the trucks.

y. About what space would they occupy ? A. In the truck, you mean?
y. Yes, the motors and the equipment, about what space would they 

occupy ? A. Well, they occupy on a double truck car all the space there 
is between the axles and the frame of the car, on the inside of the hubs 
of the wheels.



47

that than I ran. 
1 all these men? 
ge of all the divi- 
the foreman of 
>etter than I. 
me what any of 
reman, two oil- 
ir, one truck in- 
|n. That is the

t are employed

i you cannot just 
as knowledge of 
foreman, 
inspector; what

nspeetor ? 
truck inspector

iiposc? A. That

•tor's duties ? A. 
11 right, and nut 
ing of that kind

le motor eouip- 
oes, but I don’t

lotor commuent. 
The motors are 

red in the trucks

the windows, in

«use I want to

it in the trucks,

ruck, you mean? 
ipaee would they 
1 the space there 
iside of the hubs

WALTER B. MeCHAE—EXAMINATION-IN-CHIEF.

Q. Tlien the journal oiler; that is merely a man who oils the differ­
ent parts? A. He oils the wheel journals, the outside journals.

Q. Then, two brakemen, those are men who attend----- A. To the
brakes.

0. See they are all right f A. Yes.
Q. And two oilers on other parts of the ears ? A. They oil the mo­

tors and gears.
Q. And that covers the inspection. You have given me the ins|.....

10 tion as fully as you can? A. Yes.
Q. Now, von just haioiened to he on the street when this accident 

happened? A. Yes, 1 was at the south west corner of King and 8tier- 
bourne Street.

Q. You must have Is en pretty close to Mr. McFarland, who happen­
ed to lie there at the same time? A. 1 was just a little below King, prole 
ably 20 feet south of King when the ear passed over.

O. On a bicycle or walking? A. No, walking.
(j. What was it that drew your attention to the accident? A. Why, 

the noise of the explosion I suppose you better call it, in the ear, after it 
20 had gotten over the intersection and down King Street a ways.

Q. The explosion, or I should say. explosions, from what you told me 
before? A. The first one was what attracted my attention.

(.). And was that, an unusual sound? There was an unusually loud 
explosion ? A. In what particulars?

0. Anything to see in the ear. what the ear a tinea red like? A. Oh, 
there was the flash, the flash from this explosion, and there was smoke 
from it; there was afterwards the smoke from the burning cables; the 
rubber took fire in the cables.

Q. The insulation and that sort of thing f A. Yes. And there was 
to a great manv neonle living crowded out and jumping out; there was a 

great deal to see after the explosion.
O. Women screaming? A. Yes.
0. And then we had a new class of pavement on the south side of 

King Street? A. Well there was some there ; but there was room enough 
to run; I was running.

O. Then after the first explosion, there were several others? A. Yes. 
O. And I think you told me that the ear. as far as you could judge, 

was going about six miles an hour? A. Thereabouts, as near as I could 
judge it.

*0 O. Now. might T ask you to describe to me tlic manner in which that 
ear was eouinoed. First of all, it was one of the ears that had the seats 
all facing one way and are adjustable? A. Yes.

O. Is it true, as Mr. Fleming si vs, that there is very little room be­
tween a man’s knees and the seat in front of you ? A. There isn’t a great 
deal of room; there is room enough for people to crowd through.

Q. There is room to press through; a man would have to move to let 
people get by? A. He would not go sideways, he would not walk in
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front of people's knees; by getting tliis way he could go fairly comfortably 
out.

Q. It is not as roomy as the other class of cart A. No, there isn’t 
as much room between the scats.

Q. And then it is not an open car.
Mr. McCarthy: I don’t see the materiality of this, my Lord, in re­

ference to any evidence given after the construction of the cars. I wish 
to take the point now that all that is in the jurisdiction of the Railway 

10 Board ; they regulate all matters in regard to construction, operation, 
etc., of all ears.

Mr. Gamble: They don’t govern actions for damages.
His Lomwhip: Mr. McCarthy’s point is that the construction of the 

car is one over which the Railway.
Mr. Gamble: I submit that that is not tenable at all events, my 

Lord.
His Ixiriwhip: It may not lie important.
Mr. Gamble: Q. Then this car lmd a running Iwiard along the side 

for the conductor to go along and get his fares, and for the people to get 
20 in and out of their seats? A. Yes, there was a running hoard.

Q. Now, will you just trace for me the electric current, if that is the 
proper expression, from the time that it leaves the trolley wire until it 
strikes the motors and puts them in motion. First of all, of course, it 
is taken off the wire with the pole? A. Yes.

Q. Will you go on and just follow that down ? A. The cable comes 
from the base of the pole; there is a copper cable, insulated copper cable 
down to the vestibule.

Q. The wire takes the current past into that iron pole, into the pole 
itself—or is there a wire inside the pole? A. That steel pole is the eon- 

30 duetor itself.
Q. And then the steel pole cornea down and rests upon a certain plat­

form on top of the car? A. Yes, comes onto a controller stand, and that 
stand rests on the trolley base.

O. Then the trolley base is wires, or a wire? A. A wire.
0. Which comes through the roof of the car and runs along the roof T 

A. No; it runs over to the edge of the weather table, where the water 
would drip off the upper roof and then comes down underneath and then 
runs along to the roof.

0. Instead of coining along, as 1 thought, on the inside, it goes di- 
40 rectiv down to the side from the trolley base? A. Yes.

0. To the left hand side of the car? A. Yes.
O. From the trolley base, and then where does it go? A. Along un­

derneath.
Q. Then it runs along underneath the cave? A. The eavetrough, the 

upper deck.
Q. And runs over to where ? A. To the frame of the last window 

in the deck lights, the ventilator lights?
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Q. IT|> in the room? A. Yes.
Q. Then where does it go from that f A. It liasses through that 

frame and from there turns into the vestibule, comes out through the up­
per part of the bulkhead into the vestibule.

Q. Comes through tlie bulkhead. Perhaps you will tell us now what 
that is. That separates the motorman from the rest of the ear f A. From 
the passenger section.

0. Gocr through that partition: and then what does it do? A. does 
10 direct to the circuit breaker.

<). Then, assuming that the circuit breaker is closed, and the current 
running through it, where does it go next f A. From the circuit break­
er to the controller.

Q. Direct ? A. Direct.
O. And from the controller, wheref A. Then it is distributed to the 

motors through the rheostats.
O. The rheostats are insulating buffers are they not f A. Yes.
O. To prevent the current coming too fast ? A. To the motors.
0. And is that governed in anv way by the controller? A. Oh, yes. 

Ï0 Q. It depends upon the way til..... intruder is operated, what resist­
ance will lie given hv the rheostat; is that right? A. It depends—well, 
the same resistance would be given; that is permanent resistance there, 
but the operation of the controller would rut out each succeeding step 
that von go up. and the controller cuts out a step of vour resistance.

O. That would mean, wouldn’t it, that if a man had his hand on his 
controller, and he threw it right around, lie would get the direct current 
without anv resistance? A. Less what reduction in current there was 
(hie to going through the rheostat, plus the resistance of the motors not 
movin'" being permanent when that was started.

30 o. Then it is not a good thing, is it. to put on too much power at 
once? A. No.

O. Now, how is the wire carried to the motors. What I mean now 
is. is it in one wire, or are there a number of wires? A. There are a num­
ber of wires.

O. Go from the controller, which carries the current to the motors? 
A. Yes.

O. And those wires are put in a cable? A. They are put in a box or 
conduit.

O. Aren’t tliev run into a cable a« well? A. No; they run through 
40 the ear in a weather-proof liox.

O. In a wooden hox? A. Yes, a wooden box.
O. That is to say. all the wires that come from the motor? A. 

From the controller.
Q. From the controller, and connect with the motors, are carried/ 

through a wooden box on the side of the ear? A. Y es.
Q. About how far from the ground? A. The air space under that
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box in the downward section would 1m* about 4 inches.
Q. But that is the space ? A. Between the bottom of the box and the 

floor.
Q. And I suppose that would be the same at the step? A. No; it 

would be a little more outside the step you go down; the step is at a lower 
level.

Q. There would be more space ? A. Yes. there would be probably 
twelve inches—a foot.

10 Q. Then the wires are carried separately through there ? A. The 
wires are carried in there, the insulated wire.

Q. Each wire separate; it is not made in together! A. No. Each 
wire is laid in separately.

Q. Then all these go to the motors! A. And the rheostat.
Q. And then do they return; is tlierc any return current! A. There 

is a return current. Those wires we have mentioned in that box carry 
a current to and from.

Q. Then there was, as you have told us, a circuit breaker! A. Yes.
Q. On the car. Now. would you kindly explain to the jury what the 

op circuit breaker is! A. The circuit breaker is a device that is either au­
tomatically handled by the current or bv tin- hand, manually operated, 
open or shut.

Q. And the object of opening or shutting it would lie, either in open­
ing it to stop the current coming into the ear! A. Yes.

O. Or in shutting it to make the current come! A. Yes.
Q. Before I go anv further. You are an electrical engineer, are you 

not! A. Yes, supposed to be.
O. Will you just look at that and tell me if that is a proper drawing 

showing the way the current is taken from the wire and conveyed to the 
30 motors, and the return ! A. Yes, the trolley circuit is all right; the red 

line is all right ; the heavy red line.
<). Then the others yon would have to follow out! A. Individually.
Q. You can say generally whether it is right or not! A. That main 

circuit is correct.
Q. What is the black line! A. The ground circuit—yes, that is all 

right. These individual circuits cannot help but be right; the current 
would be broken if they weren't right.

Q. The circuit breaker is inside the vestibule! A. Yes.
Q. The return goes out on to the rail! A. Yes, this ground wire goes 

40 to the rail.
0. Completes a circuit and goes through the power house and back 

again! A. Yes.
O. Yon told me. I think, that there is no cable in the box; you will 

note that Mr. Richmond has got a cable into the controller as though the 
wires were all made un into a cable! A. Well, I would understand that 
Mr. Richmond had this made nut this wav to show the correctness of his 
work.
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Q. But as a matter of fart, technically, arc these wires put into a 
eable, laid into a cable, as they come outf A. Yes, they are in some in­
stances, but not in ours, and not in many more. They are carried in a 
wooden conduit.

Plan of wires marked Exhibit 4.
Q. Now the type of controller was K.O.f A. General Electric, K.C.
Q. It is fairly represented by that photograph we had f A. Yes.
Q. And the wiring, as far as you can see, is correctly laid out in this 

10 sketch? A. Yes, without taking the trouble of cheeking it all over.
Q. We «-ill give you an opportunity of doing tliat anyway. Then 

what sort of a motor equipment was this? A. Quadruple, General Elec­
tric type 1,000, quadruple equip..... it.

Q. The controller is immediately on the left of the motormau, isn’t 
it, in the ear? A. Yes.

Q. So that he ran have his hand alwavs on the controller handle f A.
Yes.

Q. And then under his other hand, on the right hand side, is the air­
brake ? A. That is right.

20 (}. So he can have his right hand on the air brake standing in |sisi-
tion. And how far would you say it was from the air-brake handle to 
the controller? A. It would lie about 30 inches.

Q. That would be pretty nearly a yard? A. It is more than 2 feet, 
between 2 feet and 30 inches.

Q. Is there any brake on that car, too? A. Yes, to the right of the 
air-brake.

O. There is another brake? A. There is a hand power brake.
O. That is further away still? A. Yes.
Q. About how much further? A. That would lie, perhaps, 15 to 18 

30 inches further.
(>. Then when you got over to the ear, after the accident, what con­

dition did you find it in? A. When 1 got to the car I found it burning," 
that is alsive, at the hood’ switch, and the insulation of the wires, at least 
the circuit breaker, I should judge, and the insulation of the wires lead­
ing to the circuit breaker were burning; the circuit breaker itself, the 
wire, the insulation of the wire leading to the circuit breaker, both wires 
going in and out of the circuit breaker, and the controller and the cables 
in the box, where they caught fire from the flame of the controller, were 
on fire; in fact, the vestibule was full of flames and smoke.

40 Q. Where was the flame coining from? A. Mostly from the con­
troller.

Q. Did you go in there? A. I did not go in first. I ran and got a 
pail of water and came and put the fire out in the controller.

Q. Then after the fire had been put out what damage—I think you 
gave me that before—did you find had been done to the ear and its equip­
ment ? A. The controller was, you might sav, completely gutted out. It 
was so badly burnt inside that I don’t think there was anything very
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much left of it, except the metal that could not bum, it was not burnt. 
The circuit breaker had blown open and fused across and burned the con- 
taot in the eireuit breaker. The vestibule was badly scorehed:

Q. What part of tlie vestibule t A. Oil, all the left hand side of the 
vestibule, and the roof from the flame. The wire, the cable in this con­
duit had caught fire, and the fire had travelled back until it broke out be­
tween the bulkheads under the window, and there was some smoke coming 
up there. I put the fire out with the water, except down lietween the 

10 bulkheads, where we had the firemen use the chemical on that. We got 
him to put a little chemical in there and put that out.

Q. So we have the damage done by fire to the cables that were in the 
box that you have told us off A. Yes.

Q. And to the Ihix itself f A. Well, the inside of it was scorehed when 
they pried the lid; the firemen pried the lid up themselves.

O. That is the Ihix coveringf A. Covering the cable—the cable box.
Q. Then excuse me; now you have used an expression there that 

would apparently contradict what you said before. Why do you call it 
cable box. because I thought you said yon did not carry your wires in a 

•20 box! A. Those are cables, not wires. I think you have a sample there, 
haven't vont It is not wire, it is cable.

Q. That is what 1 understood. Do you mean there is only one cable 
in thereÎ A. That wire is a cable. There is a difference between solid 
copper wire and copper cable. Copper cable is a number of small wires 
made into a cable, and that is why I used the expression “cable" there.

Q. And that cable represents really, in one sense, only one wiret A. 
Only one wire.

Q. Then that Ihix, von say. was burnt. The flame had not got through 
the Ihix? A. No, it had not got through the Ihix, except the end of the 

30 Ihix: it got through there.
Q. Which endf A. The end nearest the controller where the fire had 

started. The fire started there, and then burned the rubber insulation in 
on these cable wires.

(). Where else did you find any damage from fire? A. I did not find 
any other.

O. You told me it was near your hood switchf A. Well, I mention­
ed that when I spoke of the damage.

0. Had the wire up to that been burning, toot A. Yes, I think pér­
ira ps 18 inches from the hood switch, where it ran across from the end 

40 of the bulkhead to the hood switch, the insulation had been on fire then.
O. That hunch is the sort of cable tluit you are referring tot A. Yes. 

that is the cable that has lieen in use, taken out of a ear that has been 
re-wired. That is the condition of cable that had been used for a number 
of years—I could not eav how long.

Bunch of cable marked Exhibit 5.
0. This is a new cable ? A. That is new cable. This is a trolley wire 

and ground wire, and that is the motor lead wires.
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Q. The small ones# A. Yes.
y. And that is what this particular car was equipped withÎ A. Yes, 

that is a sample of the cables of the car.
Bunch of new cables marked Exhibit (i.
Q. Then, in addition to the burning of that 18 inches of the cable, 

there was the hood switch you said was burning. What was burnt in the 
hood- switch f A. Well, I suppose the tire that I a*w would lie from the 
burning rubber of the cable going into it. 

in y. That would not Is- very extensivef A. It was quite a consider­
able flame.

Q. Was itf A. Yes.
Q. And then there were the flames coming out*of the controller < A. 

Yes, they were belching out of the controller. Of course, that is where 
the most tire came from.

Q. And the woodwork, had you to replace any woodwork in the ear f 
A. I think not; I think it was scraped down.

y. Whereabouts# A. On the roof and the sides.
Q. On which side f A. The left hand side, and at the back of the 

•>0 motorman, where the flame had leaped over to thé varnish and got into 
the paint. Of course, that isn’t my department. I think it was just 
scraped down and repainted and varnished again.

0. Then you had, however, to rut in a new hood switch # A. Oh, yes.

I
30

40

y. You and I got a little bit at loggerheads before. I would like to lie 
corrected now again and put it right. A circuit breaker and hood switch 
I am using indiscriminatelyf A. Well, I do, too, unfortunately, lieeausc 
1 heard hood sw itch mentioned so often by the men with reference to the 
circuit bleaker. A hood switch is a manually operated switch only, and 
a circuit breaker is automatically operated and manually o)ierated.

Q. As I understand it. the controller was so badly damaged that it 
had to lie taken out# A. Yes, and another controller was put on.

Q. That was rebuilt and put in some otlfer car# A. Yes.
Q. And the hood switch was also badly damaged f A. Yes, that was 

burnt badly.
Q. I suppose that it was capable of I icing put together# A. Prob­

ably some parts of it were. The magnet may have been used again, but 
the contacts weren’t used again for they were melted away.

Q. Then what else was there that you had to replacef A. With re­
ference to the electrical equipment <

Q. Yes# A. Just the circuit bleaker and the controller.
Q. But you had to replace those tables hadn't you . A. Yes, we had 

to re-wire the ear, it being in there so badly.
y. Had you to put in new motors# A. No, no new* motors put in, 

nor repairs made to the old ones.
O. They were all light# A. They were all right, 
y. Now what caused the accident# A. Well, I would like to be able 

to say what caused it.
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Q. I think you told me in your examination before that you con- 
’iered it an unusual thing? A. Yes, an unusual thing.

Q. An unexpected thing? A. Yes.
Q. Now used in the sense we have used it? A. Well, it is unusual 

for me to see. 1 have never had any experienoe with so severe a trouble 
6s that before. The trouble started in the controller there is no doubt, hut 
there was so little proof of it left after we had a chance to examine it, it 
is impossible to sav what startl'd it, or where it started.

Î0 Q. Now, of course, you have seen a great many blow-outs? A. Yes. 
You mean circuit breaker blow-outs?

Q. Yes? A. Yes.
Q. Blow-outs automatically, and the motorman puts his hand up ri'-’ 

sticks it back again? A. Yes.
Q. By the wav 1 forgot to ask von. You found the circuit breaker 

fused over, so that the current would lie still open and going into the car? 
A. Just so. The circuit breaker had operated all right, but the arc had 
carried across.

{j. But owing to the rush of the current it had fused the metal there. 
20 so that it was just as bad as if it was not opened? A. Yes. The arc was 

so severe, there was so much current there that it simply melted those 
metals away, running down, together, and made a circuit across.

Q. Then I was asking you if it was quite a different thing from the 
ordinary breaking open of the circuit breaker? A. Oh, yea, that would 
be a minor report as compared with this.

Q. Do you remember if the resistance mil in the controller was in­
jured at all? A. The resistance coil—the motor coil 1 think you mean.

Q. Do I mean that? A. I would think so. Yes, it was burnt; that 
is the insulation on the outside had been on fire and burning, as well ns the 

SO rest of the controller.
Q. Was the controller a new controller? A. No: it was an overhauled 

ntroller. Tt Had bee trim tlinT’car for. 1 believe, a month or six weeks 
■ioftn the accident, had been put on there when the car was overhauled.

Ill' Q. You have had a history of that car, haven't you? A. Yes, from 
■•the repair sheet.

Q. This shows the Inspection and repairs of car 966. That is correct ? 
A. Yes.

Sheet marked Exhibit 7.
Q. Then, where is it that you say that shows that that controller was 

40 put on; what date was it put on and where is it shown there? A. On 
the 6th of June preceding the accident.

Q. What does it show—“Change controller for turning on reverse 
/finger part, inspected motors." What does that mean? “For turning on 
reverse finger parts." A. The contacts had got loose on the board.

His Lordship: Those contacts were around in the- old controller? 
A. Yes. Probably a contact finger was not making a good contact, and it 
heated it up and loosened it.
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Mr. Gamble: Q. Now, there is ora- thing that atruek me a* eomcwhat 
peculiar, and I would like you to explain it to me. Before 1 got that ori­
ginal document, you had furnished me with a copy of it, and in that copy 
i){ August 2nd I find this entry, “New axle healings equipment inspect­
ed." A. On that same date ?

<j. Yes. Now what does that mean, “Equipment inspected f" A. Is 
this a copy ?

Q. You produced that on your examination. I will give you this? A. 
)0 The equipment inspected, that would lx general inspeetiun of the equip- 
/ ment.

Q. Now, will you show me where you find that on the Ixiok that is now 
produced? A. Yes. “August 2nd, axle hearings number 4. and inspected 
igotors by McMillan or McMullen."

Q. Inspected what? A. Inspected motors.
Q. What is the other ? A. “August 2nd, axles bearings number 4."
0. Inspected whatf A. And inqieeted the motors.
0. No. A. The other here, “Inqieeted the equipment." that is the 

same.
2 ) Q. That is what you mean hv equipment Î A. That is the same thing, 

motor equipment, motor and truck equipment.
0. Equipment only covers motors, does it f A. No. If you wish to 

take the technical side of it, I suppose the equipment covers every side of 
the car.

Q. And then it was not what was inspected? A. It was confined to 
the motors and trucks.

Q. Why do you think—when this was Ixdng made a copy and sworn 
to as a copv of the report of the history of this car lie tween those dates— 
whv did you hare equipment covering the whole car and covering the con­

nu jtroller so put in there, when it flays, equipment inspection? A. It is quite

tight, when this car has the motors inspected, at tils' sains1 time it was un- 
ler repair on the repair pits, the controller, the circuit-breaker, the lights, 
the trucks, the wheels and the motors would lx1 inspected, and that is the 

running equipment; both mean the same thing.
0. Pardon me for a moment. Do you remember what it was that yon 

produced on the examination, what you were asked to produce? A. I 
don’t remember.

Q. Because I would rather you would give me a better explanation 
than that, because mv recollection is, that you produced this not as a liis- 

40 tory of your own of this ear, hut as a copv of the record that was in the 
hooks? A. Yes, which von had the trouble of going and examining your­
self afterwards, and found the same.

Q. But now I find it was not a corrected copv—you understand the 
distinction I am making—it is not what was the history of the car? A. 
In so far as it was not the same words used.

Q. Not what was done with it, hut what was a true copy of the record
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in your office. Tlic record in your office* shown tliat only the motors were 
inspected ; that is wliat it says ? A. That is what it says.

Q. The record produced to me ns a true* copy of that says that the 
whole ear, including the controllers, were inspected on that date. Now, 
do you understand me f A. Yes, thoroughly.

y. Why do you think that was done# À. I.think when the clerk was 
writing that out, copying it out on his typewriter, when he says motors he 
put down the equipment.

10 Q. I)o you find that dont in other places f A. I think you would.

/
(). .Tust look at that and compare those and see if you can find an- 
other change like that—you see the lm|sirtance of it, don’t you. A. Here 
in the slwcts you will see. motors inspected; that means, as I say, an 
i equipment in at lection.
Q. I don't want to waste more time over thisf A. It is the same as 

you and l call a circuit breaker a hood switch ; it is just a matter of 
form, getting into a hahit.

Q. Tins man was making for you, apparently a copy, not his idea of 
w hat was living done, Imt a copy of a certain document, and in that copy 

20 of that certain document, instead of saying that the motors were inspect­
ed, he says that the whole car equipment, including the controller, was in- 

j speetedt A. He say “equipment,” which to him would mean the same 
thing.
' Q. You sav that means the controller, that includes the controller f A. 

ic same as the motor inspection includes the motor.
I Q. The motors inspected means controller inspectedt A. It means 
tit1 whole equipment absolutely.

(>. Surely you are not in earnestf A. Oh, yes. If this man puts 
down the same words for the same thing. I am here to swear to the work. 

30 that the men going through the different parts never knew w hen niv clerk 
made that copy.

Q. You will pardon me just for the moment. What do you mean In­
going through everything when he is inspecting the motorsf A. All there 
is to go thmugh inspecting.

O. (live us them? A. Controllers, rheostates, motors, brakes, trucks.
0. I understood vou to say there was a separate man who inspected 

the controllers? A. Yes, but you will pardon me. This work is done in 
the dav time, that is done in the shop. You will notice the different shops 
where the work is done. There would lie the central shop, or the division 

44) shop. That work was done in the dav time.
0. What would 2 a.m. meanf A. Where do you see that t It means 

the middle of the night, but where d i veil see it%—10.30, where do you s» < 
2 here. That is a night inspection.

(X I thought vou said that that xvas confined to dav inspection? A. 
T am speaking here of our entrv. tb»t was done by the dav men.

O. Now. you were telling me that that whole record showed the in­
spection? A. I did not mean to convey that. If the night men do any



57
WALTER R. McCRAE—EXAMINATION-IN-CHIEF.

work such as is marked there, that is put in this record, to have it full, 
otherwise, it would not be a complet'1 record.

Q. Aud therefore the night men, the night performances are on this 
sheet? A. Notthe inspection: they don’t show inspection; hut if they do 
nnv repair wirk. it is on here; ttiPTc is a complete history of the repairs 

rfio the ear.
Q. But the inspection, the night inspection is not on that ? A. No. 

If the man inspected that car to-night, it would not come into my office 
|u and he entered in this hook.

y. So you have no record of the night inspection of the carat A. 
Yes, I think there is.

Q. Wheret A. 1 think Mr. Cowan will he able to produce that if 
he goes into the box. These two entries mean the same thing.

Q. It is not a question of what the two entries meant A. Yes it is.
Q. It is a question of your g this as a true copy of the re­

cord? A. Now, this record was got out, it was not got out for you, it 
was got out at the request of our solicitor and went to our solicitor and 
it was produced at my examination and put in as an exhibit. You asked 

•20 for it and I sent it to our solicitor.
0. Isn’t that quibbling? A. You are quibbling.
y. You sav it was not sent to me, and then you say it was asked for 

by me and sent to your solicitor? A. And asked for bv you afterwards 
aud sent to you.

Q. And that is the only change, isn’t it. in that record; that is the 
only ease where there is a change in the wording, the description, the 
exact copy of the two documents? A. I would not say that.

Q. Where you find another one ? A. What is this here that you 
have marked “August 26th.” Well, that is the same as that. This is the 

30 usual thing when inspection takes place. It is the equipment. The clerk 
simple did not put down the exact wording. There was no intent to de­
ceive because there was not anv cause why it should lie done. 
j : Q. Ho every time we find “motors inspected” there, it means that the 

/(Introllers were inspected, too? A. Yes.
0. Now, sunnosing the controller had not been properly insiieeted. or 

say the night before it went out, supposing there was a weak part in that 
controller, a weak contact, and the power was thrown on suddenly, would 
that he or not be liable to get an are ? A. Well, the usual thing is to blow 
back that one individual contact.

40 Q. In blowing that contact back, it forms an are? A. Yes, that we 
have frequently happen.

0. And that night it would lie so serious as to create other ares? A. 
Yes, it might; but it would be unusual for a thing of that kind to hap­
pen.

Q. This was an unusual thing? A. Yes.
Q. So creating a number of ares like that just such a result as this 

might have happened ? A. It might ; hut we have had hundreds and

1170
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thousand#—there is contact finger got a little loose and the arc would blow 
that back, and just open and circuit it.

Q. And it might be highly electrified f A. It might, and this time 
something happened in there, but what it was I cannot say.

y. For instance, we have got what you told us alsmt the circuit break­
er, and that when the circuit breaker blew open it formed an are f A. 
Yes.

Q. And that arc, under ordinary circumstances would have blown 
10 out? A. That is so.

Q. That is to say, the electricity, the- light which we see between the 
points would have gone outf A. Under ordinary conditions.

y. This current was so heavy, you sav in this case, that it kept the 
arc going until fused, melted the contacts, so that it formed a breach f A. 
Short circuited it across.

Q. So in the case of a faulty connection in the controller, if an are 
Mas formed like that bv a loose joint or a loose contact point, whatever 
>*U may sav, and an arc formed there, tliat might have lieen so aggravated

to accomplish just what it has ......mplishedf A. By some unknown
20 ^editions that arose there.

Q. It would not he unknown then, if it happened to he in bad repair 
hr it was an old machineÎ A. It could not be in such bad repair in a week 
hs to leave anything so terrible out of order as to cause this great trouble 
sib that car; it would he apparent too quickly to the Inspector that the 
Iti ouble existed, and he would repair it. and it would Is1 unreasonable to 
|e qiect it to haitnen in a week.

y. That is vour viewf A. Well, 1 am on oath, and I am giving it 
conscientiously. As I say, we have known of these things, the blow back, 
the springs get weak, of course; there is a conglomeration of things that 

30 occur.
y. Dirt? A. There should not have been.
y. No putting a hypothetical question; if the machine, the controller, 

rad not been properly insjiected the last time it was in. and if there was a 
(rose finger, loose contact, and a stronger current of electricity sent 

through, it might have caused such an arc as to cause this trouble! A. 
No; I would sav not.

O. I thought you said it could? A. It might be the start of the 
trouble.

O. I mean the staid of the troubleÎ A. Yes, some unseen reason be- 
40 ing there; but I sav. the great thing is that the finger would burn off. 

and that would lie all there would be to it.
y. Were these cables together; how many of them were there there 

that went through this wooden box? A. There would be 21. The ground 
cable is kept out of that box, it is kept below that Imix; there would be 
four to each machine, and the seven rheostat cables.

y. How are thev held together? A. They are not held together; they 
are simply held in that conduit.
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Q. Not on the ground t A. No, on this wooden conduit, laid on the 
bottom of the wooden conduit, and that is kept up off the floor, one on top 
of the other, just as we see them there.

Q. Where the wires enter the controller, with the ground wire separ­
ated from the other wiresf A. Only just with tn|>e; they are separately 
covered with a separate covering of tape and brought into thia terminal

Q. The wire from the circuit breaker to the trolley base, was it in­
jured at all f A. Just where it left the circuit breaker, burnt with the 

10 flames running out on the rudder.
CROSS-EXAMINED by Mr. McCarthy:
Mr. McCarthy: Does my learned friend attack the equipment of the

cart
Mr. Gambia: I don’t know what my learned friend means bv that ex­

actly.
His LoenoHll»: I suppose he means, do you suggest that these ma­

chines, General Electric K.C. Controller is not a good controller.
Mr. GAMBIA: The General Electric K.C. I say is a good class of con­

troller. Now, if my learned friend wants to know on the other |«>int-----
20 Mr. McCarthy: What I want to find out is if my learned friend has 

any objection to the K.C. Controller.
Mr. Gambia: Surely not.
Mr. McCarthy: Do you take exception to the use of the circuit 

breakerf
His I/)riwhii‘: As a machine.
Mr. Gambia: I don’t think so, my Iamd.
Mr. McCarthy: No objection to the motors, type KKH), quadruple 

equipment.
Mr. Gambia:: No.

SO Mr. McCarthy: Then is there any objection to the manner of insula­
tion f

Mr. Gambia.: Yes, of course, as to the carrying of the rallies in a 
wooden box.

Mr. McCarthy : There is nothing in the particulars about that.
Mr. Gambia:-. Yes, there is—insufficiency of structure for electrical 

insulations and pm ‘ions of the equipment.
His Lohiihhip: How would the wooden box have anything to do with 

this accident# The xplosion of the controller has seared these ladies.
Mr. McCarthy: To what extent does mv learned friend object to the 

40 other part of the insulation Î
Mr. Gamble: The iiarticulars an i.iere. Go ahead.
Mr. McCarthy: Q. Then take the car first. The ear, you say is 

equipped with a Canadian General Electric K.C. motor# A. Yes.
Q. Is that modern? A. A modern type, a very modern type.
Q. Generally used in street ears in this country! A. Yes.
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y. Then the motors, the type 1000 quadruple equipment) A. They 
are a modern motor.

y. Standard f A. Yes. This is one of the standards, standards on 
tlhise roads that have them. There are many different types of motors, all 
modern, but that particular type is standard on a good many roads.

Q. Tlten your circuit breaker, tv pc N.y. General Electric! A. That
ta the standard tvue modern circuit bleaker. —-----

TJ. TAtV, romiîig"nion'ïï> your equipment above the ear. Your trol- 
lev |H>le, is that the modern and ordinary method of taking the current 
into the cart A. That is the modern way of taking it.

Q. Is there any other way you know off A. No, except by different 
contact, but that is the standard system.

Q. And the practii e of taking the current from the trolley base to 
)/ the circuit breaker, is t mt the method used! A. That is the standard in 

wooden constructed cars
y. Of course», there i re some steel cars! A. Where tliey use» steel 

conduits aheive from the trolley to the circuit breaker into the controller 
and to the» machine», but the reason this is use»et is l*»<»ause they are steel 

20 cars.
y. What sized wire do you use in conducting the cement fiom the 

trollev base to the» circuit breaker! A. Nothing smaller than two 0, that 
sample you have there.

y. That is, the large sample in Exhibit No. 6, is the type of wire used 
in conducting the current from tin trolley base to the circuit breakert A. 
That is so.

y. Is that sufficient for the purpo »»f A. yuite, with a good factor of 
safety.

y. Then from the circuit break» r to the controller, what class of wire 
SO do you use f A. That same wire to the controller.

y. And these» other wires in Exhibit 6 indicate-----f A. They are
sized number 4.

y. Indicating the class of wire which you use» lietween the controller 
and the motors and the controller and the rheostats.
J' y. Now, the rheostats, I presume, were standard patternf A. Yes, 

twy are ribbed type rheostat.
» y. And the wiring of the caj. that is the method of conducting the 

/ables in the wooden duct, is that an oidinarv methodf A. In wooden 
Constructed cars.

40 / O. Whv do you use the wooden box to convey it in! A. There is no
necessity of using the steel conduit in a wooden car, absolutely none.

y. Is there any convenience in using the wooden box! A. There is- 
for the matter of inspection, it makes it much easier to inspect ; in the 
styel vou would have to pull them right out.

y. In the wooden box you can lift them out and sec how they are! 
A. Yes.

Q. Now so much for the general equipment of the car. Now com-
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jug bark to the question of inspection, how often are the ears, speaking 
generally, completely overhauled? A. Alunit—well once a year. They 
may run in eleven months or ten months, hut always oner a year, cleaned 
right down, wiring and everything else taken out.

y. The whole equipment is completely renovatedf A. Yes, ouee a 
year.

y. ('an you tell us from the history of this ear when it was last 
stripped? A. It would not show me; it would show in the general over- 

10 haul book, and 1 have not got that : it would show in the general overhaul­
ing hook.

y, That sheet you have there, that is Exhibit 7, is only repair sheets f 
A. That is repairs and general inspection.

y. And that would not show when tlie last general overhauling of the 
ear was? A. No.

Q. You can get that for met A. Yes.
y. Then, in addition to the general overhauling—that ear runs into 

what different barns? A. It would Ik- either one of two I earns, almost 
every other night, that would lie Koneesvalles and King barns.

20 y. It would lie stored there every other night f A. Well it might not 
Is- every other night; there might be a night that it might Ik- in another 
barn by chance.

y. What I understand you to say is that whatever barn it is in there 
an inspection? A. Yes.

0. In addition to the inspection you have the repairs? A. Yes. 
a y. How do you make tlie distinction between the inspection and re- 

uftirs? A. Well the inspector looks after the troubles and the repair man 
repairs them.

y. So the repair sheet indicates that the inspector has looked after 
*0 tin. trouble, located the trouble? A. Yes; and then the repair man re­

pairs them. If it is a controller inspection, it is his own repairs.
y. Would the inspector and the controller appear on the history 

sheet? A. No, the night inspector would- have that; he would know when 
that was done.

0. In speaking of the inspection of that ear you enumerate the num­
ber of inspections at the Roncesvalles barns f A. Yes.

Q. I think you said there were some !M) odd ears went in there f A. 
AJsmt 90.

Q. There was a day staff as well as a night stuff f A. Yes.
*9 y. a day staff in the same proisirtion? A. No, not as many men; 

there is a foreman and three men on in the daytime, who"would do the 
repair work, if the night inspectors have left anything that is of a heavy 
nature, and when that is done, then they turn in and inspect them and go 
over the cars in the barns.

Q. There is inspection both da.v and night? A. Yes.
Q. All those cars that are in, for instance all tin- cars are not out all 

the day? A. Oh, no.

u
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Q. There are a good number of ears in the barn during certain 
hours? A. Yes.

Q. Those ears in the barn in the davtime are subject to inspection? 
A. Yes.

Q. That is quite apart from the night menf A. Yes.
Q. Now the night inspeetion is conducted as you have told us. bv cer­

tain men who perform ow lain duties iu the certain parts of the earf A. 
Yes.

10 Q. How do they indicate what work they dot A. They report in all 
the ears thev repair any repair work done, and in some of the work I 
understand controller included, thev mark down the car number and the 
day and date in which it is done. I understand Mr. Cowan has sheets of 
that.

Q. If a ear passes through an inspector’s hands at night, does he hook 
that car out in the morning? A. He O.K.’s the cars, that goes through 
his hands, he having gone through that particular car in bis branch of the 
work.

<j. And this O.K.-ing out indicates to you that the car is all right? A.
20 Yes.

0. And if it is not O.K.’d out. it comes to you? A. It is held in un­
der the repair sheets.

Q. As far as the motors are concerned, perhaps we can eliminate 
that. There was nothing the matter with the motor? A. No.

Q. There was nothing wrong with the rheostats? A. No.
Q. Wile re was the first indication of trouble as far as you can see, 

between the controller and the rheostat? A. The trouble started in the 
doors, not between.

0. Where uid the trouble stop? A. On the table, do you mean?
10 Q. Yes? A. Just at the bulkhead of the car, between the passenger 

department and the motorman’s eab.
Q. Back of that there was no trouble at all? A. No trouble at all.
Q. From that out the trouble was apparently with the circuit break­

er and the bulkhead of the car; I mean somewhere on that line ? A. Yes.
Q. So I won’t need to go back of that? A. No, you don’t need to, 

because the cable was in a good state of repair, and we don’t splice wires 
in anvthing of that kind.

0. We can eliminate anything back of the bulk-head? A. There 
wasn't anything there, no indication of trouble.

40 Q. Now, what is the life of these cables? A. Well, they are inde­
finite, accord:,ig to the load or the ca|«acity of the cable as compared with 
the load on the ear.

O. What is the ordinary life of a cable on a car such as 966. A. It 
is quite safe for, I would say, 15 or 20 years, when it is not overloaded.

Q. Did you inspect these cables, what was left of them, between the 
bulk-head and the motors? A. Yes.
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Q. What condition were they in, of the cables that weren't burnt?
A. There is a sample of what they were in the exhibit.

Q. Are these they? A. Yes, that would lie the condition which those 
wires came out from the bulk-head, back to the motors.

Q. That is the condition in which they came out ? A. Yes.
0. Are they bound in tape now? A. No. simply held t lie re now.
Q. And you think they are capable of earning the load that was put 

on that ear? A. Yes, quite.
10 O. Now let us get back to the circuit breaker. You told us that the 

circuit breaker was the modern type? A. N.Q.
Q. And those circuit breakers, I suppose, are ins|ieeted with the rest 

of the ear, are they? A. Oh. yes, the circuit breaker is opened ; every 
time the motorman leaves the ear he opens that circuit breaker bv hand 
bv knocking on the catch and releasing it. 1 think we have one here.

(). Just explain the object of the circuit breaker? A. It is to open 
the circuit quickly.

Q. The circuit from the trolley wire to the controller? A. Yes. It 
is between the trolley wire and the controller, and in tile event of any/

20 erounf carrying on the motor, or trouble that would cause a blow-out#//, 
that works automatically. When there is an overload, it snaps it out and / 
that opens the catch.

O. It is the safetv valve of the engine, it is on the same principle?
A. Yes.

Q. And with an overload away she goes ? A. Yes, only in this ease 
it opens it out completely.

Q. Now, after this accident you sav when you got down there you 
found the circuit breaker open? A. Yes. at the off position.

Q. So that the motorman must either have pulled the handle or it 
to worked automatically? A. Yes.

0. Hut you sav, notwithstanding that fact, there was still current 
between the contact points? A. Up to the time the pole was upon the 
wire, or un to- the time it was taken off.

Q. How was that space between the two contact lmints filled in? A.
Rv the contacts themselves; as thev flew apart, the are still continued 
lietwren them burning and melting the metal, and they fell down and 
joined together underneath ; there was a jmmiI of burnt copper metal lay 
across the two, and the current travelled across there, these parts here 
stood un here onen and shut, and thev melted and lav across the bottom.

40 0. .Tust indicate how far the contact |mints arc apart? A. I think
if vou will show the machine it will save a lot of time. The current is 
passing over bene, out here, or as the ease mav be, nut here and out here, 
the two wires are together in here, and when that handle is in that posi­
tion. the circuit is complete through the circuit breaker, and when the 
handle is not in that position the circuit is open.

Q. What was burnt ? A. This eipipor finger. The are was continued 
across, so, of course, it could not la v on the bottom, because it lay across.
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Q. Now, how do you set those, what point does it break the circuit 
breaker! A. For this equipment here, they are set at 325 amperes.

Q. How much does it take to drive a cart A. It depends on the load.
Q. With a heavy load! A. The ordinary load up to a horse-power 

on that tvpe of motor would be 145 or 150 amperes for the four-motor 
equipment, ordinary load.

Q. So this is set at what, do you sayf A. 325.
Q. That is set at 325, so if the power gets up to 325 Î A. She breaks 

10 open.
Q. Is that a safe loadt A. Yes. They generally put 100 per cent, 

higher setting on the circuit breaker than what the normal load would 
eall for.

Q. Now, when you got there after the explosion, did you examine 
the circuit breaker to see if the parts were in good ordert A. Well, first, 
my first duty was to eee whether the 'handle was on or off. and I found it 
in the open position.

Q. What did that indicate to vouf A. That the power could not 
have come through up to the controller.

2H Q. Did it indicate to you that the circuit breaker worked! A. Yes.
Q. Did you examine the other parts, that is the parts that were not 

melted, to see if it was in good order afterwards! A. I think I exam­
ined it. but I cannot s|ieak now. I know it was melted together by the 
contact, and I think I am safe in saving that the uimer plates, the copper 
contacts were gone altogether; they weren’t gone, but melted across and 
bridging the space.

Q. Then take the controller when you got there, what was the con­
dition of Ijie controller! A. It was afire, blazing.

Q. What is there about a controller to blaze! A. Wei, the rubber on 
30 the wires that are in it the rabies that are in there probably are the most.

Q. What is there about a controller to blaze! A. All these cables run­
ning in here—here are more cables.

0. Then you sav the rest of it, all these points that you speak of, and 
the segments, were they all burning! A. Well, the wood had burnt here, 
this wood bolted on to this, also the wood on this, and this was so badly 
burnt as to let a kit of these parts, copper parts, fingers and terminals, 
fall down together in a mass at the bottom.

Q. And that was the condition of the controller! A. Yes, so bad that 
you could not tell where the first trouble got started.

*0 0. In regard to the inspection of controllers, how often in your
opinion should the controller be inspected ! A. Well, once a week is 
often enough; it is more oftener than thev are inspected on most roads. 
The usual practice is about once a month for a general inspection of con­
trollers except some trouble arises.

O. The trouble is indicated in the running, of course! A. Oh, yes, 
the car will give trouble there and go in off the road for inspection.

Q. And go in off the road for inspection! A. I would not say
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then our inspection is an official inspection, but it is a complete inspection 
of all parts blowing out with the air.

<j. But what does the inspection consist off A. I just told you.
Q. You say it is not an official inspection# A. He does not simply 

open up the controller and look at it and say, this looks all right ; he 
takes these leaves out here, and the arc divider, he would take it to his 
bench and clean it up; he would take tliat leaf right off and take it to his 
bench and clean it up properly. That is the reason lit- does not get through 

10 more cars at night.
Q. If tins controller had been inspected oil say the 7th of August, 

was there any reason to expect troublef A. Absolutely none.
Q. On the 10th Î A. No, none whatever.
Q. If there was serious trouble, would it indicate itself to the lisitor- 

tnan rumring that carf A. Yes.
Q. Between those times f A. Yes, it should burn and open the cir­

cuit. It should have blown itself hack, if it were a finger contact or term­
inal trouble, it should have given the o|>en circuit to the motorman.

Q. So, if this car were running half an hour prior to the accident, or 
10 the morning of the accident, and run in all positions on the controller, if 

there was trouble would it indicate itself to the man operating the carf 
A. Yes. if there was trouble there, it should hav indicated itself; if the 
car were running right up to the time the trouble occurred, it was in first 
class working order.

Q. You just said you are not in control of the ins|>ection at the 
Kuncesvalles barn»t A. No, not at night.

0. Looking at this repair sheet, docs it indicate anything in regard 
to ti ns car prior to August at all Î A. Yes.

Q. The year of the accident! A. It indicates it had a new controller 
3E m on June 6th. There was a completely overhauled controller put on 

here, which to all intents and purposes would he a new controller.
O. And on June 28thf A. That the wheels were inspected and an­

other motor inspection, and some holts were tightened up on the trucks.
Q. Where does it take place, this repair, in what barns ; for instance, 

August 2nd, where was the repair done! A. At Itoncesvalles division.
O. When a car is repaired, it i< put over the pitsf A. Yes.
O. Does the repair sheet show how long it was theret A. That was 

a car left in on August 2nd. On Jttlv 29th the car was run in at 8.07 p.m. 
and it went out at 2 in the mornin whatever was done to it. was done 

40 by a night man. There is one changed off at 3.06 in the afternoon.
O. I onlv mean for August: it doesn’t show how long in August, how 

long the car was in on August 2nd! A. No, she was left in in the morn­
ing on August 2nd: she was left in for the day man by the night man.

0. And evidently inspected on the night of August 2nd! A. Left in 
hv the night man.

0. That is what your sheet would indicateÎ A. Yes, and she was in 
all day, and went out at 6 p.m.
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Q. Then you have no record of her coming in until August 12th f A. 
August 12th, that is the next time.

Q. Then the day of the accident you were at the southwest corner 
of King and Sherbourne streetst A. Yes, a little south of King on the 
west side of Sherbourne.

Q. It was a King street car going east! A. Yes.
Q. And it was crossing the intersection of Sherbourne street! A.

Yes.
10 Q. It had a trailer on ? A. Yes.

Q. And pretty well tilled with people! A. Yes.
Q. Where had the car got to when you noticed the explosion! A. 

Well, the trailer was clear, the hack of the trailer was just a little 
passed the line of Sherbourne street. I looked up as the explosion took 
place on the ear and that is where the trailer was; of course, it was mov­
ing.

Q. Could you see the explosion from where you were! A. I could see 
the flash.

Q. Of the motor! A. Quite clearly, not of the motor, but the flash 
20 up in the front of the ear.

Q. You could see the flash in the vestibule from where you were on 
Sherbourne street! A. Yes.

Q. You heard the evidence of the motorman that the ear crossed the 
intersection in the usual wav! There was nothing unusual to attract your 
attention. A. I think I would have noticed it if there had been.

Q. After it left the intersection, was there anything in its speed or its 
actions to attract vour attention! A. No. I had seen the ear go across 
there, and a Belt Line ear to go north on Sherbourne. and 1 knew there 
was a ear had stopped just passed the west line of Sherbourne, because the 

30 people were hurrying up to catch it, that it was a Sherbourne street ear; 
there was a car that pulled across, and I walked the rest of the distance; it 
wasn’t going very fast because there was a King not very far ahead of 
it that crossed just a few seconds before that.

Q. You heard what the motorman said—vou were in Court, were you! 
A. Yes.

Q. You heard how the motorman said1 as to how he handled his con­
troller as he approached to cross that intersection, that is that he gave it 
one position to throw the switch point, and then that gave him sufficient 
impetus to get across the intersection, and he threw his power off ! A. No, 

40 I understood him to say he put it in first position to throw the switch point 
and then drifted across the point, and then put it to the second or third 
position.

0. Is that the correct handling of a ear! A. Yes, it is.
0. Can any exception he taken to that method of handling it! A. 

No. None whatever.
Q. Having seen the explosion, what did you do! A. Why, I imme­

diately joined a number of men from the shops who happened to be there
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at the time, and we ran after the car; of course, it had the start of us, 
and we were keeping gaining on it a little bit, and we got up just before the 
pole was pulled down, and then the brake w as screwed on to the controller 
and we ran to the front, having picked up some women.

Q. You say you ran to the front, that is to the vestibulet A. Yes; 
but the general foreman was there a little ahead of me, so we at once 
started to get the motorman out of the smoke and dame of the vestibule; 
the thing was full of smoke and Haim1, and the motorman was driven down 

!" into the corner with the flame and smoke belching out at him, and he could 
not get to open this door again after lie had gone back in; he would have to 
walk into the lire to open the door to Ret out, so Mr. Kweetlove opened 
this door.

Q. Which doorî A. The vestibule.
Q. What condition was he inf A. He had been inhaling this sul­

phurous smoke and the rubber, hurtling rubber, and the man was almost 
down and out from having inhaled that stuff so much; 1 don’t think he 
could have reached anything there.

Q. What did you dot A. Why, as soon as 1 saw the passengers were 
._> pretty well all off the ear and the "people were being assisted to their feet 

and attended to, I ran to get water to put the tire out,
Q. How did you get into the vestibule! A. 1 opened the door, kick 

ed the door in—no, Mr. Sweetlove o|H>ned the door from the inside for me 
when he saw me down there; I called to him to open the door, and he 
opened the door and I got in with the water.

Q. You have described to us the condition of affairs as you found 
them when you got in! A. Yes.

Q. You have told us that you are unable to account for the accident 
except it was an electrical freak! A. Yes, for the severity of the blow 

« ' and the abnormal amount of current which was centred in that circuit 
breaker.

Q. When you speak of the abnormal amount of current, how do you 
account for the circuit breaker after it was opened, being fused with the 
points! A. I account for that by the large amount of current that it was 
called to break, that is the excessive numlier of amperes or load it was 
called upon to open this circuit breaker, that is built for a maximum of 
dOO amperes to a maximum of 600, which is a safe load, but there was 
more than 600 amperes, and that would he an abnormal load.

Q. Where could that current come from. A. It came from the solid 
4" circuits that were set up in the controller; that is the solid circuit from 

the positive to negative in the controller.
Q. Your theory is that the origin of the explosion was the controller! 

A. Undoubtedly that is where it started.
0. What started in the controller you cannot say! A. No, nor I 

would not attempt to say.
His LoRURHir: Where did all the 600 amperes go tot A. It centred 

back in the circuit breaker, when the circuit breaker was running and it
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opened that, and that might at the time that the circuit breaker waa railed 
upon to take that load, it would not break it.

Q. It did not go through the motor! A. It did go through the 
motor spasmodically, and hr the short circuit under this controller took 
place, there current found its way to the motors, from the controllers to 
the motors.

Q. Do the mot ore carry as much as 600 amperes ! A. They weren’t 
getting that; they were simply gettihg enough to make them jolt and 

10 carry ahead, hut this was where the great trouble was, this controller 
had burnt up so Itadlv that whatever was positive current in the box got 
mixed up with whatever xvas negative current, and caused a complete 
short-circuiting of the line right in there, and caused this abnormal flow 
of current that burnt the circuit breaker to bridge it across. That is all 
I can say as to the theory of what caused it. I am not going to attempt it.

Mr. McCarthy: Q. Now, my learned friend asked vou whether what 
happened might not be caus<>d by one of those fingers becoming loose, to 
begin with, commencing an arct A. If the fingers were so loose and 
everything to fall down and bridge across a positive and negative ter- 

20 minai, where there was positive and negative current at that time, it 
might have started that trouble.

Q. If it fell down? A- Yes.
Q. IIow would that indicate itself to the motorman—when a finger 

falls down? A. Well, it is such an unusual thing. We don’t have them 
fall down except the spring breaks and then they generally lie in the leaf.

0- There is a leaf under each one! A. Yes,that leaf fits in between 
each finger.

Q. Which prex'ents the finger falling down on the one belowt A. Of 
course, it is not impossible for it to fall down.

30 0. You say that might fall down! A. Hut not on the one right below
it. It might get down; it might cross in the magnet.

Q. How can it get loose—is that a finger vou have there! A. They 
don't get loose—they get loose, but not to fall; tlu-y might get loose 
and move, but they would not fall down.

Q. Aa the screws come out! A. Yes. That is an unknown thing. 
What does happen sometimes is the spring will break across there.

O. That is the spring! A. That is right.
Q. That is what holds it! A. That is the junction against the seg­

ments.
40 Q. You sav that occasionally will become loose! A. Blit not to fall 

off.
0. But, of course, the idea in repairing or inspecting the motors is to 

see they are tight! A. Yes. There is one thing might happen, if they 
were very loose on these cars and the load were very high, it might bum 
the screws off. It is not impossible for a finger to get loose.

Q. Could that happen under the circumstances described here! A. 
Yes, it might. I am in the position of knowing about everything. I have
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had 18 or 19 years’ experience of this kind of thing, but I am not going to 
say what did happen.

Q. You have had accidents happen in the controllers beforet A. 
Yes, we have had them burn out.

Q. Have you had similar accidents which you could not account f</rt 
A. We have never had anything in my own experience that occurred like 
that. We have never had a controller take tire from any cause unless 
this trouble in the lusid switch. It is a most unusual thing.

10 Q. Have you had controllers badly damaged f A. Yes, we have had 
them practically gutted with fire.

Q. What was there unusual in this, the condition of the hood switch f 
A. Yea, and the loud report and these spasmodic reports, the current get­
ting to the motor spasmodically and kept that car going on ahead.

Q. Could the condition to be found happen in the way my learned 
friend suggests, that one of these hcraine loose or fell downf A. Well, 
every trouble has a start, and that might have started at that. There are 
a dozen other things that might have caused it.

Q. Is there anything that might have started it that the inspection 
•jo could have preventedt A. No, I don’t think so, because if it were so had 

as to cause this, it would have been anparent to the ins|... tor immediate­
ly, and I doubt if that car would have run so far as it did: am doubtful if 
that motor would haveope rated successfully up to the time of this acci­
dent if there had been anything so badly run as to have caused this 
trouble, the ear would have refused to operate on a certain position.

y. In the connecting of the wires, is that the hole that the wires go 
inf A. No, that is where tile adjusting screw goes on.

y. Where does the wire got A. The wire is soldered on to that ter­
minal. that is the brass terminal here.

till y. The brass terminal ta which 1) is screwedt A. Yes, and that 
brass terminal runs over the footboard, and into the end of the brass ter­
minal is soldered the lead wire to which I) is fastened by screws.

RE-EXAMINED bv Mr. (Iamki.k:
Q. Now, I think that you misled my learned friend just now. Now 

vou have an electric light in your house and it runs all right until the wire 
separates, and then it goes out, doesn't .it t A. Yes.

y. There is no trouble apparent in the operation of the light until the 
separation takes placet A. Taking vour illustration-----

Q. Just answer my question. That is so, isn't itt A. That is so, 
40 thev burn out suddenly.

y. And wherever there is a break, there is an are to start with! A. 
When the open circuit takes place there is an arc.

y. And if an arc were formed in this particular case the thing might 
run perfectly all right until that break in the are took place, mightn't it f 
A. If the trouble started that way.

y. And with this machine, this controller, for instance, taking that as
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a «ample, if that eontroller had a loose finger of some sort, not so loose as 
to rause trouble at the start, it might, when it went over this special work, 
have shaken loose then and caused the trouble, mightn’t itt A. Yes, if it 
came down out of these compartments when the leaf got out of there it 
might, but it is doubtful if it got out of there, it is housed right in there. 
Anything is possible in these things, anything unlooked for is possible. 
You did not get through with your light burning in the house, I did not 
understand the illustration.

10 Q. It does not matter. The illustration I was giving you was this, 
that you might have everything running all right with electricity up to a 
point when the trouble takes place and it is instantaneous! A. Well, 
that is perfect until it burns out.

Q. And it might lie just hanging on and keeping sufficient connection 
to carry the current through and just at the time when the break comes, 
the burn out comes, it forms the arc then! A. Then you would not have 
been able to do anything to prevent that.

Q. Of course, not in that case! A. It is a good illustration that this 
happened suddenly and unlooked for.

SO Q. No, I don’t think so; what I think that the illustration has pointed 
out is that that might have been from something out of repair or loose 
that was overlooked by your inspectors, because they do sometimes over­
look things, don’t they! A. Those t'lings they would overlook in a con­
troller may be just as necessary in the operation of a car-----

Q. What I want to ask you is this, an inspector does sometimes not 
do his duty as well as others that is so! A. That is quite true, but if he 
overlooks anything it will make itself felt.

Q. But it would not make itself felt until the time it made itself 
felt! A. Well, it was not a very serious thing for him to overlook if it

10 would run several hours before making itself felt or show; he could be ex­
cused for overlooking it.

Q. If the car run for several hours without it showing—you say then it 
was not a very serious thing! A. It would be likely to he in some place 
where he could not see it.

Q. In reference to the brake; you found the brake open, I think! A. 
Yes, the air brake was not applied; the trailer brake had been applied.

Q. But I mean the brake! A. The hand brakef
Q. No, the brake on the motor car! A. No; and as I said before-----
Q. Whereabouts was the pole pulled off! A. That I could not say.

40 I think, perhaps, the car might have drifted the length of itself and the 
trailer after the pole was pulled down and the trailer brake was put on.

Q. Somewhere to about Princess street! A. Somewhere crossing 
Princess street.

Q. Were the motors wired with smaller or larger wire than those laid 
in the wooden box in the vestibule! A. They were smaller wire. No. 6 in 
the field coils—I may he mistaken about that—but No. 9 in the armature 
coils.
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y. How much electricity was there going through the car in voltst 
A. It would be an average of 550 or 560. At that hour of night it might 
have been a little lower, because the heavy load is on the line, all the cars 
are out, and it might have been down between-—it might be more safe to 
say 525.

y. What voltage comes into a dwelling house for electric light! A. 
Usually 110.

y. When you told my learned friend that it was handy to have this
10 wooden thing to carry your cables through, it was Iteeause yot.....uld lift

up the top instead of pulling the cables out f A. Yes.
y. That top is not o;i a hinge! A. It is screwed on w ith probably six 

or seven screws, and to remove it you lift the top right off.
y. Then you think that is handier than the method that is adopted in 

the covers of the steel box! A. There is no doubt about it.
y. The steel would Ik' the safer of the two! A. Not necessarily. It 

would be in a steel car.
y. I am not talking about a steel car, but wouldn’t it be safer to carry 

these cables in a steel conduit than in a wooden conduit! A. No, I am 
HO prepared to say it is not as safe, and I will give you my reason. The 

reason is this, that in steel conduits in pulling your wire around the cor­
ners and into the junction box, you are liable to injure the insulation, and 
your steel conduit, mark you, is always grounded, that it is negative cur­
rent and you are pulling off cables throughout that is more a positive cur­
rent, and they are very liable to be injured, and where the passenger is sit­
ting, sometimes the current is applied, and your cables coming there, the 
current discharges under your passengers' feet, which is more dangerous.

y. Notwithstanding it is on the line! A. Yes. And your frequency 
of grounding with steel cables on the modern steel cars is more frequent 

:<• than it is on the wooden cars that are insulated.
y. And you found that this cable had burned under the bulk-head! 

A. Yes, to the bulk-head.
y. Wasn't there wire burnt inside the passenger part of the ear! A. 

No. But I want to say this, it was burned from the controller inw ard to­
wards the bulk-head, not from the bulk-head outwards towards the con­
troller. the Are had flowed in from the cable to the bulk-head.

y. It had not gone through the bulk-head ! A. No, just to the bulk­
head.y. yuite sure of that! A. Yes. quite sure, the smoke came up, and 

40 the fire was between the bulk-head ; but the controller was only burnt to the 
bulk-head, the outside of the bulk-head was burnt, and the inside was 
scorched, was burnt a little.

y. I got somewhat mixed from what von told my learned friend in 
regard to the cars being inspected in the day time in the barns. Do you 
mean that a car that generally lodges in Roneesvalles avenue barn and 
has repairs done there, as a rule inav be repaired down in King street! 
A. She might, yes.



72
WALTER R. McCRAE—RE-EXAMINATION.

Q. How do they keep track of that, is there any record of that? A. 
That is the duty of the chief inspecte r at night to see that everything is 
done on those cars irrespective of which division they are in. King street 
is the only route on which the cars go to the Roncesvalles barns, and there 
are just a few care on that route that were so done, and it is not very diffi­
cult to follow,

Q. What is bothering me is this, you stated that these cars get their 
inspection of the controllers about once a week. Now, if they go to various 

10 barns, how do you keep track of th.it particular car being inspected 
there f A. You see they don’t go to various I tarns, they only go to one 
barn. King street.

Q. They go to Roncesvallest A. They must leave some place and go 
to another; they leave Roncesvalles barns, but they don’t go to various 
barns.

Q. Now, it is his duty to follow those cars! A. No, not until a certain 
thing has to be done on them.

Q. How would he know it! A. He is there to see it; he is around the 
different barns.

SO Q. Then did I understand you to say that if a car was sent in sav by
the motorman for some break in a part of the motor----- A. From any
cause making it necessary to go to the barns.

Q. That that would be repaired by the mechanic at the barn! A. 
That is in the day time.

Q. If it is a break of that sort, it would he one done in the day time! 
A. Yes, if it was a serious break, it would be done in the day time.

Q. That would be O.K.ed out, and that repair is finished bv the fore- 
n in who did it! A. And he had inspected the rest of the equipment.

Q. You sav that every time that any repair is done on a car, that the 
30 whole car is inspected, every bit of the equipment! A. I say it. yes.

Q. On oath! A. I do. I am on oath now.
Q. You say, no matter how small the repair that is done to a car that 

is sent in, whether the controller to axle to motor, before that cargoes out, 
every part of it is thoroughly examined! A. Thoroughly examined, and 
all repairs made to it. There is a man at every division in the day time, 
working on controllers all the time, he is on nothing else but controllers, 
and just as soon as a car comes in, it goes on the repair pit. and that man 
gets right on her, and he works on the controller, repairing it, cleaning it 
and seeing that it is in good shape.

40 Q, That controller is only a pail of the equipment! And then what 
about the wires, for instance, are they examined! A. Certainly, they 
are all examined.

0. How is the test made on them! A. We examine all the wires.
Q. What do you do! A. We examine the controller, hood switch, 

motors, trucks, the air and hand brakes and rheostats now and then, at 
loast once a year we would take down everything.

Q. Now, you gave my learned friend the state of the vestibule when
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you arrived there, after you had run down to where it was on the other side 
of Princess street f A. Yes, I told them what I remembered of it, as I 
saw it then.

Q. You told us that the motonnan was in there when you got there! 
A. Yes.

Q. And that he was in had shape ? A. He was in had' shape, yes.
Q. And about the Hre in there, the amount of fire that was in there at 

the time; was there any fire burning when von found the man there! A. 
10 No. there wasn't a great deal; there was just the flames burning on the 

rubber insulation; but the |sde had been down there then |<erha|>s two or 
three minutes, but the smoke was still in.

Q. You haven’t any doubt that the motonnan himself was there! A. 
Absolutely none.

Q. Might he have got off his ear and run and got up on it again! A. 
Yes, he might have; the ear was not going so fast, but what he might have 
done that.

Q. At the time of the explosion, of eourse, there would not he mueh fire 
in there; there would he more appearanee of fire than firef A. The fire 

•J# would eome right out at the explosion.
O. That is the flash! A. The flash, the entire vestibule and the 

street was lit up and the reflection was on the window s of the houses all 
simultaneously with the sound of the report.

Q. But that went out! A. No; the smoke would eome and then a 
small amount of fire.

Q. It was not a continuous fire from the moment of the first flash until 
the |mie was pulled down! A. Well, it was a continuous fire, but not al­
ways as large as when the flash took place, not always as large a fire and so 
mueh smoke.

30 Q. What gas would you get! A. Well, there is a sulphurous gas that 
comes from copper that is burning electrically, and it is a nasty smelling 
stuff.

Q. And that was mueh worse bv the time the thing stopped than 
when it started! A. Yes. And when MePhail was in there, he was just 
about collapsing when he was helped out for the want of fresh air.

Q. Have you any reason to suppose he did not eome out of his vesti­
bule and run after the ear and catch it! A. No, 1 could not say as to that. 
I was coming across the intersection and the motonnan was in there when 
he crossed the intersection, and the motonnan was in there when the ear 

4 i stopped.
Q. The reason I ask you that is, you heard these people yesterday, 

who apparently have no interest in the case at all, say that they did see 
him get out, that is whv I wanted to ask you that ? A. I heard the motor- 
man state he opened the door.

Q. I wanted to get from you what your evidence was on that point so 
we can arrive at a proper conclusion, because if the man didn’t get out w.e 
don’t want to try to make out he did get out, and I want to try and see how
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far von -an go in saving that he did not get out, and I want to know now, 
ean you state lie did not get outf A. No, he may have got 
out and got in again, but he eertainly was in when I first saw the ear 
going over the intersection, and he was in when the ear stopped.

His I/miwHil1: Q. With reference to the cables that ran from the con­
troller on towards the motor, you say they were burning. Can you tell 
from the nature of the burning whether that was the burning rubber or 
the cables melted by the electric currentf A. I saw those, and I would 

10 judge the fire simply got into the rubber and followed to the outside of the 
wires. The copper cables inside the. wire were not burnt off by Are or any 
short circuit; they v , re continuous and whole, but the insulation was 
burnt off them.

Q. There was no indication of the electricity that was going through 
that! A. Not at all; the wires were complete.

Q. Then the origin of the fire, as I understand your evidence, took 
place by the flow of electricity continuously in the controller some placet 
A. Yes, it started up there.

Q. I suppose a good deal that took place afterwards was the comhina- 
20 tion of the burning and the flow of electricity and the puff of the rubber! 

A. Just so, yea.
—Adjourned until 2 p.m.
—Resumed at 2 p.m.
JOHN 8. RICHMOND, sworn. Examined bv Mr. Gambi.k:
y. Mr. Richmond, what is your professiont A. Consulting engineer.
y. Electrical f A. Very largely electrical, hut general.
y. Will you just tell me what your experience has been in your pro­

fession f A. 1 have been for several years a consulting engineer; some 
years previous to that I practised as a consulting engineer and expert; 

30 previous to that again I was the expert at various periods for different 
companies; previous to that again, I held positions of more or less res|>on- 
sihilitv and practised about 15 years, a total experience of about 29 years 
and 9 months.

y. Have you had any experience in motor car equipment—electrical 
matterf A. Yes. By arrangement with Dr. F. H. Pearson, a well-known 
motor and electrical engineer at New York, I was engaged for the special 
period of 3 months with the view to acquiring and getting a working know­
ledge of the difficulties and the troubles met with in the operation of street 
railway powers and their equipment, my prineijial duties being to inspect 

40 and repair the equipment.
y. Then what else—what year was that? A. Oh, that would he in the 

early nineties.
y. In Montreal had you any experience t A. I was inspector of motor 

I cars and other matters for the Montreal Street Railway for a period of 
about 5 months. Mv duties for the company being to inspect cars and 
their equipment while in the ear barns, so they could be put in good order
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for service for the day; to keep track of the earn and their equipments 
while in service on the streets, and also to attend in difficult eases to the 
fixing up of disabled ears on the street in a temporary wav so that they 
could lx- got hack to the ear barns for repairs. 1 also had to look after 
other matters generally, such as the power plant and other matters, elec­
trical and general. I was also for a period of 2jcars with the Philadel­
phia Traction <’o.; that company then operated some 4.'SI miles of track. 
My duties for the company were very general, such as fell to the lot of an 

10 expert electrician, and consisted in dealing with the construction and 
problems connected with the |tower house plant, cable systems, motor and 
ear testing, telephoning and signalling systems, the testing of laboratories.
I personally looked after this for the company.

Q. Had you anything to do with the Manhattan Railway Company 
of New York! A. 1 was an expert for that company.

Q. Is that an electrical company 1 A. Yes. 1 was an expert for that 
company for a period of 5 months, in connection with the electrical prob­
lems of that road, and 1 have written several articles on the subject, the 
principal being the “Use and Abuse of Controllers by Motoriuen."

20 Q. What about Mr. Way, of New Yorkf A. I represented him at
Richmond. Virginia, for a period of about Hjnontbs, during which time I 
made a full investigation of and carried out a considerable amount of re­
building in connection with that part of Virginia which was destroyed, 
and power companies and plants affected by the use-----

Q. Have you carried on a certain amount of scientific research in con­
nection with electrical work f A. I have, some of which led up to the 
applying for and obtaining a patent for the grounded neutral. I also 
endeavored in a limited way to explain in some clear and concise manner 
the character of all phenomena, considered separate from and in conjune- 

30 tion with matters.
Q. When you speak of phenomena, you don't speak of that in the sense 

in which it is commonly used. I think, as something extraordinary, phe­
nomena as used by youî A. I take it front the Greek root.

Q. What is tile meaningf A. A phenomenon with me is anything ap­
preciable to the senses.

Q. Then have you had any appointment under the Colonial Office in 
EnglandÎ A. Yes. I was appointed by the Colonial Office of the British 
Government as electrical engineer for the Government of Trinidad, my 
duties being principally to examine and rejsirt upon the various systems of 

40 light, power and telephone in the port of Spa in and its vicinity, with a view 
to finding out the possible danger to life and property thereby.

Q. Then have you ever had anything to do with such questions as have 
arisen in this ease as to finding out and ascertaining where trouble arises! 
A. Yes. With nearly every company that I have been engaged with, in 
the ease of anything unusual, or what is called by the average man pile 
nomenal happening, it nearly always fell to ni.v lot to investigate and find 
out what was the original cause of the trouble.
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Q. Then you suv this experience extended over a period of about 29 
years f A. Yes.

H Q. Do you feel confident to form an opinion as to the cause of the ac­
cident in this onset A. I certainly do, whether it would be exactly-----

Q. Is there any difficulty in voer mind in locating what the origin of 
the trouble was, in view of the evidence that you have livard of the motor- 
man, Mr. MeCrae, and the witnesses for the plaintiff f A. No, I feel very 
clear as to what was the first trouble.

10 (j. Does it strike you aa being anything extraordinary as put bv Mr.
MeCrae f A. Not in the sense he meant it, b it it was an unusually heavy 
trouble; it wasn’t an ordinary trouble that takes place generally; it was 
simply an excessive difficulty, the character of which was not phenoiiïêmU.

Q. Will you explain to the Jury the basis of your deduction from the 
facts wihch have been placed before you ill evidence here in Court 1 A. 
The evidence shows that the trouble was confined to the vestibule portion 
of the car. Mr. MeCrue’s evidence, which was very clear to me, proves 
that conclusively. In the vestibule end of the ear, which is occupied hv the 
motorman, the electrical equipment consists of some wiring from the top 

20 of the ear to the circuit breaker, the circuit breaker, the controller and 
some wires from the controller to the vestibule going into the body of tin- 
car. The origin of the trouble must therefore have liven in some part of 
this equipment. The wire from tlie fop of (be car to the cfrcuTF breaker, 
including the contact jiart at the circuit breaker, was not damaged. The 
circuit breaker was fused up, the controller was fused up and the wires 
leading from the controller to the partition separating the vestibule from 
the main body of the car had the insulation burnt off them; but, according 
to Mr. MeCrae, the stranded w ires inside the insulation were not burnt or
damaged—probably they w ere damaged at tin ntroller or just by it. The

SO trouble was a bad ground, and it is only a bad ground in this ease that can 
cause sîïeli an excessive"!rouble as that which happened in the accident, 
and it is only a bad ground that could have resulted in the flow of prob­
ably 1,000 or 1,500 amperes, it was somewhere in the neighborhood of that 
amount which passed through the circuit breaker and which would have 
produced such an extraordinary state of affairs. As I said, and as Mr. 
MeCrae has shown himself, the circuit breaker should carry up to 600 am­
peres without any trouble happening to it, that is, it would have simply 
automatically opened and have released the circuits w ithout any trouble 
taking place. The loud report, an unusually loud re|«>rt, was evidently the 

4'i first evidence of anTTIiing wrong! Thai Being the ease, it was the 1iea\ v 
report Tvlien the third breaker under siïcTT an extremely heavy load blew 
out, and that heavy load immediately fused the terminal, causing the 
metal to run Together and leaving the circuit breakers in exactly the same 
posit ioifThnT it had ever been, that is, in view of the electrical equipments, 
the grounding could not take place at the circuit breaker.

Q. Now, that the Jury may understand that,, you say the ground; 
what do vou mean hv that I A. That is the connection between a wire
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which bun mi electrical condition, or whnt is termed carrying the elec­
trical current right to the earth, and in a trolley ayateui run with one 
wire only, aa represented by the trolley wire, the other wide of 
the machine is connected to the ground at the power house up at any 
point around the trolley wire. (1 round in this case means that some part 
of the wire or equipment, after passînjf the circuit breaker, became to all 
intents and purismes grounded, in the same way metaphorically as a 
ground wire would he in a ease like that from the trolley wire culled dead 

It) current, resulting in a very heavy ground flow.
(J). That would he from the live wire; that is to say, there was a cur­

rent coming from the trolley ]sile going to the same conductor which 
would take it to the rail f A. To the rail, only, not by the usual course 
which it should take when the ear is in good working" order hv a short 
cut; in other words, straight to ground, to save the frame work of the 
motor; in other words, there was evidently as the flrst trouble a ground l»c- 
tween some part of the equipment in the controller or just hv the eJn- 
troTTer winch took the current direct to the ground wire or some ground 
terminal. ---------' "

ü I —tyrTisik it to the ground wire, that is the wire that is represented as 
a black line! A. Yes, in the sketch that has been represented liv “(!” in 
Kxhihit 4. Any part where you see a heavy black w ire is the ground wire.

Q. And that could he brought about In, v; how do you say it was 
brought about in this ease t A. To more or less show how it was brought 
about, it is necessary to limit the area in which, or the parts of the equip­
ment that ground took place. That area is restricted by the evidence 
which has been given either to some ground terminal |s>int in the eon- 
tmller or to a point at or just in sight of the controller where the wires 
run into the conduit box and tie together with the ground wire. If. the 

!.0 trouble took place inside the controller by the grounding of some w ire, 
inorc'oFTess a direct connection with the trolley and a ground terminal 
in tli> ffilHfdTlor, then The controller must have been in a very bad and 
defective condition. In my opinion, however, the grounding took placé at 
thatffolUTTVliere the wires are leaving tin- trolley to fie together wTTTI the 
ground wire.

IjTNow. is that heenuse-----f A. Now, that is the result of the an­
alysis of the evidence which has been given by Mr. Met'rae, Jirineipally 
by Mr. MeCrae.

Q. Tin'll, do you remember what this man Mel’hail said, that he put 
40 on the power, worked up his machine to about the second or third posi­

tion, and that when this rejiort, this blow-out or explosion took place, he 
threw it off again: what do you sav was the result of that t A. The
ground, which w as the original trouble, at on»...... the circuit breaker
to'open and get into trouble as it did; that happening almost to the senses 
incident with other tîoiïïïles, the motorman automatically, sub consciously, 
threw off, which he should have done, the controller which may have 
been, it is immaterial, on the second or third point. When he threw that
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off there was a very considerable amount of current also flowing through 
the top segment and top finger contact, which is connected from the wire 
to the circuit wire, which flows to the trolley wire.

(j. That is to say, at point TÎ A. The direct current still lieing on 
there 1* always life as long as the circuit breaker is closed, or in the condi­
tion as if it was dosed, or if the trolley pole is up. therefore, when he could 
brake her between the contact linger T and the top segment, every time 
that that is broken, provided that the circuit breaker is in working order 

10 and dosed and the trolley pole is up, there is always an arc takes place 
there; but that arc is not sufficient under ordinary circumstances as to 
cause an arc which will spread and cause other troubles in the controller. 
If, however, the main current flowing at the time is very excessive, such 
as it was in this ease, that arc will be a very heavy one, heavy enough in 
fact to cause confusion all around, melting the metals of the segments and 
the contact fingers, and the trouble will rapidly spread, and as it did in this 
case, right through the controller.

Q. That is to say, so we can get it clearly for the Jury, there are in the 
controller certain punts that come together to make a connection, an elec- 

20 trieal contact t A. The controller part of it is simply a series of switches 
working in conjunction with a set of resistance coils known as the 
rheostats.

Q. Ko if I can say it in an ignorant sort of way that will appeal to my­
self, when the motorman has his connection made----- t A. The controller
handle on.

Q. The controller handle on, he has the connection made between two 
points! A. There may he more than two piints, essentially between two.

Q. Then, when he throws it off, that comes apart? A. Yes.
Q. And there is always an arc formed as it comes apart? A. Yes, 

SO just the same as you open a little switch on a light circuit.
Q. Then ordinarily that s|iark is blown up? A. Yes. That is parti­

ally what the magnetic blow-out coil is for. and the arc deflector.
Q. But if there is too much together that spark remains? A. It isn’t 

blown out.
Q. And causes confusion at the connecting point f A. At the point it 

did connect.
Q. And that is what you say took place here? Now, on what do you 

place that; why do you say that: what evidence is there of that? A. The 
evidence that the controller wad all burnt up; the fact that the motorman 

40 threw off tin- controller handle; that all these things we know electrical­
ly Took place almost simultaneously afi3 Fo the senses appear coincident 
with one another, they fhtlow each other in such a rapid succession that 
no one can say, especially amid the confusion, definitely, and on account 
of the very slight period of time " ween one incident and another, no one 
can say really which took place first. Hut the fact is that the most notice­
able thing in this is, and the fhîng that drew everybody's attention first
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must have been the first thing, and that was that unusually loud report, 
which was to mv mind the circuit breaker flying open.

O. What cTTITscdtlie circuit, breaker to fly open I A. The very exces­
sive flow of current due fiTthig bad ground.

y. Due to the Dad ground either in the cable----- 1 A. Where it enters
the control 1er in that ueighlMirhiNid, or in the controller itself.

Q. You say that no such bad gnliud could oceurin the controller itself 
unless it were in a very bad state of repairt A. Precautions are always 

10 taken in type K.<\ controller, which is a good controller, a good design, it 
is well enough designed for them to have taken care that there is the small­
est chance (Missihle of a short circuiting taking placeTiotweon another part 
of the controller and the ground terminal. If aflyTTilng hap|tcim that did 
produce that it shows that the controller must have been in a pretty de­
fective condition. I don't think it wits. ——*

Q. Then the (stint where you consider that the ground contact took 
place was just outside the cunt roller t A. Just inside ur around .that 
point. The actual definite point to a quarter of an inch would be difficult 
to decide Upon.

•Jit y. Then supposing we follow that out, that contact having taken place 
at that (stint, that is, say just outside the controller, you say that would 
enable the current in large quantities to flow through the circuit breaker, 
through the controller and out at that contact (stint to the wire that took 
it to the ground 1 A. Yes. The contact point would lie the ground really 
in electrical parlance.

Q. And the first defect of that you say would be to fuse the circuit 
breaker# A. No, to open the circuit breaker, which it should do, and 
which it did do. hut that the flow of current was > t exceedingly excessive 
that the circuit breaker had not a sufficient factor of safety to keep itself 

yu ouFôf mischief, and it became damaged so greatly that it was in exactly 
the same condition as îf it nevi'r opened.

<). Wnntit yon say that the trouble went from the circuit breaker to 
the controller or from the controller to the circuit breaker f A. From the 
ground to the circuit breaker the ground first, circuit breaker second, and 
controller third.

His IxietwHlP: Q. It does not make much differencef A. No, practic­
ally almost coincident with each other.

Mr. Uamhi.K: Q. That would he technically the order of itf A. Tech­
nically the order.

40 Q. Now, what caused that short circuit in the w ire near the controller! 
A. You mean that caused the ground!

Q. Yes! A. Well, if it tookplaee right at the point where the cables 
or wires entered the controller, jLcan only have been the result of one or 
two things, either some great carelessness on the (tart of some man at some 
previous time in diuiTtnfhlg some of those wires or a gradual deterioration 
of the insulation of The cables and the deterioration bad reached that point 
that at the particular moment when the nrcTdcriT happened, it broke down,
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a small current took place coincident with it. that current became a very 
heavy current and away went the circuit current.

Q. Now, you heard Mr. McCrae speak of the way in which they in­
spected their tables in order to find out whether there was any leakage 
likely to cause a large amount of arc. How is that to he tested f A. There 
are three wavs to do it. One is a purely mechanical way, or what you 
might call a visual one, by simply observing, that is by lifting the cables 
up and peering around and looking at them and feeling them, try and see 

10 if there is any apparent damage. There is the second way. a very simple 
one like the first, a periodical and more scientific one, and that is by the 
use of a set of plain resistance coils in the form of a whet-stone, making 
what we call a plain insulation test, finding out what the resistance is lie- 
tween the electricity inside the wires and the ground outside.

Q. Is there any difficulty almut thatf A. It is a simple operation. 
Then there is a more difficult—not more difficult, simple enough to those 
who understand it—but iliat could not lie used by railways anyway.

Q. If any of these systems had been properly and carefully carried 
out, could such a state of affairs have existed in cables without being 

ail noticedt A. If periodical insulation tests were made out of the wiring, 
any deterioration wTueh was gradually taking place would show on each 
subsequent Test that the insulation or resistance was getting lower and 
lower, and that would lead to a further thorough examination to find out 
where the trouble was that was reducing that lessening of resistance. It 
is metalled and it Hows constantly, only they used the galvanometer in 
the conduits that run through the streets.

Q. Supposing, for instance, by jarring against the machine, the part 
had become wornt A. It often hap|>cns.

Q. That could have been ascertained, if not bv careful visual inspcc- 
30 tion, by the system that you have secondly described 1 A. 1 would sav it

/eould be more easily found by physical examination, because if you had 
the insulation entirely rubbed off the one part in that way, if there was 
an air space around it when you made an insulation test and the rest of 
the wiring is good, it would still have a high insulation resistance, so in a 
ease like that a physical examination would be better.

Q. Should a visual examination have shown anything of that sort! 
A. Yes.

y. Why might not this trouble have occurred further into the ear, 
starting further in the ear than the bulk-head as it is called, the partition 

*0 separating the two parts of the ear! A. Well, it eould have happened 
there, but it didn't in the ease under consideration.

y. I mean, why ran we sav that it didn’t happen there! A. Well, 
for instance, if you had a ground which came out at a point, after the cur­
rent had had to pass through that amount of resistance, that is, if cur­
rent entered the controller, went through the controller, then through 
the resistance coils, and then through the motors in multiple series, the
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resistance would lie sufficient to limit tlu* current How to u much less 
amount than that whirl] caused the damage to the circuit hreaker.

y. Then getting out of the motors# A. (letting out of tlit* resistance 
coil* in the motors.

Hih Iaikuhhii': Q. What flow would go through f A. Well, you see 
in the ordinary ease it might run from ordinary to extraordinary—about 
ISO amperes.

Q. What could go through those f A. I would say 1,500 or 1,000 
10 amperes, or |>crhups more. Then the motors were in no way damaged;

their wires an* smaller than the wires which run from till......ntroller to
the motors, and as the wires were not damaged there that run from the 
controller to the motor—it was a short circuit in the form of a ground; it 
is always a had ground that Is tin* cause of the trouble.

*Wi\ ("Iamui.k: Q. Ton consider the ground was either in the controller 
or in the wire just outside of itt A. .Inst outside .........intruder.

(j. The rallie just outside the controller; and thi1 evidence (Miints 
more in your opinion to the |mint just outside the eontmllert A. No. I 
would say that superficially the evidence |Miints more to the trouble hav- 

20 ing been in the controller.
<j. Kuperfleiallyt A. Yes, hrrnusr nolxxh actually saw where the 

trouble did take place, nor was there evidence left afterwards of the 
exact |Hiint where the trouble took place, ami that would lie much more 
observant, that would lead me to believe that the trouble really started
in tin.....ntroller. The motorman, for Instance, was facing the controller,
if tlu~eireim breaker flew open next to him and coincident with that 
trouble, the impression left on his mind would not lie that it was the cir 
<-uit breaker o|»en first, but the impression left on his mind was that the 
trouble was in the controller itself.

30 (j. As a matter of fact, from tin* evidence ns you have heard it.
where do you say the trouble did start# A. I sav jt started in either of 
these twai point». If it started inside the controller, which I don't believe 
is the | oint it started in, the eon#roller must have been in a very bad state 
of repairTlieeause that controller is a well ilesigneiT one—the evidence 
shows it is in o'trnnrt state of repair when it went uui and précautions are 
taken 1n the design to prevent any short circuiting in tile form of a bad 
ground taking place between another portion of the controller and a 
ground terminal. Of course, taking the whole series of incidents to the 
finish, about the controller bursting up aa it did. eventually to the extent 

40 it ïîîfl. it is probable also there was another bad ground at the last stages 
of trouble : It is always formed in the controller between some of those 
terminals.

0. How would that happen; would the ground outside or the arcing
outside, in that cable outside, would that have ....... fleet of communicating
itself to the controllert A. Certainly, bv the excessive amount of current 
when flowing through the top of the segment and to contact finger T 
making that are which I described before, and I noticed that the motorman
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himself says that the trouble appeared to Ik- in the bottom of the con­
troller, which is the |M>int at which the wires enter into it.

Q. Now, I suppose that the current having got the start of the circuit 
breaker, there were some other means by which the current could have 
been shut off the ear. How could that Ik- donet A. It could have been 
done by instantly pulling down the trolley pole. The circuit breaker 
doesn't take the current off the car totally, because it still lives, and to 
pull down the trolley pole takes the current off every part of the car.

10 Q. You say that as long as the pole is on, notwithstanding that the 
circuit breaker may be opened, that then- is still the electric fluid going 
through the cart A. Not through the car, hut down as far as the circuit 
breaker, down the trolley pole, through the wire that runs to the circuit 
breaker, and up to the circuit breaker.

Q. Then, when- has this trolley pole to be operated from ( A. It ap­
pears to he generally oîhm>T flu- duties of the conductor to take care of it.

Q. Whereaboutsf A. In the rear end of the car.
(j. Where the rope comes down at the rear end of the ear attached 

to tile trolley pole! A. Yes.
oq y. And if that trolley pole had been pulled down at once, that 

would have taken all the electricity off tin- earl A. If, as soon as the ac­
cident had hap|H-ned, that had been pulled down, there would not have 
been so much smoke, so much illumination, and so much trouble to take 
place, and the ear might have come to a stop before it reached the |siint at 
which I understand the plaintiff was thrown off. or fell off, whichever it 
was.

y. Then, sup|H>sing that the air brake had been put on the ear, going 
at the rate you have heard, sup|K)sing that had been put on at the time 
that the motorman put his power off. threw over tin- handle of the power,

30 what would the effect have hcenf A. Tin- car would have stopped within 
75 or 100 feet easily, especially if he had thrown it on full. It would 
bring the ear to a pretty sudden stop.

y. We are told that at some time the brake was put on tin- back car, 
but leaving that out of the question, tin- putting on of the air brake 
simultaneously with shutting off his power, you say. would have brought 
the ear to a stop inside of 100 foot? A. Yes, you can easily bring a ear to 
a stop,

y. Now, from what you have heard from the evidence of Mr. MeCrne, 
what do you say as to the efficiency of tin- inspection of these cables? A.

<0 That would Ik- very difficult for me to answer without knowing very fully 
of their methods, hut I do feel perhaps a little—I don't know whether I 
am right in expressing an opinion—there is a tendoneTTn sacrifiée a cer­
tain amount of fnspectfon and to allow apparatus to run until it breaks 
down; it is the tendency of modern practice. I w ill give you a concrete ex- 

— -------- -—
y I don't want that. From what you have heard of the sort of ex-4
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amination that wore made of these cables, do you consider they were pro­
perly inspected.

Hin Liriihhip: Wan there any evideuee given of the kind of examina­
tion f He said that ouee a year the cable* were looked at through the car.
I do not recollect that he said anything-----

Witxkhh : He said they took off the cover.
Ills Loiiiwhii1: lie said they did, hut he did not say when they did it.
Mr. MoTahthV: He didn’t say what tests were made.

JO Hi* Lohiwhu*: As far as I know, he did not say anything about what 
was actually done.

Witxkhh: He didn’t say when it was done.
Mr. Gamblk: y. In reference to the inspection of the controller, you 

heard what Mr. MeVrae said alsmt the controllers Is-ing examined alwut 
once a week, and If) controllers to one mau. Ho you think that an rftiieent 
inspection can lie given in that way f A. Providing Unit tlic man hadn’t 
any fair amount of repair to do, and provided that that was the only 
work he did, 1 believe that a competent man could handle the inspection 
of 13 controllers per night.

2) Q. Did you ascertain for me how far it was to Yappy’s shop from 
Sherhourne streetf A. Somewhere in the ssl of 270 feet east
of the east side of Shcrhourne street, approximately that, it might be a 
few feet more or less, hut very close to that.

y. You measured it t A. 1 measured it roughly.
Q. By a line! A. With a ta|>e.
Q. Have you got a table showing the time that a ear moving at 4 

miles an hour or 6 miles an hour would take to get to these different 
jaiints. You made up a table, I think, haven’t you, about that f A. I 
suppose I ran refer to the table—I am not certain about that—270 feet, 

80 without my sketch.
y. 271 f A. That was the number of the store. A car traveling 5 

miles an hour, which I assume was about the speed the car was going, it 
would take 13 3-3 seconds to travel 100 feet; that would be alsmt 27 sec­
onds to go alsmt 200 feet.

y. About a half a minutef A. Very nearly half a minute. I think 
that was less than 270 feet.

Mr. McCarthy: y. What mileage was that f A. That is at 3 miles an 
hour.

Mr. (Iamhi.K: y. Have you any memorandum that would show how 
41) far that place was, in your jsirket there f A. No, only that sketch I made 

up. I am afraid I have mistaken the nmnlsT of the store; it might be 
200.

Q. Hither 200 or 270f A. Yes.
y. Then you know the construction of this ear, the way the seats arc 

placed in it and the width between them 1 A. I have never seen the car, 
hut 1 have seen a car similar to it.

Q. You haven't seen that earl A. 1 haven't seen 900.

2314
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Q. Now, Mr. Richmond, what effect, if any, on this accident would 
the trouble on the car have!

His Iairdrhip: Has that any relevancyÎ
Mr. Gamble: The facility of getting at the trolley pole.
Q. As to the effect, would the strain make any difference with the 

breaking down of.a weak part in the machinery 1 A. Not in this partic­
ular case; hecamu: it wasn't due to iux.v ordinary everv-day little trouble; 
it was a bad ground, it was a trouble distinct from the every-day trouble, 

10 happening even- day.
TTKE5Ck.\AMINK1> by Mr. McCarthy:

y. Mr. Richmond, you say you have had some 211 years’ experience! 
A. I have.

y. I think some of that was as an apprentice t A. I certainly did.
Q. Then, I think you gave your first experience with Dr. Pearson at 

Hostouf A. 1 can go hack a great deal further than Dr. Pearson.
y. I don't know whether that represents your first exjierienee with 

motors, controllers, hood switches, etc. f A. Largely so. 
y. You went into the devices there! A. Yes.

20 y. Was it an active experience or to give advicet A. It was simply 
and purely to work as a workman and to get working knowledge of the 
troubles and difficulties.

y. That was an active practical experience in the motorst A. To 
get the knowledge of those difficulties and troubles met with, 

y. It was with that idea you went in theret A. It was. 
y. To try to master those difficultiesf A. It is necessary to get the 

mastership of them.
y. You realized at that time that those difficulties did exist in con­

trollers, motors, hood switches, etc.t A. Very much so at that time.
30 y. They were very much greater, I fancy, in those days than to-day f 

A. They were. That is where one learnt more in those days, because he 
had so many troubles to deal with that men in these later days haven't 
to deal with. . .

' y. That was when! A. In the early nineties. Probably in 1H92. 
y. You spent how much time there,! A. Three months by special ar­

rangement with Dr. Pearson.
y. then you say you were in the Montreal Street Railway! A. Yes. 
y. In what capacity! A. I was first of all bead inspector at night, 

and then day ins[>eetor during the day.
40 y. That had to do with the shop! A. With the shops and everything 

outside, as far as the electrical construction was concerned.
y. Very much with the same idea as you had in Boston; that is, to 

try and solve difficulties which were hapjM'iiing in the shops! A. Well, 
we did get our experience and training.

y. When was that! A. That would he probably 12 months or 9 
months subsequent to the time I was with the West Knd Street Railway.
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(j. What vear would that bet A. That would la- probably the end 
of 1892.

Q. The West End is the Boston Railwayf A. That is the Boston 
Railway.

Q. After leaving Boston in 1892 or 1899. you went to Montreal in the 
rapaelty simply to apply the knowledge that you gained in Boston 1 A. 
No, to keep on at my experience.

(J. You had to do with similar difficulties such as we have met with in 
10 this ease f A. I had.

y. Motors, controllers blow-up; had they any hood switches of this 
automatic kind! A. No, they had the ordinary common typetit wasn’t 
the automatic. That is one if the developments that we learned at the 
time that was necessary. It is far better in all electrical matters if you 
can put in a piece of automatic apparatus.

(j. Then you were in Montreal in that capacity of inspector for how 
long? A. 5 months.

Q. Then, after leaving Montreal, what position did you occupy nextl 
A. I was with the Baldwin Ixieomotive Company in Philadelphia.

26 Q. That is locomotive steam engines! A. Well, while I was there, 
during the 9 months I was there, they were building an electrical loco­
motive, and it was for that reason I went there, and I had spent 2 years 
on locomotive instruction.

<f. So you were with the Baldwin people after thatf A. I was with 
the Philadelphia Traction Company.

Q. In w hat capacity t A. For alsiut 2 years, and you might call me 
general electric au|>erintrndrnt for them.

Q. There were others there, of course, as well as yourself f A. Well, 
practically all those ex|icrt matters came to me; I had men under me; I 

80 used to go out first and take a piece of work and show them how to do it; 
in those days we hadn’t the same ability to obtain men who were g-ssl 
workmen ns to-dav, and the result was I had to go first and do some work 
with my own hands and show them the method that was adopted, and 
they would follow that. " •

Q. As a matter of fact, the electrical business was in its infancy at 
that time! A. Oh. no, it wasn’t. The West End Street Railway in Bos on 
used the double reduction automatic motors, and it is because I didn’t 
think much of that and.I)r. Pearson’s offer that my time ended with that 
company, as it was one of the biggest mistakes that was in the street 

40 railway business.
Q. You differed with Dr. Pearson f .A. I didn’t differ with him. 1 

simply stated tlic great troubles thev had with their motors on the ears, 
and due to the fact that they were 15 horse-power and double reduction 
motors.

y. I understood you to say that that led to your ending vour timet 
A. To my termination. I am very proud of the fact.
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<j. Because they didn’t agree with youf A. It wasn't a question of 
agreeing.

Q. With the Philadelphia Traction Compatit, vu say your principal 
work waa solving electrical difficulties f A. Solving i iffieulties and start­
ing the work which was very new to the men, showing hem how to do it.

Q. In what res|>ect t A. The power house, equipments in connec­
tion with the cable, systems of installation, testing, and the laving of their 
telephone system.

10 Q. I think, if I remember rightly, your connection with the Philadel­
phia Traction Company was largely in connection with their power house, 
their cables, and the returnst A. No, not the question of the returns, it 
was general work, switch boards, the dynamos; if somewhat suddenly 
the whole city was put in darkness, and I was away, I was the man that 
was suddenly sent for, because I knew the whole plant right through from 
beginning to end.

Q. At Philadelphia you hadn't charge of the trucks, the controllers 
and the cars? A. No, I ha In't charge except some work to repair or test 
the car, testing those motors.

20 Q. Your chief work was in connection with the power house f A. It 
was general expert questions all around.

Q. You were solving phi nomeiial difficulties t A. If you like to put 
it that way, but I wasn’t all the time, but those were part of my duties, 
to solve those matters, but they are more construction and training; I 
did more training of men in construction than I did of solving problems.

Q. Then vou sav you were with the Manhattan Railway of New 
Yorkt A. Yes.

O. For how long? A. For a period of about 5 months.
Q. In what capacity t A. I was on special problems which I men- 

S0 tioned, such as electric corrosion and the use and abuse of controllers by 
motormen.

Q. When was that f A. That would he, as near as I ran tell you. in 
the fall of 1902 and the beginning of 19011. I think that was the date.

Q. You were there solving problems in electric corrosion, that is com­
monly called electrolysis f A. Yes.

Q. And also in connection with the abuse of controllers bv motormen t 
A. More correctly I was—there was quite a prominent question came up 
between the operating department and the construction department, 
which was practically taking hold of things until it was taken over, that 

40 is Mr. Helmar’s side of the matter, in which there was considerable dis­
satisfaction, and I was put on to that question to go up and down the line 
and watch the men as they used the controllers, not as a detective.

Q. Mr. Helmar had the construction end of it t A. No, lie was for the 
Manhattan Elevating Railway, the consulting engineer.

Q. He was on the construction end of it this timet A. The operation 
was going on.
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y. Your particular part wai watching the motormeiif A. There xva* 
no particular problem in watching the motormen, keeping track of them.

Q. Then, after Ur. Kelmar, you went to Richmond, Virginia! A. 1 
did.

y. To investigate the electrical .....ditiona down theref A. Yea.
y. That work waa connected with the electrolysis one t A. It was 

connected fundamentally w ith that, and required, as 1 any, the recountrue 
tion of a very considerable part of their plant affected by the use of 

10 ground return.
V. That was when! A. That would la-—I think it waa during the 

main part of 1899.
y. Then, since that |»criod, have you I icon with any other company! 

A. I was with the Ontario Power Company.
y. When was that! A. That was following the one.
Q. That is still Mr. Helinarf A Yes.
y. When did you leave there# A. I left there in May, 19011—I left 

there about, 1 sup|Mise, March or April or a little later, of UXM.
y. That is when you severed vour connection with Mr. Helinarf A. 

SO It is.
y. Since that time have you been with any particular company or 

for yourself # A. I was of construction of the trolley
roads in the provinces after that.

y. Since that time! A. After I left Mr. Kelmar I was superinten­
dent of the construction of the trolley roads out in the provinces.

y. How long were you there! A. I was called in in that case, prac­
tically speaking, because they got into such difficulties, there was no sys­
tem in that company, and I was called in to systematise the whole plant, 
and to put them in working order. I was at that about it weeks. // 

a# y. In regard to their tracks# A. The construction of tracks and

y. And since then? A. Thin, after that—sometime previous to that. 
I left and came to Toronto.

Q, I think you have been here ever since! A. Practically speaking, 
y. As a consulting engineer# A. Yes.
y. During the time von have Itccn here you have, I have no doubt, 

been consulting with people with the idea of solving difficulties such as 
have occurred in this ease# A. Certainly, by yourself, for instance,

0. That was in rcgnrd to electrolysist A. Yea.
40 y. I think Mr. Kelmar suggested it, ..... Have you ever in the last

i) years born called in to investigate a similar phenomena! A. No. J 
haven't. An Mr. MeCrae himself has said, the thing is only a thing that 
liapixfiTa x crv rarely, and he lias never seen such n thing before.

y. HrnT'Yfin scetrunrh a one before? A. T haw seen accidents 
which bear very much on"!!. Ini! mi!'exactly similar. I have seen acci­
dents happen. *

y. TtlerTTs no doubt, in the first place, that yon and Mr. XbCrae

4^15
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agree that it wag the result oi the groundingt A. Quite, I think we 
quite agree.

Q. There is no question about thatf A. About there being a bad 
ground1

Q. In the ordinary course, of course, the current would be following 
the ordinary line, would go through the circuit breaker into the con­
troller, on into the motors, and on into the rail and back to the power 

, houseÎ A. That would be the course when all the resistance was cut out; 
10 it would have to go through the resistance motors, and go to the rails and 

back to the power house.
Q. Apparently it never got as far as the motors in this case f A. 

Unless at this time. I mean every time there was a sliwk to the ear, the 
ground moved and because there was a short circuit, putting the con­
troller into the condition, as if the handle were on, the motors moved 
quite a little bit.

Q. So that the current, apparently, did go to the motorst A. Just 
spasmodically.

Q. But 1 mean with the great force of current you speak of, did not 
20 reach the motorsf A. No.

Q. That didn't get through the rheostatsf A. Because it would have 
damaged the motors.

Q. There is no question the damage can be fastened within a very 
small area? A. Quite sure of that.

Q. And the question is about one of the fingers on the point where the 
contact began. You have two or three theories as to just where the dam­
age may have originated. Do I understand you right i A. 1 say it occur- 

/red either as it was localized right down to the controller, or just by the 
/ controller, as the circuit breaker could not be grounded, and as the wires 

Han the box could not be grounded, as the ground wire was outside the 
7/pox, the ground absolutely has to spread behind the controller or between 
/ //the wires.

* Q. You would confine it to a still smaller area than Mr. McOrae
Would, that is, you would eliminate the possibility of the difficulty having 
Accurred between the circuit breaker and the controller? A. Because 

//there is no ground wire at the circuit breaker.
Q. Could the failure of the circuit breaker to act—I say that from 

Mr. McCrae’s evidence. If the circuit breaker failed to act in any way 
and allowed a large current out of it to go through to the motors, might 

40 that have caused difficulty to the motors? A. No, because there was no 
trouble in the motors.

Q. I mean the controller? A. No. I say this, that the trouble hap- 
i pening there could only have been due itself to a very bad ground, be- 
// cause nothing less than a very had ground would have sufficient current to 
/ / pass through the circuit breaker to put it into the very bad condition in 

which it was.
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Q. Supposing the circuit breaker failed to act and didn't open? A. 
I understand from the evidence it did open.

Q. Afterwards, it did open at the same period, that is, the handle 
/was open at the same period; but what 1 say is, it was the opening of the 
circuit breaker, according to you, that caused the explosion? A. My 
ppiniofTTs that was the main explosion.

Q. ThenTremendoua power must have been applied at that point be­
cause of that explosion? A. The expansion was so great as to make a 

10 large report.
y. Could it be possible that the circuit breaker not operating at the 

point when the power was applied, caused the difficulty t A. Tt isn't very 
possible, but very improbable.

Q. So that tile difficulty may have originated in the circuit breaker? 
A. No, not in the circuit breaker, because it is a heavy current, of course, 
a heavy flow of current through the circuit breaker.

0. If the circuit breaker didn't act at the point which this should act ! 
A. Well, that may not have been a trouble.

y. But the trouble is that you don't know that the circuit breaker 
20 opened? A. But I sav from your line of argument that you are taking a 

secondary line of argument to mine, and then you would have had some 
trouble somewhere else.

y. That is, provided the circuit breaker fulfilled its duties? A. 
What I understood you to say was, that supposing that the circuit break­
er should have been opened earlier on, and didn’t open. Now, I sav, if it 
should have opened earlier on, then it was due to some fault in tile ap­
paratus somewhere.

y. Therefore, in vour opinion, the trouble did not originate in the 
circuit breaker? A. Mv opinion is entirely opposed to any trouble in the 

SO circuit breaker.
/, y. Therefore, you eliminated all possibility, as far as you can, of tin* 

/tumble arising in the circuit breaker? A. I certainly do.
y. You think the trouble originated elsewhere, which caused the 

difficulty in the circuit breaker? A. Which caused subsequently or al­
most coincident with.

y. Therefore, you get down to somewhere between the controller and 
the wires, including the ground wire at the bottom of the controller? A. 
Yea, between the controller and where those wires, the ground wire and 
the other wires become separated.

40 y. You say that might have happened through the insulation in the 
wires becoming defective ? A. Those troubles often do happen.

y. In testing the wires you suggested three best tests, either the phy­
sical which you have heard takes place, then there is the second method ; 
assuming, as I will subsequently show, that we use the second test sug­
gested by you, that is the proper test, isn’t it? A. That is a proper test, 
probably for ear wiring.
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Q. Then the- wires themselves, is there any fault to find with them: 
1 mean the material usedf A. Oh, no.

n, It might have Kappyned, as you sav, in the wires themselves at 
ttom of the eontrolfcrTor it might have happened in the eontroller

itselft
UII1 U1 HIV luxiiiuiifi. ui it inni nave iiap|icuru in tutr t uuiiumi

A. Yes^ I don’t think Mr. MeOrae or myself or anybody else
y eould alwoliitclyTdefinitely, finally sav it happened in one or the other.

y. ltls Impossible to say just where this difficulty happened. Now, 
in regard to the eontroller, of course there are, as I think Mr. MeCrae 

10 said, some 200 pieces in the controller! A. More than that.
y. It is something that does go out of order, we will say, even occa­

sionally. You have known eases in your experience, I am sure, where the 
controller has got out of order through no fault of anybody’s! A. I 
have known them where if you only knew all the matters all through you 
eould eventually trace responsible with somebody.

y. I mean doing all that eould be done ns far as human power can do 
it, that difficulties will happen cvenin the best regulated families? A. 
Yes, provided you have men who are lax in the doing of their duties at 
times you are bound to have trouble.

20 y. You were put yourself for five months to watch motormen. Dur­
ing that time you found that some of the motormen had abused their 
machines? A. They did not, after 1 had been there and made my report.

y. You don't know what they do now. You found anyway when 
you went there that men did abuse their machines? A. Yes, I was put 
on that work because that was noticed bv others.

y. Machines will become abused by reason of that? A. If the in­
spection or superintendence of such matters are lax.

y. For instance, just take a ease; a car is inspected in the morning, 
and the eontroller is properly inspected, and that ear is turned out on the 

30 road, would it be possible through the abuse of the motorman who ran that 
ear in the morning to have difficulties occur which might lead to what 
happened in this ease? A. According to my views, if he opened it and 
made a too short circuit or jammed something in and damaged, but if the 
controller was properly inspected, as you say, before it went out, it would 
have been very difficult for it to get out of order without some almost 
criminal ease of negligence.

His Lordship: y. You mean something entirely beyond' incompet­
ence? A. Yes.

Mr. McCarthy : y. It would have to be beyond incompetence? A.
40 Yes.

y. How often would you suggest that a controller should be inspect­
ed? A. I don’t know. I used to inspect any I had; I used to look every­
one over every morning.

y. How many had you? A. Oh. probable in the neighborhood of 50. 
y. You would do 50 yourself? A. I would go over them, there were 

other men there besides, but I would check them over-----
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Q. I don’t moan simply a visional inspection, I mean taking them 
out? A. I would do no repairs.

Q. I would mean no repairsf A. 1 would just take the connections 
out and look over them.

(j. Would you take them out on the bench? A. No, 1 would not do 
that; that was the men’s work.

Q. You would simply look over them as they were there f A. I 
could not tell definitely myself from my inspection whether there was or 

10 not a trouble there. My inspection was simply to keep track of and 
cheek the men who were doing that work. I had sub-inspectors and 
other men under me, but 1 personally myself took considerable pains 
about inv personal investigation to check them over.

Q. It would be impossible to take them apartÎ A. Oh, no.
Q. Then, in spite of that inspection, did you have difficulties arising 

in your controllersÎ A. Not so much in the controllers. Now and again 
we would have a little leakage or something like that, or nothing that 
would produce a bad ground, like that; but in those days the apparatus 
was not what we get these days, a well designed apparatus.

10 Q. Ko the necessity for inspection to-day is not as great as it was 
when you had charge of these caret A. It is just as great; the necessity is 
as great, but the troubles which would result are not as great, because the 
apparatus is more perfect; there were more repairs to it those days.

Q. What are the difficulties which beset the controller to get it in such 
a condition as it wouldhc liable to cause such an accident as happened in 
this ease f A. Loose contact Ungers.

0. Would the one loose contact finger cause it? A. It might; it 
would not cause a trouble like this, not like the one we have under con­
sideration; it could not produce a ground like this, because, as I said bc- 

3# fore, the type K.C. controller is so designed that the usual things like finger 
contacts getting loose or other little matters getting loose will not result 
in a ground terminal.

Q. Might one finger coining loose lead on to difficult results? A. Not 
in a ease like this. As Mr. McCrae said, if you had a loose contact finger, 
it would begin to heat up, being loose there, not a very good contact, that 
vou can handle; and the contact would get worse, and at last it would 
begin to arc, and the motonnan would notice that arcing, and they have to 
start the car and attend to it; but to get such an accident as happened 
in this case one would require a series of ground quite different to that. 

40 O. What I want to get out from you is. what would have to be the 
condition of the contryllcr.to cause the accident you have here in this 
case? A. As I said, for instance, if you took a wrench or something, 
which I am certain was not done, and put it between one of the ground 
terminals, the ground terminal in the controller must go, then you might 
have the same results that arcing would have got into such a condition 
that all sorts of trouble would have happened.

Q. Tf it began with one arc? A. One arc leads to another.
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Q. Out1 arc might be caused by a loose finger? A. Only as I say, the 
arc formed in that ease—the are deflector is put in there to take care of 
that arc.

Q. I don’t yet understand what would be the condition of the con­
troller to cause what happened in this case, if it was caused from the con­
troller? A. I said it is very improbable in my mind that of the two 
I (oints I selected as one ofwhich the grounding took place, that it was in 
the controller. It would reiiuire. if you decide that it was in the controller, 

10 that some very unusual state of affairs took place to produce that, such as 
making a short circuit between those two points.

Q. So under ordinary circumstances it would be almost impossible to 
get such an explosion as occurred in this case in the controller? A. I 
think the ground was at the bottom of the controller; I see no other posi­
tion left.

—Your idea, in your opinion, comes down to that one point, practic­
ally that some difficulty occurred with the wires at the bottom of the con­
troller bv which the current became-----1 A. The circuit breaker flew
open.

20 (j. You had to get your ground first? A. Yes; that was not the
cause, but it was the primary cause.

Q. It was the originating cause ? A. No, it was not the originating 
cause; it was the primary trouble.

Q. The cause, you say, was something wrong with the wires which 
caused the ground? A. Which again would have a cause before that.

Q. So if we go on ad infinitum that might go around so far as to get 
on the car itself. That happened, you think, from some wiring from con­
tact with the ground wire forming a bad ground, which threw your cir­
cuit breaker open, allowed an enormous amount of current to flow in? A. 

30 I don't confine that short circuiting to the ground wire, right absolutely 
to that point, but some other point in that neighborhood, because those 
wires go a little further up, they go into the connection part.

Q. So it is almost impossible to believe in vour mind that the accident 
originated in the controller itself? A. Not as you mean the controller, 
not as a piece of apparatus considered by yourself.

Q. Would you expert, or would it hr reasonable to expect that if that 
controller was taken to pieces two months before, those wires were all 
taken down, separated, tested both visually and otherwise, put back in 
their place in apparent good order, would you look for trouble in wires 

40 (luring that period? A. I have knownjn less periods than that the wires 
to become defective, not in the ordinary way, but-----

Q. You would not look Tor if, as a matter of fact? A. It would de­
pend upon just the class of men I was dealing with and the way mv cars 
were running, and what part of the shops they were in. I have known 
wires to deteriorate very rapidly.

Q.. From what cause? A. A man may work around a wire and he
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may uee a solder; all men dou't use the same thing, some use arid, and 
some may drop hot solder on the insulation.

Q. If solder and rosin were only used----- f A. That is what we al­
ways use. 1 have eaught men using arid; 1 may say I have done it my­
self when I have not had the rosin handy, but knowing what it would 
do-----

Q. From a cause of that kind, of course, I can readily understand 
that might burn through an insulation very quickly? A. Yes.

10 Q. I mean with reasonablgjuu^. would it be reasonable to expect the 
insulation of these w ires to wear iulhis time? A. Certainly not, with 
reasonable use and reasonable care, you would certainly expect reasonable 
results, that goes without saying.

His Lordship: How long ought the wires to last f A. Oh, in the or­
dinary course of events—of course, rubber is a very uncertain tiling, there 
is a very great difference in the class of rubber that is used for insula­
tion; some is very poor.

Q. Taking wires like these, roughly judging bv that, they weren’t 
bad wires? A. They ought to last ten or fifteen years.

Ü0 Q. As I understand it. in your view, the whole ease is shut up to this / 
one question, that this incoming electrolysis got into the outgoing wire/7 
through some other than the orthodox channel ? A. By some very short ' 
cut.

Q. And it is not permissible with electricity? A. No, it is not.
Q. That short cut involved confining these two sets of wires fairly 

close together ? A. It did.
(). And they were sufficiently originated originally? A. At some or­

iginal time.
Q. When they were covered with rubber, that cover kept them per- 

30 forth" safe? A. Yes.
Q. Ho the incoming current got into another place where it had no 

right to hi ! A. Yes.
(). AmTas I understand it, you think that by some means that got into 

the ground wire? A. Yes.
Q. And then as soon as it fourni a,wav of getting out, then the flow 

of electricity created all the rest of the trouble? A. Yes, it was very ex­
cessive : it would be in a bad ground like that.

0. And Row long did it take that electricity to create trouble after 
once it began to leak into the outgoing wire? A. The first arc that is 

40 formed may be small, but it very rapidly—but it would increase very 
rapidly.

Q. So it might well be even that when this man was crossing over 
Stjerhourne street, he had no ground whatever? A. It might have been 
that; there might have been a little coming on, but increased. It might 
have taken a second.

Q. It might have taken a few seconds and the whole thing would bp 
over? A. Yes.
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Q. Ho there w ould be really no opportunity unless your eye happened 
to be on it. to observe the trouble 1 A. No, nothing like that.

Q. It would be all right until this happened, and then the moment 
the whole thing would he over in a few seconds? A. Yes. The only thing 
I don’t like is, 1 don't like the ground wire being—as Mr. MeCrae says, so 
elose to the other wires—frfls'not Jonc-in the ease where the box runs be­
tween the controller and the partition. Where he said it went into the 
controller by the use of tape, they were bound together, that brings fhem 

10 very elose together, and that is not a good thing.
Q. It is alt guess where it was? A. (luess in a certain way, to get 

to the exact point, you understand.
Q. You know it happennd.outside the bulk-head, and that is practic­

ally all you do knowf A. Nubudy can say absolutely and definitely the 
exact point it was that trouble took place.

Mr. Gamble: There nnght he, as I understand it, a trouble that could 
not possibly be detected on one side, and it developed so quickly-----

His Lordship : What T understood from the witness is this, that the 
current began to leak and the first are that was formed as result of that 

20 leakage would he nothing, a very slight thing, and that leakage might de­
velop so rapidly that it would be only a matter of a second before the leak 
would amount to a very large one.

His Lordship: Q. It is just like a little spark? A. Just exactly to all 
intents and purposes; the big burn-out fakes place at once.

Mr. McCarthy : There is anoffiér point, mv Lord, the w'ires are not 
hound together as they come out of the controller.

Witness: They are hunched together.
Mr. McCarthy: They are not hound just there.
His Lordship: I assume von will he able to show how close they arc 

30 together.
Mr. McCarthy : Oh. ves, mv T-ord.
Mr. G amble: That is the case, my Lord.

DEFENCE.
WALTER R. McCRAE, re called. Examined by Mr. McCarthy:
Q. You have been sworn. Just explain to his Lordship and the Jury 

on this photograph, Exhibit 3, where the wires, the ground wires, come 
out of tlie controller? A. This pole shown here in thr"ptltlTograph mark­
ed G. -

Q. The hole represented by the letter G? A. You have the cables 
40 into the controller, it is the only way for the wires to go in there above 

the ground; the trolley and all the distributing wires go through that hole, 
and around that hole you will notice a little black edge here, that is a piece 
of red fibre, which is an insulator, insulating these cables away from the 
grounded portion of the box, and this box is grounded intentionally, and



95
H VO H COWAN—F.XA MIXATIOX-IX-CHIEF.

that fibre is put around so that the insulation of this cable shall not In1 torn 
against the rough edge of the box or hole; that is a east iron-----

Q. After the cables go through they come through loosely# A. You 
just pass them out through here loosely, to wherever they go in these dif­
ferent directions; then all these wires are carried out, they are not bunch­
ed, not together, they are bent and shaped and brought around to the left 
hand of the ear. There is no crowding there.

Q. What methods are adopted bv you or your company of testing 
10 these cables? A. We test thcjnsulation at the White Stone bridge; and 

we have the resistance teats.
(j. l)o you keep track of the different tests# A. Of the different cant, 

ves. If they show weakness in any of the cable* they are immediately re­
paired at the time.

Q. You can tell from tins- to time whether the resistance ia all right 
or not ? A. Yes.

CROSS-EXAMINED by Mr. Gamble;
Q. There is no effort made to separate the ground wire from the 

other wires going into the controller at that point# A. Only in so far 
y* as putting tape around the ground wire, as well as the original insulation 

that is on the wire. We bend them all; that ia an extra precaution going 
amongst those other wires, an extra precaution, perhaps, not necessary.

Q. Is that insulation continued wherever it comes in contact with the 
other wires# A. Around at the box, coming in around under the box and 
into the box over the window; it is kept outside of the wooden conduit, it 
does not meet it there.

His] omisHli': Q. As 1 understand you. this ia put there for the pur­
pose1 of giving additional insulation# A. To that particular wire.

Q. This table is an insulating table# A. Yes.
30 HUGH COWAN, sworn. Examined by Mr. McCakthy:

Q. What is your position with the Toronto Railway Company? A. 
Night inspector.

O. Your inspection covers what barn? A. All the barns.
Q. How many bams are there where cars are stored# A. We have 

five operating barns and central shops.
Q. Now, what is your system of inspection ? I suppose the majority 

of the cars are in at night? A. Yes.
Q. And the fixed part of the regular inspection takes place on them# 

A. Yes.
*0 0. This car. No. 9(>6, I believe, is housed between the Roneesvalles

and King street barns? A. Just at the time of the accident she was 
running continuously out of the Roneesvalles barns.

Q. She was housed continuously at Roneesvalles avenue? .A Yes, if 
I don't mistake. I looked it up. and I think she was there for some time.

Q. Then her inspection would be there? A. Yes.
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Q. Her repairs would be there, toot A. Yes.
Q. Her overhauling would be at the main shops? A. At the rentrai 

shops.
Q. That takes place once a yearf A. Yes, sometimes oftener.
Q. In regard to inspection, Mr. Mct'rae lias told us the number of in­

spectors, and I don’t think we need go over that. A. Mr. McCrae inform 
ed you what was right.

Q. You have one inspector anyway in regard to controllers! A. Yes. 
10 Q. What is his system of inspection as far as controllers arc concern­

ed t A. His system of inspecting controllers—he has so many to do each 
night.

Q. Tell us what he does Î A. Well, he would knock his circuit 
breaker out, if it is not out, and look at the condition of the controller, 
and if it requires any fingers he puts them in; if it requires any oiling, 
greasing, he does that. He manages to go over the controllers about once 
every 7 days.

Q. Who was the foreman in charge of the shops there? A. Mr. 
Harton.

20 Q. Who was the controller inspector at that time? A. Mr. Dalton.
Q. Where is he now? A. I could not tell you; he went away to some 

city on the other side about June last, I think it was.
Q. Then you say the inspector gets around over the controllers about 

once—about every seven days.
Q. Is there any regulation about the motormen looking at their con­

trollers at all before they go out? A. Well, the instructions to the motor- 
man is, when his car is assigned to him, he goes to his car and sees that his 
circuit breaker is not out, puts the reverse key on and places his con­
troller on full both forward and reverse position; that will let him know if 

30 there arc any defects in the fingers or anvthing of that kind.
0- Are these cars reported as they come in? A. Yes, they arc all 

signed in.
Q. That is, if a man takes out, as soon as lie comes in lie signs it in? 

A. Yes.
Q. That means, he either says it is all right or reports any defects in it ? 

A. Yes, he signs it in on the signsheet, with any defect he may detect.
Q. Have you the signing in sheets for this car? A. Well. I am not 

certain. I think thev are here.
Q. Whom would thev go to? A. I think they are here. The signing 

40 in sheets are signed by the night foreman.
0. Who are they signed bv? A. Thev should be signed by the night 

foreman. Mr. Barton, or his assistant.
Q. Rut the motorman signs it in? A. Yes. I thought you referred 

to the signing of it.
Q. Rut down at the bottom Mr. Barton is the man who signs and the 

motorman is the man signing these ears in, thev are signed in to him! A. 
No. the cars are signed in there. The object of the inspector signing that
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sheet is to show that there has been nothing missed that has been signed in 
hy the motonnan; that is to sav that all inspection has been made.

(j. If a motonnan signed a ear in as having two windows broken, this 
is to show that they were repaired before he went out, and holds the 
motonnan responsible; you hold him responsible 1 A. Yes.

Q. Now, apparently there are daily reports made in regard to the ears 
by the inspector of the Roneesvalles division f A. Yes.

Q. Is that the form of the daily report f A. That is the night man's 
10 report; this is the report of the controller inspector.

Mr. Gambia-.: None of these things, my laird, have been produced, and 
it is a very serious matter when you are dealing with a ease of this sort, be­
cause we should have an opportunity of criticizing these.

Ills IjOUDhhii': I would naturally have found that you would have 
found that out at the examination for discovery.

Mr. Gambia;: No. my Lord, vour examination for discovery shows all 
things in connection with this ease produced—the history of the car your 
Lordship will see it is not quite clear.

His Lohiiship: I could not exclude the evidence on that ground. It 
20 would lie better to have these documents all produced.

Mr. Gambia;: Does your Lordship mean that in no case, where docu­
ments are sprung on the other side, that they should have no opportunity 
of criticizing them?

Him I/iiiiwhip: 1 do not mean anything id' the kind. What I mean is, 
when we are trying the case, as far as I am concerned, I went to get at the 
Uittoni of it. You can make all the comments you wish, as to whether they 
are produceable or not.

Mr. McCarthy: There was no order to produce, no affidavit on pro­
duction.

30 His Lohiiship: That ends it.
Mr. Gambia;: Mv learned friend is wrong. It is putting us at great dis 

advantage to have these things come up.
Mr. McCarthy : Of course, my learned friend had the history of the car 

and the other papers my learned friend had. I did not know of the exist­
ence of this until to-day myself.

Mr. Gambia;: My affidavit on production was duly served, sworn to by 
Mr. Green in which------

His I omis hip : It seems to me that the lesser evil is allow the documents 
to go in, and von can make what comments you want afterwards.

40 Mr. Gambia:: I wish to point out to your Lordship that the only thing 
they produce is the employees' report of the accident, which tlicv claim-----

His Lordship: I quite understand that at that stage of the ease the 
man who made the affidavit only had his mind directed to that particular 
thing, and the one thing was what he had before him, that is to sav, tin- 
reports he had of the actual occurrence of the accident, and it was not until 
later on that the importance of these documents came up.

Mr. McCarthy: Your Lordship will realize this, that the particulars
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were only given last May, and 1 did not know until last night what my 
learned friend was attacking; I did not know until Mr. Richmond got in 
the hox what the attack was.

His Lordship: The production made was about the overcrowding of 
the ear and the conductor leaving his post and not pulling the trolley jade 
off the wire.

Mr. Gamble: I would like an opportunity, of course, my Lord, before 
the ease is closed of looking over these documents, and if necessary

10 cross-examining on them later on, heean am not prepared now to do so.
Mr. McCarthy: I am only asking \ i, Mr. Cowan, if this was a daily 

report put in by your foreman, Mr. B;v -n, on the 7th of August, with re­
ference to the controller and inspect of this ear? A. Yea. That is, to 
all ears; that is the number of ears ,t the controller inspector did that 
flight.

Q. I see he did eight ears that night? A. Yes. And among the eight 
cars was 966.

Q. Then the sheets show that a practically new controller was put 
in on June 7th.

29 Mr. Gamble: I submit, my Lord, that is not evidence.
His Lordship: 1 do not think the sheets have any interest in it.
Mr. McCarthy: I am going to call the man who made it.
Q. Then, about the inspection of these cables; are they under your 

inspection too? A. No, any more than coming through the controller, 
coming up into the controller.
// Q. That is what I mean? A. Yes, the inspector examines all those 
anjl all the terminale.

Q. What inspector? A. The controller inspector.
Q. He inspects these cables, you say? A. In the controller.

30 Q. And as they come out of the controller or where? A. Well, of 
course, as they come out of the controller they have got to come hack; he 
ran only see what is in the controller.

Q. They come out of the controller at a certain point and go into the 
conduit? A. Yes.

/(). Who inspects those? A. Well, the motor inspector, or rather the 
controller inspector will look at and inspect all wires it is possible for him 
to inspect.
His Lordship: Hoes the controller inspector put on the are test? A. 

No.
40 Q. Who does that? A. That is done in the central shops.

Q. That is under Mr. Mefrae? A. Yes.
CROSS-EXAMINED by Mr. Gamble:
Q. You sav the ear was housed continually at the Roncesvalles barns? 

A. Well, take for a few days just around that time, I looked it up, and I 
am pretty sure she was; the signing in sheets would show that.

Q. Ÿou might make yourself a little sure of that; do you know it is so?
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Mr. McCakthy: Here are the signing ill sheets, my laird; 1 don't know 
that they are evidence. This man does not sign them.

Mr. Gamble: I want him to give his own evidence.
Q. Do you know where that car was housedf A. 1 know that on the 

9th that car was in the Roneesvalles car barns.
Q. Did you see it ? A. Yes.
(). You remember seeing it f A. I know by the signing sheet and tin- 

records. It would lie difficult for a man to go over a number of ears and 
16 pick out one car from memory.

Q. Do you know anything about the method of inspecting the con­
troller! A. The method of inspecting the controller f

y. Yes. Do you do the inspection yourself Î A. Why, no, 1 just look 
after the inspector*.

y. You see that they do their work? A. Yes.
Q. What is the system of inspection, who he dot A. The system of 

inspection—every man knows the car that is in his barn, every controller 
t inspector knows How many cars he 1ms to look after; now, he has so many 

days to go around those controllers, and that is the general inspection,
! outside of any trouble that might develop; if there is any trouble, that is 

looked after in the interval. Now, the method of inspection is to open 
| the controller, see that the fingers arc good, the segments arc not burnt, to 

see they are oiled, the contacts are oiled, brush out the controller, clean it 
out, see there is nothing wrong in the controller, and that is the inspection 
of the controller.

Q. That docs not include any examination of the wires in the back 
part of the controller, does itf A. Well, you cannot examine-----

y. Just say what it does. Does it include the examination of any 
wires in the back part? A. Oh, yes, that includes the examination of the

90 wires. '— ------ ---------
'"Tj. In the hack part. Then why were you going to say you cannot do 

itÎ A. Well, what I thought you meant was what we call the hack of the 
controller, that is right in back of the main roll.

y. That is what I meant A. You cannot examine those; those arc 
covered with the fibres. I thought you referred to the wires that come up 
here at the bottom.

WILLIAM BARTON, sworn. Examined by Mr. McCarthy:
y. You are the foreman, I believe, at the Roneesvalles barns! A.

Yes.
40 y. You are in charge of the inspectors and repairing at that barn? A. 

Yes.
y. And who is Mr. Dalton who was with you in August of last year? 

A. Controller inspector.
y. When did he leave you? A. He left about three months ago, I 

guess.
y. What were his duties in regard to controllers ( A. Well, clean 

'/them, overhaul them if they needed it.//t.
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Q. And repairing? A. Yes.
Q. Did you superintend that work over him ? A. Yes.
Q. Now, ean you speak, looking at the records, which I notice is sign­

ed by you, of the report of ears inspected on August 7th, 1910-----
Mr. Gamble: Is that evidence, inv Lord?
His IjOKUKHir : He ean refresh his recollection. He must have a recol­

lection to refresh. He must say, I recollect.
Mr. McCarthy: I don’t suppose, my Lord, that I could ask a man to 

10 recollect what controllers were inspected on August 7th last year?
His Iaihdhhip: I do not suppose he can.
Mr. McCarthy: Q. 1 don’t suppose you ean recollect what particular 

ears were examined on August 7thf A. No.
His Iaihushii1: In one sense, I think it is a great misfortune that the 

records were kept that way. Unless the witness can say, I have a recol­
lection, he cannot use that in order to refresh his memory; but if in the 
refreshing of his memory he ean say he can recollect, that can be used.

Mr. McCarthy: Q. Can you say, speaking from recollection, how- 
many controllers were inspected that night, how many ears would be in- 

20 spected that night. A. It would be just according to the work we done. I 
think there might be five, they might do seven, they might do ten, just ac­
cording to the work they required.

Q. How many earn were housed in that barn as a rule in August, 
1910? A. I guess, as near as I ean think, there would be about 80 cars.

Q. Was M6 oee of the cerst A. It w as.
Q. Then ran you say, speaking from your recollection, whether the 

controller in 966 was inspected during that time; have you any recollec­
tion of the controller being inspected that time at all? A. No, I could 
not say, not straight. I suppose I examined them all right through after 

30 they were done. Of course, I could not say right straight that I looked at 
that car specially.

Q. I did not suppose you could, it would he a pretty hard task on a 
man’s memory? A. And it is so long ago since it has been done.

0- Did all the controllers go through you after Dalton had finished 
with them? A. Most generally.

Q. Can you remember 966 as distinct from other cars? A. No, T 
could not remember it. I remember the night and everything that the 
accident happened.

Q. If you remember the night the accident happened, do you remem- 
40 her whether you had inspected the controller previous to that; I mean, 

did the night of the accident call your attention to the fact that the con­
troller had boon inspected at all? A. No.

Q. So you have no way of recollecting when that car was inspected in 
August of 1910? A. No, only by the sheets, that is all T can go by.

Q. You have seen the sheets? A. T have seen the sheets, I have the 
sheets for six or seven years.

His I onnsHlf: I think the situation is plainly that the witness cannot
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recollect one iucident in the cane. All he can sav is that lie can go by the 
sheets.

Mr. McCarthy: Subject to your Lordship’s ruling, 1 would submit 
the question in reference to the sheets which he has.

His Lohiwhiv: 99 eases out of 100 it is not objected to because we 
want to get at the actual facta, but if the objection is taken, I am afraid I 
shall have to so rule, but it is against my own desire.

Mr. Gamble: In all these eases there is a reason. Your Lordship says 
10 if I object, you won’t admit it. although you would like to have it. What 1 

was going to say is this, that for all these rules of evidence there are rea­
sons, and the Courts have decided that evidence of this sort is not to bo 
admitted, because it is not reliable.

His Lordship: That is not the reason. The main reason and the only 
reason is this, that a witness must give his oral evidence as to what he per­
sonally can recollect. If he cannot recollect it—the evidence must be 
given under oath.

Mr. Gamble:: And behind that is the reason, my Lord, it lias got to be 
given under oath. What is the use of having it under oath t Because you 

•0 want evidence of real facts. You don’t want to have reports loaded up-----
His Lordship: If anyone would suggest that witness is going to make 

a false entry before the accident happened, it would be very extra­
ordinary.

Mr. G amble: Now, T am casting no reflection on my learned friend 
when I say this, it is not necessarily before the accident happened; tile 
whole thing might lie concocted in a week.

His Lordship: That will come out, if there is going tube anything eon 
ported. However, I have ruled with you.
/. Mr. McCarthy: Q. In the inspection of these controllers, do you in- 

811 meet the cables which come from them! A. Underneath the cart 
JI O. Vest A. Yes, I inspect the cables underneath the cars every 
-night up ns far as the controller, and the controller man inspects them.

CROSS-EXAMINED by Mr. Gamble:
A. What

$
Q. What care are you talking about that you examine! 

cables!
O. Yes! A. The cables from the machines.
0. From the machines to where ! A. Up through to where they go 

jnto the box to lead to tlîecqntrnlkl.
Q. How far do you examine those! A. Well, from the machine up to 

'the bottom of the car.
Q. And that is about the middle of the car, isn’t it about the middle 

of the ear! A. It just depends on which machine you are at.
Q. Where is it that your cables stop, what part of the ear! A. Well, 

they run right along to the hack of the car, from the front to the back.
Q. Where arc the rvires that you examine, the cables that you ex­

amine; will you tell me just whereabouts they arc in the car! A. They
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tub along the inside of the ear in a box and come down opposite each 
maehine.

Q. How far do you go back towards the back of the platform and ex­
amine those? A. You see we only examine them from the bottom where 
they come out of the machine jug] up into this box.

O. You don’t follow them along that box? A. Oh.no, we cannot.
Q. Just between the motor and the box, that is all f A. Yes.
Q. Who inspects the wires at the controller? A. The controller man.

10 ALBERT MITCHELL, sworn. Examined by Mr. McCarthy:
(j. You are conductor in the employ of the Toronto Railway Co. A.

Yes.
• y. You were the conductor on the car on which this accident hap­
pened in August last on King street? A. I was.

Q. You remember starting up that night from Sherhourne street? A.
Yes.

y. Where were you on till1 ear? A. I was alsiut the third seat from 
the front.

y. When you started? A. When we started.
20 ÿ Were your seats all full ? A. Pretty fairly full. There would be 

about 66 passengers on the ear.
y. On the motor? A. On the motor.
(j. How many does she seat? A. The seats face the one way. 
y. How many seats would there be? A. That I could not say. The 

ear should seat about 75 or HO people,I should sav.
y. You say there were about 65 on that night? A. Yes. 
y. When the ear started from Sherhourne street you were standing 

where? A. 1 had collected the fares. We stopped at the street before 
you come to Sherhourne street to pick up some shopmen, and then we pro- 

SO eeeded on to Sherhourne street, and I had collected their fares, and I was 
about the third seat from the front.

y. Standing on the side of the step? A. Yes. There was a lady and 
little girl that got on at Sherboume street, and, of course, the car pro­
ceeded; the Belt Line car went up first, and the motorman gave her one 
position to turn his point and then, of course, threw off the power.

y. You could not see what the motorman did? A. I was up there and 
.seen that.

y. I)o von remain there? A. I went to collect this lady’s and the 
little girl’s fare.

40 y. Where did she get in? A. She got on, it was about the fifth seat 
from the front of the ear.

y. So after she got on you say vou stepped hack to collect her fare? 
A. Yes.

y. Had you crossed the intersection by that time? A. We were just 
crossing the intersection.
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y. Where were you when the explosion took placet A. Just at this 
UUi eeet

y. What did you do when the explosion took placet A. Well, of 
course, I didn’t get much time to do anything. A big woman came and 
knocked me off; I guess she weighed about 400.

Q. That is where you felt the shock t A. 8he grabbed my collar and 
tore it right off.

y. You went down on the street î A. I went down on the street and 
10 I jumped up, and of course 1 ran to catch up with the ear to get on, you 

see, to get at the pole, and w hen 1 got there I got knocked off, a man with 
a bag came up and knocked me off again.

y. Ko your experience began the fifth seat, when the lady
took you off, and then you say you jumped up and ran along to catch the 
car, and as you got on the rear end the man with the bag knocked you off 
again. What sort of a bag was itf A. He was a plasterer’s laborer.

y. Then after you got the second knock-out, what happened you 
thent A. Of course, 1 made a grab for the ear; of course I had the box in 
one hand, and I grabbed with the left hand on the car, and I got on. 

‘20 There was a man had the pole down at this time.
y. Did you see anything of the motorman during this timet A. The 

motorman opened the vestibule door and leaned around and told the 
people not to jump off.

y. Did you hear him î A. I remember him distinctly sav that, 
y. Did he say anything to you? A. He yelled to pull the pole off, 

and when he yelled that, of course, I got the knock.
y. Did von see the motorman outside the vestibule at allÎ A. Not 

until after the car was stopped.
0, When you were running along the street, could you have seen the 

30 motorman, or was lie there? A. The motorman was in the vestibule.

CROSS-EXAMINED by Mr. Gamble:

y. Now, when this 400 lbs. struck you, where did you light? A. 
Well, of course, naturally out on the street.

Q. Was the 400 lbs. on top of you 1 A. Well, she was hurt, too. 
y. Of course, you did not do any of the damage, did you, to the 400 

lbs? A. Oh, no, no.
y. You weren't annoyed with her at all. She lit out on the street 

with you. How did you do; did you sit down opposite to each other? A. 
Oh, no, we did not get time to think about that.

40 Q. You did not have time to exchange any compliments? A. No.
O. How did you light? A. Well, on my side, of course, 
y. It is not of course, because there is a softer spot on your body than 

that, which it would have liecn just as easy to light on. but you laid on 
your side as a matter of fact ? A. Yes.

y. And the lady, where did she light, on your side, too, or on hcr’s?

5577
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A. Well, that I don’t know with reference to where she landed, but, of 
course, her wrist was twisted.

Q. It got entangled in your collar, I suppose. Did you labor around on 
the ground for any length of timet A. No chance. I ran alongside the 
car.

Q. I have not got you up yetî A. I don’t take so long as that to get 
up in the morning.

(j. You laid on your side on the ground talking to the lady ? A. No. 
10 I had no conversation with her. We are not allowed to talk to pas­

sengers.
(j. And as long as you laid on your side, of course the motor was 

moving along! A. Moving along, yes.
Q. You got up? A. (lot up.
Q. Where was the motor when you got up? A. Running alongside. 
(}. Hood Heavens, you weren’t running along on your side when you 

were lying down? A. You said, where was the car—it was running along, 
(j. Where were you? A. I got up and rail along with it.
Q. Surely to gracious, after I icing knocked off the fifth seat, you 

20 weren’t able to get up and find yourself by the car, were you? A. Oh, yes, 
I was not knocked unconscious.

(j. But you mean to say, after the 400 lbs. knocked you on to the 
ground, that vou had time to get up and still the car was beside vou? A. 
Yes.

Q. You must be the rubber man? A. Oh, I am a beauty of a contor­
tionist.

y. Then you just bounced up, so to speak, the car going four or five 
miles an hour, you lay on the ground, and you bounced up and found your­
self just beside it, and you got up and ran along with it; is that it? A. I 

30 did not find myself ; I picked myself up and ran.
0. Who found you? A. Nobody found me; I found myself.
Q. You picked yourself up and ran along by the side of the car. A.

Yes.
Q. The car had not got awav from you? A. It is impossible; I am a 

good sprinter.
Q. You did not sprint while you were on your side? A. I did not 

lay that way long.
Q. But you had time to get up, and when you got up you found the 

car had not passed you? A. About two seconds I lay there.
40 Q. How far would it he from the fifth seat to the back of the car in 

feet? A. About 18 feet.
(j. And although you were right down on the ground, when you got 

up, where were you beside the ear, how far back were von? A. Just 
about the rear seat, just the handle was right opposite me.

O. Did you try to get on then? A. Yes, I tried to get on.
(). There were some people on the platform, you could not get on? A. 

Yes. there was a man with a bag there.
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Q. Thcrt- were others standing there, too, weren't tlieret A. Just 
two men on the hark.

Q. Standing there# A. Yes.
Q. People sitting tliere f A. No, there was nolsslv sitting on the 

hack seat of the motor.
Q. Did you hear what Mr. Cheer said yesterday. A. I don’t rare 

what he said.
Q. I am not asking you whether you eare; 1 am asking you if you 

10 heard? A. Yes.
Q. You sav that there was no one sitting on the hack seat f A. No, 

sir.
Q. Not when you were on the other side of Sherliourne street ? A. 

On the other side of Hherbourne street there were two more passengers. 
They jumped off.

Q. When you got there, there were only two men there, and they 
were standing up# A. One was holding the pole down, and the other one 
would not let me on.

Q. And the other one hit you in the stomach with a bag? A. Yes.
VU Q. He wanted to get out? A. Of course he did.

Q. Have you ever seen the 400 lb. lady since? A. I don't know as I 
have. I haven't been oil King street since; I have I icon on King street, 
all the time,

Q. Then you heard the mntorman tell you to pull the trolley pole 
down? A. I did.

(). You saw him, did you? A. I seen him.
Q. And where was he when he spoke to you? A. He was standing on 

the footlsiard, with his hand on the side rail.
O. Which way was he facing? A. He was facing toward tlie pole.

80 0. Had he come out of the vestibule ? A. He was just looking around
like this (indicating).

Q. He was on the footboard? A. One foot. You see there is two 
steps down on to the bottom step ; he was standing on this step here.

Q. On the second step? A. With his hand on the rail looking around 
like this (indicating) and calling to the people to keep their seats.

0. When did you lose sight of him? A. Well, in the crowd. I seen 
him when the car stopped.

Q. When did you lose sight of him. You saw him looking around 
and tolling the people to keep their seats and telling you to pull the 

40 trollev pole down, you lost sight of-him then? A. Yes. when the 400 lhs. 
knocked me down.

Q. When did you see him again? A. When I ran alongside of the 
ear, he was still in the vestibule.

Q. No; he was outside? A. Ho was not outside; 1 never said such 
a thing.

O. He was looking around the vestibule? A. He was not outside.
Q. Wasn’t his body? A. It was only half out.
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Q. And when you looked for him again, after recovering your equil­
ibrium, where was he then ? A. In the vestibule ; he was all inside this 
time.'

Q. Was there any smoke in the vestibule f A. Yes, quite a lot.
Q. How eould you see him? A. I could see it when I went to pull 

the pole off.
• Q. Wasn't the whole car full of smoke ? A. Well, not all.

Q. Wasn’t the glass shut between you and the interior of the ear? 
10 A. Well, of course, that didn’t prevent the smoke from coming through.

Q. But I>etween you and the interior of the ear—the back bulk-head, 
the glass in the rear bulk-head, that was closed, wasn't it? A. Yes.

Q. And then there was smoke, the car was full of smoke we have been 
told? A. Oh, about half full.

Q. And yet you saw through the hulk-head and the smoke and the 
other end, you saw the motorman in his box, did you? A. Certainly, 
because this smoke wasn’t obscuring him.

Q. Who was it obscuring ? A. You see it was only down the side.
Q. Now, I thought you had told my learned friend you did not see 

20 the motorman until the car stopped, I have here “didn’t see him until 
the ear was stopped.” A. Well, of course, wasn’t I pulling off the pole? 
I seen him when I was running along—you heard me make that state­
ment—I seen him when I was running along, and I did not pay any 
more attention to him. I paid attention to the pole, I wanted to get the 
car stopped, and then when the ear was stopped, I seen him then.

Q. You said that you tried—after you were knocked down and 
picked yourself up again and you went and got on the car, you tried to 
get rather, and the man would not let you on. he was trying to get off the 
back seat, that is right, and then how long after that was it that you got 

30 on the car? A. I was hanging on with my left hand, you see, to let this 
man off, he jumped off then and I got on. Well, of course, when I seen 
this man that he stepped down, the next thing to do was to Wind the 
trailer brake, and I did that.

OEORCE KWEETLOVE, sworn. Examined bv Mr. McCarthy:
Q. You were with Mr. McRae the night of this accident on King 

street? A. Yes.
Q. You are an employee of the Company, too? A. Yes.
Q. You were coming up Sherbourne street, with him? A. Yes.
Q. You saw this car pass the intersection, and you saw the cxplo- 

40 sion ? A. Yes.
Q. And you ran along the side of the car with Mr. McRae? A. Well, 

I might not have just been with him, but I was there at any rate, I went 
along King street.

Q. You followed the car? A. Yes.
Q. Were you on the roadway or the sidewalk ? A. Well now, I 

don't just remember for sure.
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anomie kweeti/we—cross-examination.

y. Did you we the motomiant A. I did.
Q. When! A. When I got up to the ear, when the car stopped.
y. Did you see him before that at all ? A. Well, no, 1 wasn’t pay­

ing any attention to that; I was making for to get the trolley pole off.
Q. And the car stopped before you reached himf A. Yes.
y. What did you do when you got theref A. I went right to the 

front of the ear, and 1 tried to get in and I could not, and I came aroup/d 
to the door that runs in from the vestibule into the body of the car, and 

10 1 opened that door to get in that way, and when I went to get in that way 
the motorman was there, and I helped to pull him out with somebody 
else over the hack of that seat.

y. What shape was he inf A. Well, he was prettv badly seared.
y. What was the condition of the vestibule as regards smokef A. 

Full of smoke.
I). Was the man exhaustedf
Mr. Gamble: Now, my Lord, Mr. McCarthy asked him what condi­

tion he was inf .
Ills Lordship: Asked him wha1 physical condition he was in; he 

80 -ave his mental condition.
Mr. McCarthy: Q. What was his physical conditionf A. Well, lie 

looked to me as though he was pretty badlv played out.
(1. What was the condition of the vestibule f A. Well, it was full of 

smoke, and there was some flame there from the burning cable.

CROSS-EXAMINED by Mr. Gamble:
y. What were you running after the car fort A. 1 was running after 

the car to try to get at the front end of the trailer to pull the pole down.
O. When did you catch the earf A. When it stopped.
O. You did not catch it until it stopped t A. No, sir.

30 Mr. McCarthy: That is the defence, my Lord. I wish, mv Lord, to 
make the motion for a non-suit, on the ground that no negligence has 
been shown.

His Lordship: I would entertain it even at this stage. In answer 
to the motion for a non-suit, what negligence do you think you have es­
tablished. Mr. Gamble, so that the issues mav he clearly before the jury.

Mr. Gamble: I think it is fair my learned friend should have any in­
formation I ran give him.

His Lordship: Taking it from vour standpoint, if the case goes to 
the jury in an uncertain way and they give as an answer of negligence, 

40 something that counsel know perfectly well won’t hold water. I had once 
before at St. Thomas, where counsel formulated his negligence and went 
to the jury, and the jury gave answers to the questions of negligence, 
none of which were formulated by counsel, and the Divisional Court said 
there was nothing to go to the jury.

Mr. Gamble: Your Lordship’s first question to the jury will be?
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IIKOROE SWKKTIXIVE—CROSS-EXAMINATION.

His Lordship: Was the accident caused by negligence ? And the 
next : What was the negligence Î

Mr. Gamble : Take the negligence in order. The first negligence is 
in having the car overcrowded, so that when an accident occurred passen­
gers became panicky and crowded out of the car.

His Lordship: In regard to this man. there were three passengers in 
his seat, there were only those two passengers besides himself, so I do not 
think there is very much for that.

10 Mr. Gamble: The panic in the car.
His Lordship: It did not affect him, exrept-----
Mr. Gamble: Except so far as it extended to the women.
His Lordship: He cannot complain of overcrowding.
Mr. Gamble: I would say, yes, my Lord. Then that the conductor 

by the overcrowding was prevented from attending to his duties in pulling 
down the pole; that the seats were too closely set together, that the 
motornian failed to apply the brake, and that the pole was not pulled 
down until too late. Then I propose to argue to the jury this doctrine of 
res ipsa loquiter in reference to the defective condition of the controller 

20 or wires. Then, that the evidence shows that there was a defective con­
dition of the controller or cable, which was responsible for the accident. 
I think that covers the whole ground.

Counsel addressed the jury.
Court adjourned until to-morrow at 10 a.m. •
Resumed September 27th, 1911.
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CHARGE.
Now, Gentlemen of the Jury, it is vour duty and mine to consider 

this ease for a little while and try to bring our minds to bear ujmn the 
precise questions that you and I have to determine, because, according 
to the law of this country, I have to deal with the legal questions, and 
you are made the sole and absolute judges of all questions of fact. I 
may give you my ideas in the course of discussion, or I may not, just 
as Ï see fit, but, if 1 do express to you any views of my own, that is only 
an expression of my views u|hui the questions of fact which you are not

10 bound to regard or pay any attention to, because our law thinks it bet­
ter in a case of this kind, that the ju v, a body of men picked from dif­
ferent walks of life, should deal entirely with questions of fact. The 
judge, of course, naturally has to deal with the legal questions, because 
he has had the legal training which unfortunately—or perhaps I 
should say fortunately—you have not had. Therefore, in the first place, J 
I want to say one word to you about vour duty. It is your duty to ap- ' ( 
p roach this matter realizing that for the momentjrtm have I (eon made by 
the law to occupy the isisition of judges. You are bound to approach 
the matter with everv idea of giving absolute justice and fair play to

20 both litigants. You are not to lie swayed bv any motive arising from'/ 
your desire to help an old and unfortunate man, who has suffered a sori- j 
oils accident. You are not to In- in any way influenced by this being a " 
contest between a man on the one side and a company on the other. You 
are to regard the matter with as great fairness as it is possible for you 
to do. You are to take exactly the same stand of impartiality and fairj, 
ness in what you do as 1 must take in the discharge of my dutv, and l/ 
leave the case to you, trusting and believing that you will not allow any 
improper motive toySwav you in any way, and that you will struggle 
against anv feeling of sympathy you mav have in your desire to do that 

30 which is absolutely clean-cut, cold-blooded justice between these parties.
Now, as cou»llfel have said to you. no doubt there was this accident,/ 

no doubt there was this explosion, and no doubt there was a serious in-j/ 
jury to tWunfortunate plaintiff ; but it does not follow by any manner/ 
of meawS that, because there was an accident, upon the Street Railway, 
therefore the Street Railway has to pay.

In the first place, 1 want to put entirely on one side any question 
arising from the fact that these ladies shoved the old gentleman off the 
car. If, through the negligence of the Railwav Company something hap­
pened, the natural consequence of which was that the naseengers got ex- 

40 cited and acted foolishly, and so shoved the old man off the car, the Rail- . .
, i way Company arc just as much responsible as if through their negligence j/j A
11 they had themselves knocked him off the car, because the passengers gef- 1/l/l 
ly ting into a fright and getting into a panic, is a natural thing to result (f 
II from the happening of the explosion. But we have to get back to the fact » •
11 and ascertain whether the explosion resulted from negligence. I fancy you
I will have very little difficulty in finding that the injury to the old man
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followed as the natural and ordinary consequence of that explosion, if it 
was caused by negligence. So we have to face the real difficulty; was 
there negligence? Now, negligence n^this: You have to find sojpetYiing 
which the Company did whiclf HTey should not Have dune, or something 
which w:i' left undone which they should have done. There are duties 
aridtDg tVttltidifferent relations in which different persons find them­
selves to others. If I were standing somewhere alone in a wilderness, I 
would owe no duty to anybody else, but as soon as some other person came 
into that wilderness, I would owe him a duty. As soon as he came near 

10 enough for me to do anything to him or which would affect him; I must 
not injure him by anything I might do wilfully or negligently. Special 
relations may exist between parties, persons or corporations. Merely 
because we are living together in a civilised world, we owe certain duties 
to each other. Special contracts may also impose special duties and ob­
ligations.

Now. this man was a passenger on the railway, and therefore the 
Railway Company owe to him the duty which every carrier owes to his 
passengers, that is to say, they owe the duty to provide a reasonably 
safe car for his carriage, they owV him XKf duty of operating that car as 

20 farTTRThry ratrîïTa safe manner. They /iqst not l>e guilty of negligence 
eitherTh provldtlig the car or in the nipde m which-they operate that 
car; that is to say, they are to do all neasonable tilings to avoid the hap­
pening of any accident to him, and they must not leave undone anything 
which would conduce to his safety, aim which would suggest itself to a 
carefiïïTconsiderate and painstaking /carrier.

Now, Mr. Gamble lias given to you a list of the things in which he 
says this Company lias failed. I am going to go through these and 
draw your attention to the meaning of each one of them as best I can, 
and draw your attention to the evidence very shortly as it bears upon 

36 each of these questions. But I want, in the first place, to say to you, that I 
propose submitting to von three questions, and the first one is this: “Was 
the accident to the plaintiff caused by any negligence of the defendants?” 
Now, it is quite manifest to anyone who thinks for a moment that many 
things happen which we call accidents, which are nothing more or less 
than what is known in law as a nurc accident, that is to say, no one js 

y to blame, things happen which we cannot say in fairness anybody ought 
I Pi pavTor. A man mav do his liest, and having done his liest, as has 
I been illustrated to you bvcminsel, something that Tie could not by the ex- 
f crcisc of reasonable care have foreseen will happen, and some injury will 

<0 he done. Now. for that kind of tiling nobody is responsible; it is just one 
of those accidents which everyone is subject to and as to which we all 
have to take rmr chances. Before this plaintiff can succeed against the 
Railway TV. you have to find, as I said before, that there was something 
specific which was left undone which should have been done. Then the 
second question is: If so, what was that negligence? Now, I want you to 
answer me the second question fully. To the first one you can say “Yes” 
or “No.” If you find there was no negligence, you do not need to
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trouble yourselves auy further.' On the other hand, if you think there was 
negligence, I want you to be* very particular in giving your answer to 
the second question, and do not be afraid when you come to write out the 
answer of saying exactly what you mean, because a great deal of time is 
taken up in our courts afterwards in trying to find out exactly what a 
jury did mean when they have made certain answers, and 1 want you to 
put down just whatever negligence you think existed: do not rest content 
with putting down one item: if you think there was negligence in ten 
items, put them down, because it will be assumed by the Court that you 

10 have stated the only negligence you are able to find and so you will find 
against the plaintiff by silence with regard to any of the particular . 
grounds. 1 think that is a fair thing for you to know. When you come I 
to deal with these different matters, express in vour own language as I 
clearlv as you can exactly what it was that was left undone, or what it I 
was that was imperfectly done.

Now, to run over these items. Mr. (lambic did not give them to you 
quite in the order of their importance: so in order that none will be over­
looked, I will take them in tin- order in which he gave them to you. He 
says, in the first place, the ear was overcrowded, and he says several things 

20 were thus brought about. In the first "place he said that the ear was so 
full tlfat it made it easy for a panic to take place among the passengers. A 
panic did take place, and as a result this man was thrown out. Now, upon 
this question Of overcrowding. Voit hive, I think, two certain statements 
to go upon. You have the statement of the conductor of the ear that 
there were about sixtv-flve passengers on the ear, a ear that would seat 
seventy-five or eighty. Now, these ears are being operated for public con­
venience; the street ears are used for the service of the public; that is why 
they are there. Tin- street ear is made for the carrying of people home, 
in order to get home from their work, and at this hour of the evening the 

30 factories are all discharging, the shops are all emptying, and at half past 
five in the evening naturally you will expect a street ear to be full; and it 
is for you to say whether there was anything wrong in a street ear, capable 
of carrying seventy-five or eighty people, having sixty-five upon it. I should 
have thought that as long as the seats were not full, there could not be 
said to be any overcrowding. Beyond that we have this specific statement 
made by the plaintiff himself, and upon that you can rely; of course the 
plaintiff wiTTsay you must not ahsolutelv rely upon what the conductor 
said. You are, of course, the absolute judges. From the man’s demeanor 
and the way he gave his evidence, you are the judges of the weight that is 

40 to be given to his testimony. Rut you have the plaintiff’s own statement, 
and he says that in the seat in which he was, which was eanable of seat­
ing five, there were only three people. So that does not look like over- 
crowuTTng, and I fancy that that aspect will give you comparatively little 
difficulty. Then the other suggestion is made, that by reason of this over­
crowding, the conductor was unable to discharge his duty in that he could 
not pull down the trolley pole as quickly as he might, and so bring the ear 
to a standstill. Well, f will tell you, as a matter of law, that he is not
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lwrnnd tu stay on the rear platform of the car; he has other duties to dis­
charge. He was rightly in the discharge of those other duties^along the 
sideof the ear collecting Tales. Well now, when the accident happened, 
coining as suddenly as it did, and the passengers being frightened as they 
were, he was along with the rest, along with this plaintiff, shoved off the 
ear; he endeavored to get on, and in so doing he ran against the people get­
ting off the car, and before he had got upon the car, the trolley pole had 
been pulled down by some man on tbe car, and the duty that is stated he 
did not do had been done for him. Now, I do not see very well how you 

10 can find that there was any negligence there; but I am not going to take 
the case from you upon that point, I am going to leave it to you.

*. Then it is said that these seats wertytop vluau tugathai'. That again it 
acenis to me to be a matter in wTiieli you will find difficulty in holding the 
Railway Company guilty of negligence. The Street Railway Company 
naturally desire to carry as many passengers as |Missible and the passen­
ger naturalv desire and expect as many seats to be put in a ear as can be, 
so that as many can be accommodated as possible. Whether this unforeseen 
tiling, the happening of this explosion, the panic as the result of that ex­
plosion, the shoving out by these two ladies—I do not know wether they 

20 shoved the old gentleman out intending to do so for his good, and thinking 
it was safer for him and them to be upon the road, or whether they 
simply shoved him out in an endeavor to get themselves to safety, but 
whichever it was, was it a thing for which the Railway Company were in 
any way blameworthy f Were they in fault in not having foreseen that 
the proximity of these seats in the happening of an accident and panic 
might bring about such a result as hapjamed that day, is a question for 
you.

Then we come to the fourth suggestion. It is said that the motorman 
did not apply his brake. Now I think if is pretty clear upon the evidence 

SO that hemd not. But just the same as you excused the passengers for get­
ting into a panic and say they were not doing anything wilfully wrong in 
throwing the old man off for his own safety or for theirs, as the case may 
be. ^iyvoii must realize the fact that a man in the position of a motor- 
manTcfiWaqjited with a difficult situation, confronted with a position of 
peril, is notat^djtimes to be blamed because "Ec dues not do the thing 
that we sitting dowthbgre afterwards might think was the wisest and the 
best thing for him to havh-dqiic. You must judge his conduct leniently, 
because the situation which confronted him was a difficult situation, and 
one which did not give him any time to realise the position. Here is the 

40 hood switch up above to be operated, it had turned off, he could not" turn 
off his current there, th'e'current was still going into that car, and burn­
ing everything as it came in; he turned off his controller and that did not 
stop the electricity coming in. and m^tjéàlized that the only thing that re­
mained for him to do. to stop the elecmmtv coming into the car and do­
ing damage, lie did not know where it wouhtend, was to have the trolley 
pole pulled off: so, knowing hat no harm \*qs being done by the run­
ning <ih of the car, the first thing was to stop this current coming into
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the car, so he shoved his heat^iround the corner, he called to the con­
ductor. •'I*iill down the trolle^mle,” knowing that that would numnli 
atelv stop tlff'rcul danger of the elhrtric current that was flowing into the 
car,, and it is for you to say whethenhe is said fo be guilty of negligence 
Because he did not in theflrstplace applV the brakes, and so delay the 
more important matter of (lifting" out theVirrent to some extent. Now, 
you liaVe Tîeard the evidence as to the condition in which the man was 
found, you have heal'd the evidence as to the vestibule, and it is for you, 
as practical men, to sav whether lie is found to be blameworthy; and in 

16 judging that question, you have to judge it as judging the inotorman him­
self; you have to sav whether that mjn was_jo_hlawi' in what he did, or 
whether on the whole lie aided as wisely as you would expect a man to dy 
under the circumstances. ,

ThenTTF is said that the polo was not pulled dow n until too late. 
Well, the inotorman could not pull it down, because he was in the front 
part of the car; the conductor was a good way off in the discharge of his 
duties, and I think you will probably feel that he did his best to get back 
to that back platform to get the |mi1<- down. There was no obligation up­
on anyone else to pull it down; so you are practically to say whether you 

‘20 think the conductor did not do his best to got that pole down.
Then, Mr. Gamble spoke next aliout what has been called “Res ipsa 

loquitor," that is, “The thing speaks for itself." I think he misunder­
stood exactly what the law is upon the subject. No doubt, when an acci­
dent does happen, when the unusual thing happens, that should not hap- 
|>en in the well-regulated street car, or well-regulated factory, then it is 
said. “The thing speaks for itself.” That is to say, the plaintiff does not 
need to show more than the happening of the explosion before the de­
fendants are called upon to explain why it happened, and if Mr. Gamble 
had chosen to rest his case and did not call any witnesses to explain the 

;;0 cause of the accident, I would have said to him, “That speaks for itself. 
Till1 defendants have got to now answer the case." Rut you, gentlemen, 
have heard the explanation. Each side has explained to you what in his 
view caused the accident. The défendants in this case have gone into the 
case, and they told you exactly what they did. Tl/v have endeavored to 
explain to voii the car which they took out; thev/iave sHunirlo you ex­
act IV W liât w as done In Thr wav of purchasing ngttrrials and choosing ma- 
chiiiervrlTf flic wav of installing machinery, in title way of overhauling the 
machinery, and taking care of it to see that it/docs not get out of repair, 
so tliaTThis maxim has not anything to do with this case. And here you 

40 are face to face with what seems to lie the irai problem in the case: Was 
there anvtbing wrong in the car or in the installation of this electric 
equipment upon this cart Because it is admitted by the witnessesfor the 
plaintifTTfiat the machinery which was /ut in was the best that could be, 
got. And I tell you. as a matter of lavf again, tha* a carrier does all thatl 
he is bound to do when be buys the standard equipment, the best equip-J 
ment hi' can buv. The carrier does /lot guarantee that the machinery will 
lint brcaYTTowm He does noFinake the machinery. He goes to the estate’



lished and reputable manufacturers and lie buys good machinery, and if 
I he installs that property ana takes care of it properly, his duty is at an end. 
I Now, Art sav, everyone admits that flic controller was une of the best con- 

' trollers they could get, evJryone admits that the cut-out switch was one 
I of the best switches that eimid be bought; and everyone says that the 

wiring which yyas put in was as good wiring as there is upon the market. 
So there is no liability üTeat lint the real nuestion is, was there a suffi- 

I eient and careful inspection t Well now, you will have the exhibits if "you 
choose' to fake them to look at them, you will see the kind of wire that is 

!0 used. This wire, according to the evidence, was carried up into the con­
troller through the hole in the bottom of it, which was made by the manu­
facturer for the purpose of having just such a wire as that carried 
through. You were told in the installation of" finit, that the outcoming 
wire was carefully covered in addition to this insulation by insulating 
tape, so as to give additional protection, the witnesses said the liftime of 
thFxvire under ordinary circumstances would he from ten to fifteen years; 
they told that new wire was put into the ear about two months before the 
happening of this accident; and you are told bv Mr. Richmond that 
probably that the defect which caused this accident was occasioned by the 

20 passing of electricity from one of the side wires into the big outgoing 
wire, and that that would take place in almost the twinkling of an eye; the 
electricity would begin to leak, and leaking it would soon get such a dis­
charge through the installation that the current would then flow and the 
flowing of the current would do all the damage.

Now, you have heard what the witnesses have said about the inspec­
tion. You saw the men in the box; you are as good judges, and probably 
you are better judges than I am of the credit to he given to these men. 
It is for you to say whether these men did their duty, or whether they 
were negligent to their duty. It is for you to say whether what was done 

30 was sufficient by way of inspection or not. You have heard the evidence, 
and I am not going to recapitulate it to you; but when you come to 
answer that question. I want you to answer specifically and say precise­
ly and exactly what it was that you think is omitted that should have 
been done, so that if there is any question about the matter, we will have 
hereafter, if the case is ever appealed, a statement of precisely what you 
as practical men and as men who are used to machinery of this kind, 
more or less, think or consider the Railway Company failed in, or these of­
ficials failed in when you find the existence of negligence.

Now, that, I think, covers the different grounds of negligence sug- 
40 gested. I think |>erhaps it might be helpful to you, because I do not 

know how much you know about electricity, that I should try to explain 
to you what was explained to us yesterday by the witnesses here. You 
will have that sketch or diagram showing how the wires run in the car. 
Well now, a good deal was said at the beginning that I think this disap­
peared before we got through because Mr. Barton, who gives evidence in 
a way that impressed me, giving it very candidly and fairly, said there is 
nothing inside the controller that went wrong in controlling the pi°"Vl'r'-
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ery, thus there was nothing in all this complicated wiring in the ear that 
went wrong except in the one place, by reason of something that took 
place in a comparatively narrow space. Now, the system by which this car 
is run is this: There is a great quantity of electricity sent down the feed 
wire that runs down the street, yott CarT get any iytmtltlty Of electricity 
out of that: that electricity passes downThrough thn different wires until 
it gets to the motor, when it gi ts to the motor it does its work; it passes 
out through the groumj. wire, the large wire, and gefsHiit back to the sta­
tion ; so that the electricity is going all the time, through The wires, tlmiugy 

10 thé motor and through the ground and hack to the station again. Now, 
that is the way it works, ft is a physical fact with regard to electricity 
that as long as it is not flowing through the wires, it will not do any great 
deal of harm, and no great degree of work or any work at all; it is the 
flowing electricity through the wires that docs both the work and the 
damage. When a little too much electricity is flowing through a wire, it 
creates a great deal of heat, and if a wire is not able to carry that load, 
the amount of flowing electricity, the wires get intensely hot. This car 
was equipjM'd so that it will take what they call 150 amperes to operate 
these motors. If the motors get overloaded, if there is too much clectri- 

20 city let into them, they get hot and burn out, and therefore they had this 
cut-out device, and they had that set at 1101) amperes, so there is a margin 
of another 150 amperes in round figures before this cut-out is called into 
operation. Now, if anything happens by which, instead of 150 amperes 
being let through the car, they are letting through more than 300, that 
iqxms the space through which the electricity would otherwise flow, a con­
nection through which it would flow, and the flow of the current is 
stopped, so that if the motorman turns on too much current, if there is 
any great overflow of electricity, the cut-out will operate. This “cut­
out” is fixed so that it will take care of all the flow between 300 and fiOO 

80 amperes, and when it goes over 600, the machine will not take care of it. 
because such an enormous flow of 600 is something that nobody has fore­
seen, and nobody did foresee what was then going to happen. The wit­
ness says that the flow of electricity in this case must have been ten 
times what was normal, it must have got up to in the neighborhood of 
1,500. The result was that when that enormous flow of electricity started, 
from whatever cause it did start, the whole thing melted, melted down 
into a mass of fused metal and ran down, and then the controller would 
not work and would not shut off, and the current ran through this melted 
metal to the ground wire and was in the meantime burning everything in 

■10 its way. That, I think, will give you an idea of what Mr. Richmond 
meant when he said the accident happened by this grounding. You see the 
grounding happened in this way: the electricity getting through all these 
wires let the enormous quantity of electricity of this overhead trolley wire 
get down through all the connections and get out, and as it began to flow 
rapidly and in quantities, it brought about the heat and the flame. Now 
you will find that these two systems of wires, the wire which is shown in 
that plan as the red wire, that is the wire that is carrying the electricity
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before it lias done its work, lie fore it has gone through those motors; and 
you will find the Mark wire indieating the outgoing or discharging wire. 
It is said that the electricity broke through the insulation from the one 
wire to the other, and 1 think that is a very reasonable explanation of 
what took place. So the question is, was there anything which this Com­
pany should have done and which they omitted to have done? In the first 
place, it is admitted by all that the wire they put there is all right; it is ad­
mitted that the system of testing it was the proper system. Was there 
anything negligent in the applieation of it? Was there anything negli- 

10 gent in anything that was left undone whieh they should have done? 
Was there anything whieh a competent and careful man operating such a 
car as that, and having charge of it, regarding him as an individual said to 
he in fault instead of a corporation, ought to have noticed and ought to 
have seen which would have prevented the happening of this disaster? If 
there is, find it and say so, and then you have dealt with the second 
question satisfactorily.

Then the last question is the question of damages. Now both coun­
sel stated the law and the hearing on that matter to you very fairly, and 
I think accurately. I did not notice any difference between what was 

20 said to you, except that one man was looking through the large end of the 
telescope and the other through the small end. You are to give, in the 
first place, the expenses, what hi' has been out of pocket; give him what 
earnings he has lost because that is a branch of his out of pocket ex­
penses; you give him what you think is fair for the pain and suffering 
which he had, and you give an allowance for the future, having regard to 
what you might think his earning capacity would be to the extent to which 
that earning capacity has been injured. You are not to put aside a large 
sum of money, and say live on the income of that, because the money 
would still be there, and he would have no right to have it; hut you are to 

30 sav, here is a man of 69 years of age ; nobody has told us how long he is 
likely to live; you have got to apply vour own common knowledge to that. 
Nobody has told us how long he would In- able to work. Do the best you 
can. You are to allow him what you think is fair. Allow him such a sum 
as you think he is entitled to for undergoing such an injury, and such a 
sum as you think that a man who has been guilty of negli'«ence should 
nav to a man who has been the victim of that negligence, not giving any 
damage bv way of punishment, because nobody suggests for a moment 
that the Railway Company wanted this kind of thing to happen, but 
award him a sum purely and simply upon the basis of the loss which he 

to has sustained.
I am sorry that the case has taken so long, and I am sorry that I have 

taken so long in discussing it with you, but I want you to understand it, 
because your desire and mine will he that we may arrive at a just result, 
a result, if it is criticised afterwards by other courts, which will be found 
without defect and that there may be no negligence on our part for which 
we may he blamed when it eomes to he considered.

Mr. Gamble has rightly drawn my attention to the fact that some of
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the other witnesses who were called spoke of the eoudition of the over­
crowding in the ear. I did not intend to say what I mentioned to you was 
all the evidence about that; and you, of course, have all the evidence 
present to your mind, and you will give to it what weight you think it is 
entitled to.

Mr. Gamble is quite right in another matter he draws my attention to. 
He says there is no evidence in the one sense that the proj>er system of 
testing cars was applied to this ear. The position there is one you will 
readily understand. You have evidence all the ears were tested; you have 

10 evidence that this ear went into this bam and took its turn in being test­
ed and examined along with the other cars; you have evidence of the sys­
tem in use. No witness was called who could say, “I remember that on 
the night of the 7th of August or the night of the 6th. or whatever night 
it was, I tested ear number 966; I have a record, I cannot use that record 
because I cannot remember anything alsiut it, but I know that all the cars 
that went in were duly tested in their turn." Now that is just what hap­
pens in any case. I would not believe and I do not believe you would be­
lieve a man who came in here a year and some months afterwards and said, 
“I remember each of the ears i tested on the night of the 6th of August.’’ 

10 All an honest man can say is, “I knew what my duties were, and I dis­
charged those duties faithfully with regard to testing all the cars." It is 
quite true also in regard to the controller question, that the man «"hose 
duty it was to do this particular work is not here, for the reason given in 
evidence, that he had taken another job in another city, and they did not 
know where he was; so on that aspect of the case, you will have to do 
the best you can, and I can rely upon you to try to do «’hat is fair to 
both parties.

Certified to be correct.
Geo. R. Jones,

Official Reporter, H.C.J.
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IN THE COURT OF APPEAL FOR ONTARIO.

Between :
WILLIAM FLEMING,

(Respondent) Plaintiff,
and

THE TORONTO RAILWAY COMPANY,
(Appellants) Defendants.

The Honourable the Chief Justice Saturday, November the 11th, 1911. 
of Ontario in Chambers.

10 Upon the application of the appellants for an order respecting the 
printing of the Exhibits in the printed Appeal Case in this appeal, and up­
on reading the consent of the respondent and upon hearing counsel for the 
appellants :

1. It is ordered that the printing of the two Exhibits, the photograph 
and plan of the controller, in the Appeal Case lie, and the same is hereby 
dispensed with.

2. And it is further ordered that the costs of this application be costs 
in the appeal.

Entered O.B. XII. N. F. Paterson,
20 Issued 11th Nov., 1911. N. F. P. Registrar.

II
To Pr

10

20



Kl

119

EXHIBIT No. 1.
Dr. T. Shaw Webster, 581 Spadina avenue.

Physician and Surgeon.
Toronto, Mar. 6th, 1911.

Mr. Fleming, 315 Euclid avenue.
To Professional Sendees—

Aug. 12th, 1910, cons, with Dr. McPherson
August 14th, 1910, cons, re knee.................
August 15th, 1910, applying splint to leg
September 6th, 1910, cons...............................
November 8th, 1910, cons................................
March 4th, 1911, cons......................................

$ 5.00 
. 5.00

40.00 
5.00 
5.00 
5.00

$65.00
10.00

$75.00

EXHIBIT No. 2.
Dr. D. A. McPherson, 244 Bathurst street,

Toronto, September 25th, 1911. 
Mr. Fleming, sr., 315 Euclid avenue.

To professional services and medicine.......................... $90.0090



EXHIBIT No. 7.
Length, 30 ft. CAR REPAIRS.
Weight. 37,870 lbs. Built 1904 Rheos.. T R. Co.
Truck. D.2, Curtis.
Motors. G.E. 1000 (4) Controller K.C.

Sheet No. 327.
Closed Car No. 966.

Brake, Magann air. Peacock hand. 
Watson Fender.

1910. Run in.
R. Jany. 6
K. “ 22
R. February 1

9
MS. “ 14

R. “ 17
44 March 3 12.42 a.m. 
MS. 44 7

Date. Reported for. Repairs made. Repaired by
Wheels. 1 for chipped flange ; motors insp. Leyden.
Changed fields 3 ; new shoes put on ; H.S. changed. Hamilton..
New jour box 4; wheels 2; jour and axle bmgs 2;

insp. motors. Leyden and Copping.
Put in light of glass. Copping.
Rprd. contlr. ; changed arm. 1. 2; mchne. 3; B.H. Conner and Brennan.

1, 2; new shoes; fender reprd.
Arm 1. for grad. ; motors insp. Layden.

3 Broken w'dow. Cut and put in light of glass. Copping.
Grad, wheels, 1. 2, 3; 3 new drawbars ; changed Roche, Peach, O’Neill, 

wheels. 4.

Finished

2.30 p.m.

5.20 p.m.
4.30 p.m.

2 p.m.
3 p.m.

44 9 7 am. 9 Blowing. Arms. 1 and 4. Kelly.
R. 44 16 3.6 p.m. 16 Arm. 3, op. cir. ; motors inapt. Lavden.

April 7 Arm. 2. rough com. ; motors insp.
May 5 Arm. 2 for grad. ; B.H. 3: motors insp. Copping. 3 p.m.

K. 44 11 Cleaned arm. 3. Stuart. 10.30 ajn.
R 44 14 5 p.m. 14 Blowing. Changed B.H. 2; cleaned com. McMillan.

44 26 Arm. 3 for grad. ; B.H. 3 reverse roll ; insp. motors 3.25 p m
1.19 p.m. 4 Machine. Contlr. cleaned; motor insp. and tested. 3 p.m.

44 6 6.30 a.m. 6 Contlr. Changed contlr. for burning on reverse finger McMillan. 2.30 p.m.
board; insp. motors.

44 28 Insp. wheels. O.K. ; motors insp.; tight<1. bolts. I .ay den. 12. a.m
July 29 8.7 p.m. 29 Blowing. Cleaned up 2 and 4. Barton. 2 a.m.

August 2 Axle brags, 4; insp. motors. McMillan. 5 p.m.
MS. M 12 Rewired all through, also cable for trolley. Corp and Rondeau.

44 18 5.42 p.m. 18 Controller. Reprd. contlr. Corp 6.25 p.m.
R 44 19 Arm. 2 for strog. band and B.H. ; insp. motors. Layden.

44 23 New main roll finger. Bolton. 9.30 p.m.
44 26 Wheels. 3 for flat, new collar and insp. motors. Layden. 5 p.m.

5o

K. October 1 Changed arm. 4.

R. 44 10 Plugs, hngrs. and
motors.

B.H. 2 and 4; H.S. ; cleaned McDonald 4.30 p.m.

bolts, sockets, and shoes; insp. Flewelling. 4 p.m.



fad BS faeî

23
26

New main mil finger. Bolton. 9.30 p.m.
Wheels. 3 for flat, new eollar and inap. motors. Leyden. 5 p.m.

K. October 1 

R. 44 10

R. 44 25 11.45 p.m. 25 Dead.

November 7
44 10
44 29

44 December 2
44 44 1 6 2.30 p.m. 16 Jour. box.
R. 44 22
K. 44 24

Changed arm. 4. B.H. 2 and 4; H.S. ; cleaned Me Donald 4.30 p.m.
arm. 2.

Plugs, hours, and bolts, sockets, and shoes; insp. Fie welling. 4 p.m.
motors.

New B.H. 2; terminal M.R. fingers and reverse Barton. 3 a.m.

Changed arm. 2; cleaned 3 and 4.
Put in light of glass.
Changed arm. and B.H. 1 ; cleaned arm. 2. 
Changed arm. 1.
(’hanged jour, box 3.
Arm. 4 for bmgs. : insp. motors.
Arm. 2 and B.H. 2 changed : H.S. eontlr. cleaned ; 

new rev. roll.

Roche.
Copping.
Roche.
McDonald.

McDonald.

3.30 p.m.
3.30 p.m.
2.30 p.m.
9.30 a.m.
3.30 p.m. 
4.20 p.m.

11.20p.m.
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IN THE HIGH COURT OF JUSTICE.

The Honorable Mr. Justice Middleton.
Wednesday, the 27 day of September. 1911.

Between :
WILLIAM FLEMING,

i
AND

Plaintiff,

THE TORONTO RAILWAY COMPANY.
Defendant.

*® This action having come on on the 25th and 26th days of September, 
1911, and again this day for trial before this Court and a Jury of the 
County of York at the Assizes holden for the County of York at the City 
of Toronto in presence of counsel for both parties and the jury having 
answered certain question submitted to them by the Court and assessed 
the damages of the plaintiff at the sum of #1.200.00 and upon hearing 
counsel aforesaid.

(1) This court doth order and adjudge that the plaintiff do recover 
against the defendants the sum of $1,200.00.

(2) And this court doth further order and adjudge that the said 
20 defendants do pay to the said plaintiff his costs of this action forthwith

after taxation thereof.
Judgment signed this 4th day of Geo. S. Hoi.mfsteii,

November, 1911. Registrar.
D’Arcy Hinds,

Clerk. J.C. & P.

IN THE COURT OF APPEAL FOR ONTARIO.

The Honorable the Chief Justice of Saturday, the 21st day of October, 
Ontario, in Chambers. 1911.

Between :
80 WILLIAM FLEMING,

(Respondent)
AND

Plaintiff,

THE TORONTO RAILWAY COMPANY,
(Appellants) Defendants.

Upon the application of the above named defendants for an order al­
lowing the defendants to appeal direct to the Court of Appeal for Ontario, 
from the judgment of the Honourable Mr. Justice Middleton, dated the
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27th dey of September. 1911, upon hearing read the affidavit of I). L. Mc­
Carthy filed, and the pleadings in the action, and the answers of the jury 
to the questions submitted to them, and the defendants by their eounsel 
undertaking to set the appeal down for the next sittings of the Court of 
Appeal for Ontario, and the plaintiff by his counsel undertaking to ex­
pedite the said appeal :

1. It is ordered that the defendants be, and they are hereby allowed 
to appeal direct to the Court of Appeal for Ontario, from the said judg­
ment of the Honorable Mr. Justice Middleton.

10 2. And it is further ordered that the defendant!, lie permitted to set
down their appeal for the next sittings of the Court of Appeal for Ontario, 
without the deposit of the printed Appeal Case as required by the rules 
of Court, they undertaking to deposit the same and deliver copies there­
of to plaintiff’s solicitors on or before the first day of the next sittings of 
this Court.

3. And it is further ordered that the costs of this application lie costs 
in the appeal.

Entered O.B. XII. N. F. P. N. F. Paterson,
Issued 24th of Oct., 1911. Registrar.

20 Take notice that we have this day paid into Court the sum of $200.00 
as security for the costs of the defendants, appeal to the Court of Appeal 
for Ontario.

Dated at Toronto this 24th day of October, A.I).. 1911.
McCarthy, Osler, Hoskin & Harcourt,

Defendants' Solicitors.
To Messrs. C. &. H. I). (Iambic,

Plaintiff’s Solicitors.

REASONS FOR APPEAL.
1. The plaintiff in this case was a passenger on a car of the Toronto 

30 Railway Company, on the 10th day of August, 1910, and met with an ac­
cident as the result of being shoved off the car by the passengers sitting 
next him.

2. The car upon which the plaintiff was riding was a King street open 
ear, travelling east. The car stopped at Sherbourne street, crossed the 
intersection, and shortly afterwards an explosion took place, accompanied 
by a loud noise, and flames and smoke, frightening the passengers who 
were sitting next the plaintiff who was at the end of the seat, and they, 
thinking some harm would come to them and to the plaintiff, apparently 
shoved him out and got out afterwards, the plaintiff sustaining injuries,

40 as the result of his fall.
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3. The plaintiff in his claim alleged negligence against the Company, 

the negligence set forth in paragraph 8 of the claim being as follows :
“not having properly inspected the controller, or if so inspected 
“not having it put in proper order and in leaving the said controller 
“out of repair or not in proper condition to be in operation and in 
“having the cars overloaded and thus giving the controller too much 
“strain and in the motorman turning the power of the controller on 
“too suddenly when overloaded; neglecting to turn off the power 
“after the controller blew out and in the motorman deserting his 

10 “post and leaving the car to run away and in the conductor and 
“motorman neglecting to pull the pole off the wire and thus stop." 

Subsequently the plaintiff delivered particulars of certain acts of negli­
gence complained of, the particulars being as follows:

“The defective form and design of the car consists in having the 
“seats too dose together; in having a running hoard on the outside 
“of the car instead of a passage in the centre of the car and the de- 
“fect in the general arrangements so that the employees cannot 
“pull down the trolley pole in an emergency or when required.

“Insufficiency of provision for electrical transmission in portion 
211 “of the equipment circuits; insufficiency of provision for insula­

tion between portions of the equipment circuits; insufficiency of 
“provision for insulation in the circuit breaker when open; insuf- 
“fldenev of provision for Are protection in case of trouble in the 
“provision for electrical transmission in portions of the equipment 
“circuits; insufficiency of provision for shutting off the power when 
“the circuit breaker failed to serve its purpose at the time of the 
“accident.

“The particulars in reference to the controller are as follows:
“Defective insulation and too low conductivity in the circuit.”

30 4. The action came on for trial before the Honourable Mr. Justice
Middleton on the 26th and 27th days of September, 1911, when the fol­
lowing questions were submitted to the Jury, their answers to them being 
as follows :

1. Was the accident caused by the negligence of the de­
fendants?

Answer—Yes.
2. If so, what was that negligence; answer this question 

fully Î
Answer—We believe the motorman was incompetent to 

♦0 handle a car in case of emergency. Had he used the air brake 
the car could have been broughf to a stop before the accident 
happened, and we also believe the car was not properly inspected.
5. At the trial the only acts of negligence relied upon by the plaintiff 

were the failure of the motorman to apply the brake when the explosion oc­
curred, and thus stopping the car, and failure to keep appliances in proper 
order, and failure to inspect the same.
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6. In regard to the failure of the motorman to apply the brake, the 

evidence was that he ran his car across the intersection properly, that he 
fed his controller up to one or two points, when suddenly the automatic 
circuit breaker blew out, the controller caught fire, his vestibule was filled 
with smoke and flames, and the man himself received a shock, and all 
the apparatus of the car were put out of commission. He managed, how­
ever, to keep his presence of mind, and he called to the passengers not to 
get off, and he called to his conductor to pull the |m>1c off the wire, but he 
failed to apply his brake, and the Jury have found that he was incorn-

16 patent to handle a car in case of emergency, and that the car could have 
been brought to a atop before the accident happened.

7. There is, however, no evidence to justify such a finding. The stop­
ping of the car would not have prevented the flames and smoke, and it 
was these that frightened the passengers, who shoved the plaintiff off the 
seat, and there is nothing to show that the fact that the car was moving 
had anything to do with the plaintiff’s injuries, as it was the fall from the 
seat of the car to the pavement which injured him, not the moving of the 
car.

8. Ill regard to the second |siint, the evidence was that all the ap- 
26 paratus in the car was of the most up-to-date description, and no fault

could be found with it, but the learned Trial Judge refused to allow wit­
nesses to refresh their memory in reference to inspection of certain parts 
of the controller from the sheets put in bv the Inspector and the Fore­
man who made these inspections. The system of inspection was explain­
ed to the Court, and although the foreman testified that in the ordinary 
course of affairs this car would have been inspected within a certain 
time, he could not, without his sheets, sav exactly when that inspection 
took place, and the learned Trial Judge refused to allow him to refresh his 
memory with those sheets to state exactly when the controller and the 

110 wires connecting the controller had been inspected.
9. It was shown conclusively that the ear had been overhauled within 

a short time of the accident, that new wiring had been put in, the plain­
tiff's export could find no fault with the system of inspection or the ma­
terials used, and the question very largely came down to the fact as to 
when the last inspection had taken | lace just prior to the accident, and 
the defendants submit that the foreman should have been allowed to re­
fresh his memory from the inspection sheets, in the absence of the in­
spector himself, who unfortunately had left the company's employ.

10. The appellants therefore submit that in the first place there was 
*6 no evidence to justify the finding of the Jury in reference to the incom­

petence of the motorman to act in an emergency, and there is no method 
of testing whether a man is competent to act in an emergency, because it 
is impossible for the defendants to create accidents for the purpose of 
testing the competency of an employee, and in any case, the appellants 
submit that failure to stop the car had nothing whatever to do with the 
plaintiff’s injuries, because whether the ear was stopped or going, the 
elements which frightened the female passengers would still have existed,
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and he would have been shoved from the ear whether it was standing or 
moving.

11. The appellants further submit that there is no evidenee to justify 
the finding of the Jury that the ear was not properly inspected, and the ap­
pellants submit that in any case they were entitled to have their wit­
nesses’ memory refreshed by the inspection sheets, which are the only 
means that a man has of refreshing his memory where numbers of ears are 
inspected night after night, and he is called upon to testify in regard to 
it a year or more after the accident.

10 12. For the above reasons the appellants submit that the action should
be dismissed, or that, in any event, they should be permitted to have the 
action retried and the evidenee which was rejected properly put before 
the Court.

D. L. McCarthy,
Of Counsel for the Appellants.

REASONS AGAINST APPEAL.
1. On the 10th of August, 1910, between 5 and 6 o’clock in the evening 

the plaintiff was a passenger on an east bound open King street ear of the 
defendants to which a trailer was attached. Just as the car had passed

20 Sherbourne street several explosions occurred in the front vestibule of 
the car followed by smoke and fire.

2. The plaintiff was sitting at the extreme end of the seat where any 
one on the same seat seeking to alight would have to pass him. The seats 
all faced in the direction the car was going, and there was no space be­
tween the plaintiff’s knees and the back of the next seat for any one to 
pass.

3. The cars were crowded and when the explosions took place and the 
smoke began to come hack into the body of the car, the cars not being 
stopped but continuing on their way, the passengers became alarmed,

30 some of them panic stricken, and those in the same seat with the plaintiff 
forced their wav off the car and, as there was no mom for them to pass be­
tween the plaintiff and the back of the next seat and he being an elderly 
man, they carried him with them and forced him off on to the pavement, 
the result being that he was very seriously hurt, having several ribs brok­
en, his hip and knee injured, the latter permanently, besides receiving 
other painful, but not serious injuries.

4. The plaintiff in his statement of claim charges, among other acts 
of negligence on the part of the defendants:

(1) Defective condition of the controller in construction or state
40 ofrepair.

• (2) Defective form and design of the ear, of which particulars
were furnished, which in part arc as follows:

Insufficiency of provision for electrical transmission in portions of 
. the equipment circuits—insufficiency of provision for insulation be­

tween portions of the equipment circuits, defective insulation of and
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insufficiency of provision for electric transmission in portions of the 
equipment circuits.

(3) Lack of proper inspection.
(4) Allowing the car to he operated by an inexperienced and in­

competent motorman.
(5) The failure of the motorman to apply the brake and thus stop 

the car.
5. The plaintiff submits that the mere fact of the accident happening 

in the circumstances of this ease establishes negligence on the part of the
10 defendants in the absence of explanation by them.

6. The defendants did not attempt to explain the cause of the acci 
dent, claiming that they could not in any way account for it; that it was 
as their witness Mcfrac put it, an inexplicable phenomenon.

7. The evidence of the plaintiff showed that the accident was caused 
by defective insulation in the cables close to the controller; that if there 
had been proper inspection by the Company of these cables the defect 
would have been discovered and could, of course, have been remedied; 
that the result of such defect was that a short circuit of the current was es­
tablished at the defective point which caused the trouble. The evidence

ilO did not, as stated in the Reasons of Appeal, show that the car had been 
thoroughly overhauled within a reasonable time and new wiring put in; on 
the contrary, the defendants failed to show proper inspection of the car 
particularly of the defective cable and tin1 jury found that the car was not 
properly inspected.

8. The evidence shows that the defendants' motorman was incom­
petent and that he was negligent in not applying the brake.

The controller and brake arc so placed that the motorman has his con­
troller under his left hand, and the air brake under his right hand and a 
competent or careful motorman would have applied the air brake siinul-

;i i taneously with shutting off the current. This the motorman failed to do. 
Not that lie was alarmed, because he states in his evidence that he was 
not alarmed, but simply through neglect. He omitted the vital act which 
would have saved the situation, namely, the applying of the brake, and in­
stead of so doing he called to the passengers, according to his account, not 
to get off the car and told the conductor to take the pole off the wire, 
which was not done. The jury found that the motorman was incompe­
tent. lie was only a relief man, and they found that he was ncgligcht in 
not applying the air brake bv which means he could have brought the 
car to a atop before the accident to tin- plaintiff happened.

40 9. While it is true, as stated in appellants' reasons of appeal, that the
stopping of the car would not have prevented the lire and smoke, it would 
have prevented the smoke from drifting back into the car and it is reason­
able to believe that it would have materially reduced, if not entirely done 
away with the panic, when the passengers saw that the car was stopped 
and that they could get off when they pleased without hurry or risk, and 
the plaintiff could have alighted with safety instead of being shoved off. 
and even if they had shoved the plaintiff off while the car was at a stand-
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still lu- would lune lieen less liable to lu- injured tluni if shoved off while 
the ear was in motion as in the present ease.

10. There was, therefore, ample evidence to support all the findings 
of the jury, and the jury having found for the plaintiff upon the evidence, 
this Court, it is submitted, will not disturb such findings.

11. The evidence of reports which was excluded was properly exclud­
ed.

12. It is submitted there could be no more dangerous evidence than 
the evidence of such reports which might be i-ooked to suit the ease of the

10 parte from whose custody they come.
An illustration occurred in this very ease where, upon the examina­

tion for discovery, an officer of the Company produced what he swore to 
be a correct copy of the history of the ear taken from the defendants’ 
books. This document contained a statement that “the equipment 
( which, of course, would cover the whole equipment controller, cables, 
motors and all) of the ear had been inspecteu on a certain day. Upon the 
trial (see Exhibit ) it was shown that not the equipment of the car, 
but the motors only had been inspected on that day and no other part of 
the equipment, and that the word “equipment” had been substituted for 

20 “motors.” So that a direct effort to deceive was made in this very case.
13. For these, among other reasons, the plaintiff submits that this ap­

peal should be dismissed.
H. D. Gamble,

Counsel for Respondent.
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